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Statement Regarding Forward-Looking Information

The statements contained in this report on ForrnK 1i8at are not purely historical are forward-loagistatements within the meaning of
applicable securities laws. Forward-looking statetsénclude statements regarding our “expectatidasficipations,” “intentions,” “beliefs,”
or “strategies” regarding the future. Forward-loakstatements also include statements regardirgnuey margins, expenses, and earnings for
fiscal 2012 and thereafter; our belief that ourcficees enhance our ability to attract more custenfester an overall enjoyable boating
experience, and offer boat manufacturers stablepesféssional retail distribution and a broad gepbic presence; our assessment of our
competitive advantages, including our no hasslkessapproach, prime retail locations, premium prodiferings, extensive facilities, strong
management and team members, and emphasis on ens@rmice and satisfaction before and after a fmlat our belief that our core values
of customer service and satisfaction and our gir@sewill enable us to achieve success and long-tgpowth when economic conditions
improve; and our belief that our retailing stragsgare aligned with the desires of consumers.ofllérd-looking statements included in this
report are based on information available to usfdle filing date of this report, and we assumehligation to update any such forward-
looking statements. Our actual results could diffeaterially from the forward-looking statements. émg the factors that could cause actual
results to differ materially are the factors disagunder Item 1/“Risk Factor”
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PART |
Item 1.  Business
Introduction
Our Company

We are the largest recreational boat dealer itvitieed States. Through 54 retail locations in Alala Arizona, California, Colorado,
Connecticut, Florida, Georgia, Kansas, Marylandymisota, Missouri, New Jersey, New York, North @Gaap Ohio, Oklahoma, Rhode Islal
Tennessee, and Texas, we sell new and used recraaibats, including pleasure and fishing boait) &focus on premium brands in each
segment. We also sell related marine products,dicy engines, trailers, parts, and accessoriesddition, we provide repair, maintenance,
and slip and storage services; we arrange relatatifimancing, insurance, and extended serviceractst we offer boat and yacht brokerage
services; and we operate a yacht charter business.

We are the natios’largest retailer of Sea Ray, Boston Whaler, BayliCabo, Hatteras, and Meridian recreationaldaadl yachts, all ¢
which are manufactured by Brunswick CorporationBrarnswick. Sales of new Brunswick boats accoufe@pproximately 48% of our
revenue in fiscal 2011. Brunswick is the world’sykest manufacturer of marine products and marigénes. We believe our sales represented
approximately 7% of all Brunswick marine sales]uing approximately 41% of its Sea Ray boat salasing our 2011 fiscal year. We are
parties to dealer agreements with Brunswick cogeiea Ray products and are the exclusive dealkeaRay boats in almost all of our
geographic markets. We also are the exclusive déalélatteras Yachts throughout the state of Eexcluding the Florida panhandle) and
the states of New Jersey, New York, and Texasgtickisive dealer for Cabo Yachts throughout theestaf Florida, New Jersey, and New
York; the exclusive dealer for Boston Whaler in maif our geographic markets; the exclusive dealeBfayliner in many of our geographic
markets; and the exclusive dealer for Meridian Yadalm most of our geographic markets. In additiva,are the exclusive dealer for Itddgsec
Azimut-Benetti Group for Azimut meggachts, yachts, and other recreational boats toNthrtheast United States from Maryland to Maing
the state of Florida.

We commenced operations as a result of the MartB98 acquisition of five previously independertreational boat dealers. Since that
time, we have acquired 21 additional previouslyepehdent recreational boat dealers, two boat bagkeoperations, and two full-service yacht
repair operations. We capitalize on the experi@amksuccess of the acquired companies in ordestablesh a new national standard of
customer service and responsiveness in the highgyrfented retail boating industry. As a resultwf @mphasis on premium brand boats, our
average selling price for a new boat in fiscal 2@EE approximately $126,000, a decrease of appairiyn13% from approximately $145,000
in fiscal 2010, compared with the industry avereglendar 2010 selling price of approximately $38,068sed on industry data published by
National Marine Manufacturers Association. Our egpmwhich operated at least 12 months, averagatxpmately $9.9 million in annual sal
in fiscal 2011. We consider a store to be one aremetail locations that are adjacent or operatenasentity. Our same-store sales decreased
17% in fiscal 2010 and increased 8% in fiscal 2011.

We adopt the best practices developed by us andanguired companies as appropriate to enhancebdity ¢o attract more customers,
foster an overall enjoyable boating experience,affer boat manufacturers stable and professiatallrdistribution and a broad geographic
presence. We believe that our full range of sesyice hassle sales approach, prime retail locatpmesnium product offerings, extensive
facilities, strong management and team memberseamphasis on customer service and satisfactiorrdefed after a boat sale are competitive
advantages that enable us to be more responsikie tieeds of existing and prospective customers.

The U.S. recreational boating industry generatgut@gpmately $30.4 billion in retail sales in calem@®010, which is down from the peak
of $39.5 hillion in calendar 2006. The retail saledude sales of new and used boats; marine ptsdsuach as engines, trailers, equipment, and
accessories; and related expenditures, such asrfsetance, docking, storage, and repairs. Redddls of new and used boats, engines, trailers,
and accessories accounted for approximately $2ightof these sales in 2010 based on industrya diem the National Marine Manufacture
Association. The highly fragmented retail boatindustry generally consists of small dealers thatate in a single market and provide var)
degrees of merchandising, professional
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management, and customer service. We believe thay small dealers are finding it increasingly difilt to make the managerial and capital
commitments necessary to achieve higher customeicedevels and upgrade systems and facilitie®gsired by boat manufacturers and
demanded by customers. We also believe that maadgrddack an exit strategy for their owners. Wkele these factors contribute to our
opportunity to gain competitive advantage in curiamd future markets, through market expansionsaaqdisitions.

Strategy

Our goal is to enhance our position as the natita@ding recreational boat dealer. Key elementsuofoperating and growth strategy
include the following:

» emphasizing customer satisfaction and loyalty ®ating an overall enjoyable boating experienceinoigg with a hass-free
purchase process, customer training, superior cwestservice, compa-led events called Getaways!, and premier facili

» achieving efficiencies and synergies among ouratpmrs to enhance internal growth and profitahil
» promoting national brand name recognition and ttagildMax connectior

« offering additional products and services, inclggihose involving higher profit margin

» expanding our Internet marketir

* pursuing strategic acquisitions to capitalize ugfnconsolidation opportunities in the highly fragmted recreational boat dea
industry by acquiring additional dealers and relaiperations and improving their performance amditability through the
implementation of our operating strateqgi

» opening additional retail facilities in our exiggimnd new territories
* emphasizing employee recruitment, training, ancetigpment;
» emphasizing th*best practice’ developed by us and our acquired dealers as apat@ftinroughout our dealershij
» operating with a decentralized approach to theaipsral management of our dealerships;
« utilizing information technology throughout opeoats, which facilitates the interchange of informatsharing and enhances cross-
selling opportunities throughout our compa
Development of the Company; Expansion of Business

MarineMax was founded in January 1998. MarineMaglft however, conducted no operations until theuggition of five independent
recreational boat dealers on March 1, 1998, andomgpleted our initial public offering in June 19%8nce the initial acquisitions in March
1998, we have acquired 21 additional recreationat dealers, two boat brokerage operations, andulivservice yacht repair operations.
Acquired dealers operate under the MarineMax name.

We continually attempt to enhance our businessrbyiging a full range of services, offering exteressand high-quality product lines,
maintaining prime retail locations, pursuing therMaMax One Price hassle-free sales approach, mpth&sizing the highest level of customer
service and customer satisfaction.

We also evaluate opportunities to expand our oeraiby acquiring recreational boat dealers to eslpaur geographic scope, expanding
our product lines, opening new retail locationshivitour existing territories, and offering new puats and services for our customers.

2
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Acquisitions of additional recreational boat deglepresent an important strategy in our goal tapoe our position as the nation’s
leading retailer of recreational boats. The follogviable sets forth information regarding the besses that we have acquired and their

geographic regions.

Acquired Companies

Bassett Boat Company of Florida
Louis Del[Homme Marin
Gulfwind USA, Inc.

Gulfwind South, Inc

Harrisor's Boat Center, Inc. and Harri¢'s Marine Centers of Arizona, Inc.(

Stovall Marine, Inc

Cochrar's Marine, Inc. and C & N Marine Corporati
Sea Ray of North Carolina, In

Brevard Boat Compar

Sea Ray of Las Vegi

Treasure Cove Marina, In

Woods & Oviatt, Inc

Boating World

Merit Marine, Inc.

Suburban Boatworks, In

Hansen Marine, Inc

Duce Marine, Inc.(2

Clark's Landing, Inc. (selected New Jersey locationsagettations
Associated Marine Technologies, li

Gulfwind Marine Partners, Ini

Seaside Marine, In

Sundance Marine, Ini

Killinger Marine Center, Inc. and Killinger Marir@enter of Alabama, In«
Emarine International, Inc. and Steven Myers,
Imperial Marine

Port Jacksonville Marin

Port Arrowhead Marina, Int

Great American Marina(?

Surfside — 3 Marina, Inc.

Treasure Island Marina, LL

Acquisition Date

March 199¢
March 199¢
March 199¢
March 199¢
March 199¢
April 1998

July 1998

July 1998
September 199
September 199
September 199
October 199¢
February 199!
March 199¢
April 1999
August 199¢
December 199
April 2000
January 200
April 2002

July 2002

June 200!
September 200
October 200!
June 200:
June 200
January 200!
February 2001
March 2006

February 201:

Geographic Regior
Southeast Florida
Dallas and Houston, Tex
West Central Florid.
Southwest Florid:
Northern California and Arizon
Georgia
Minnesots
North and South Carolir
East Central Florid
Nevada
Northern Ohic
Southeast Florid
Dallas, Texa:
Southern New Jerse
Central New Jerse
Northeast Florid:
Utah
Northern New Jerse
Southeast Florid
West Florids
Southern Californii
Colorado
Northwest Florida and Alaban
Southeast Florid
Baltimore, Marylanc
Northeast Florid:
Missouri, Oklahom:
West Florids
Connecticut, Maryland,
New York and Rhode Islar
Florida Panhandl

(1) We subsequently closed the Northern California aj@ns of Harrison Boat Center, Ir

(2) We subsequently closed the operations of Duce Mahrt.

(3) Joint venture

Apart from acquisitions, we have opened 28 newilr@@ations in existing territories, excluding g®opened on a temporary basis for a

specific purpose. We also monitor the performarfaguo retail locations and close retail locatiohattdo not meet our expectations. Based on
these factors and the recent depressed econonddions, we have closed 50 retail locations sinadi 1998, excluding those opened on a
temporary basis for a specific purpose, includifgrfiscal 2009.

As a part of our acquisition strategy, we frequestigage in discussions with various recreationat dealers regarding their potential
acquisition by us. In connection with these disirss we and each potential acquisition candidatb@nge confidential operational and
financial information; conduct due diligence
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inquiries; and consider the structure, terms, amtlitions of the potential acquisition. In certaases, the prospective acquisition candidate
agrees not to discuss a potential acquisition wiity other party for a specific period of time, gsans an option to purchase the prospective
dealer for a designated price during a specifietpariod, and agrees to take other actions designechance the possibility of the acquisition,
such as preparing audited financial information eoverting its accounting system to the systengifipd by us. Potential acquisition
discussions frequently take place over a long pesicdime and involve difficult business integratiand other issues, including in some cases,
management succession and related matters. Aslaoéthese and other factors, a number of paaeatiquisitions that from time to time
appear likely to occur do not result in bindingdeggreements and are not consummated.

In addition to acquiring recreational boat deabsrd opening new retail locations, we also add nesyct lines to expand our operatio
The following table sets forth various current protlines that we have added to our existing loecetiduring the years indicated.

Product Line Fiscal Yeal Geographic Regions

Boston Whale 199¢ West Central Florida; Stuart, Florida; Dallas, T®

Hatteras Yacht 199¢ Florida (excluding the Florida panhand

Boston Whale 200( North Palm Beach, Florid

Meridian Yachts 200z Florida, Georgia, North and South Carolina, Nevedgr Ohio
Minnesota, Texas, and Delaw:

Grady White 2002 Houston, Texa

Hatteras Yacht 200z Texas

Boston Whale 2004 North and South Carolir

Princecraft 2004 Minnesots

Boston Whale 200t Houston

Meridian Yachts 200t Chattanooga, Tenness

Azimut 200¢ Northeast United States from Maryland to Ma

Cabo 200¢ West coast of Florid

Cabo 2007 East coast of Florid

Azimut 200¢ Florida

Cabo 200¢ New Jersey and New Yo

Hatteras Yacht 200¢ New Jersey and New Yo

Meridian Yachts 200¢ Arizona and Colorad

Meridian Yachts 200¢ Maryland and Delawar

Boston Whale 200¢ Southwest Floridi

Harris FloteBote 201C Arizona, Missouri, Minnesota, New Jersey, and Tesge

Malibu 201( Arizona

Axis 201C Arizona

Nautique by Correct Cra 201C Georgia and Minneso!

Bayliner 201C New York

Meridian Yachts 201C California

Harris FloteBote 2011 West Central Florid

Zeelander Yacht 2011 United States and Cana

Manguste 2011 United States and Cana

Bayliner 2011 West Central Florida, Colorado, Connecticut, Mirotas New

Jersey, Tennessee, and Te

4
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As we add a brand, we believe we are offering aatiign path for our existing customer base onfgla gap in our product offerings. As
a result, we do not believe that new product ofiigsiwill compete with or cannibalize the businessegated from our other prominent brands.
We also discontinue offering product lines fromeito time, primarily based upon customer preference

During the nine-year period from the commenceméouo operations through our fiscal year ended &aper 30, 2007, our revenue
increased from $291 million to $1.2 billion. Ourvemue and net income increased in seven of thoeysiars over the prior year revenue and
net income. This period was marked by an increasetail locations from 41 on September 30, 19988@n September 30, 2007, resulting
from acquisitions and opening new stores in exgstarritories.

Our growth was interrupted during the fiscal yeradexd September 30, 2007, primarily as a resulactbfs related to the deteriorating
housing market and general economic conditionsstaunkially deteriorating economic and financial ditions, reduced consumer confidence
and spending, increases in fuel prices, lower teadiilability, financial market declines, and dssdue deterioration all contributed to
substantially lower financial performance in thectil years ended September 30, 2008 and 2009dinglsignificant net losses, followed by
pre-tax losses in the fiscal years ended SepteBthez010 and 2011.

We have taken a number of actions to address retaret and economic conditions, including deferrir acquisition program,
slowing our new store openings, reducing our inggnpurchases, engaging in inventory reductionreffalosing a number of our retail
locations, significantly reducing our headcount] amodifying our debt structure and replacing owddrfacility. Acquisitions and new store
openings remain important strategies to our compang we plan to resume our growth through thesgesfies when more normal economic
conditions return. However, we cannot predict #rggth or severity of the current recessionary emirent or the magnitude of the effects it
will have on our operating performance nor can vegligt the effectiveness of the measures we h&ent address this environment.

Despite the foregoing actions, we are maintainimgoore values of customer service and satisfaetiwhplan to continue to pursue
strategies that will enable us to achieve long-tsaccess and growth when economic conditions ingrag noted in the earlier table, we have
capitalized on a number of brand expansion oppii#snin the markets in which we operate. We belithese expansions will strengthen our
same-store sales growth when the industry recolgrsn a return to more normal economic conditieves plan to resume expanding our
business through acquisitions in new geographératdries and new store openings in existing tierigs. In addition, we plan to continue to
expand our other traditional and newly offered m&w, including conducting used boat sales at etailocations, online, and at offsite
locations; selling related marine products, inahgdéngines, trailers, parts, and accessories aetail locations and at various offsite locatic
through our print catalog, and through our newligaarced website portal; providing maintenance, repad storage services at most of our
retail locations; offering our customers the abpitit finance new or used boats; offering extendedise contracts; arranging insurance
coverage, including boat property, credit-life, ideat, disability, and casualty coverage; offefiuat and yacht brokerage services at most of
our retail locations and at various offsite locaipmaintaining a web based listing service foivitldials and boat dealers and brokers to list
their boats for sale; providing independent brokerd dealers our software applications to listrthmientories for sale; conducting our yacht
charter business, and maintaining a Rewards Clububcustomers. Our expansion plans will deper@hutpe return of normal economic
conditions.

We maintain our executive offices at 18167 U.S.hdigy 19 North, Suite 300, Clearwater, Florida 3376 our telephone number is
(727) 531-1700. We were incorporated in the staf@edaware in January 1998. Unless the contextrotise requires, all references to
“MarineMax” mean MarineMax, Inc. prior to its acgition of five previously independent recreatiobaht dealers in March 1998 (including
their related real estate companies) and all reée®to the “Company,” “our company,” “we,” “us fici“our” mean, as a combined company,
MarineMax, Inc. and the 21 recreational boat dsalkevo boat brokerage operations, and two fulliseryacht repair operations acquired to

date (the “acquired dealers,” and together withtitekerage and repair operations, “operating sidréés,” or the “acquired companies”).

5
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Our website is located atww.MarineMax.com Through our website, we make available free afrga our annual report on Form 10-K,
our quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, our currenbregpon Form 8-K, our proxy statements, and anyraiments to those reports filed or
furnished pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) ofSkeurities Exchange Act of 1934. These reportsiaadable as soon as reasonably
practicable after we electronically file those rdpavith the Securities and Exchange CommissioSEC. We also post on our website the
charters of our Audit, Compensation, and Nomind@ugporate Governance Committees; our Corporatee@awce Guidelines, Code of
Business Conduct and Ethics, and Code of EthichBeCEO and Senior Financial Officers, and anyraineents or waivers thereto; and any
other corporate governance materials contemplatetdebSEC or the regulations of the New York StBgkhange, or NYSE. These documents
are also available in print to any stockholder esjing a copy from our corporate secretary at oucipal executive offices. Because our
common stock is listed on the NYSE, our Chief ExeeuOfficer is required to make an annual ceréifion to the NYSE stating that he is not
aware of any violation by us of the corporate goaece listing standards of the NYSE. Our Chief Exige Officer made his annual
certification to that effect to the NYSE on March, 2011.

Business
General

We are the largest recreational boat dealer itJthieed States. Through 54 retail locations in Alalaa Arizona, California, Colorado,
Connecticut, Florida, Georgia, Kansas, Marylandymisota, Missouri, New Jersey, New York, North @Gaap Ohio, Oklahoma, Rhode Islal
Tennessee, and Texas, we sell new and used recr&dtbats, including pleasure boats (such as gpaits, sport cruisers, sport yachts, and
yachts), and fishing boats, with a focus on premiwends in each segme

We are the nation’s largest retailer of Sea Rayt@oWhaler, Bayliner Cabo, Hatteras, and Meridemeational boats and yachts, all of
which are manufactured by Brunswick CorporationeSaf new Brunswick boats accounted for approx@iyat8% of our revenue in fiscal
2011. Brunswick is the world’largest manufacturer of marine products and ra@ngines. We believe our sales represented apmaitedy 7%
of all Brunswick marine sales, including approxieigt41% of its Sea Ray boat sales, during our Ztal year. We are parties to dealer
agreements with Brunswick covering Sea Ray prodantsare the exclusive dealer of Sea Ray boatsiosa all of our geographic markets.
We also are the exclusive dealer for Hatteras Yaitttoughout the state of Florida (excluding theriele panhandle) and the states of New
Jersey, New York, and Texas; the exclusive deale€hbo Yachts throughout the states of Floriday Nersey, and New York; the exclusive
dealer for Boston Whaler in many of our geographarkets; the exclusive dealer for Bayliner in mahgpur geographic markets; and the
exclusive dealer for Meridian Yachts in most of gepgraphic markets. In addition, we are the exatudealer for Italy-based Azimut-Benetti
Group for Azimut mega-yachts, yachts, and otheree@nal boats for the Northeast United States fidaryland to Maine and the state of
Florida.

We also are involved in other boating-related dti¢is. We sell used boats at our retail locati@mdine, and at various thirgarty marina:
and other offsite locations; we sell marine engimed propellers, primarily to our retail customassreplacements for their existing engines
propellers; we sell a broad variety of parts anzkasories at our retail locations and at variotsteflocations, through our print catalog, and
through our newly enhanced website portal; we affamtenance, repair, and slip and storage sergicemst of our retail locations; we offer
finance and insurance, or F&I, products at ourilrtaations and at various offsite locations anatr customers and independent boat dealers
and brokers; we offer boat and yacht brokerageics=s\at most of our retail locations and at varioffisite locations; we maintain a web-based
listing service for individuals and boat dealerd &nokers to list their boats for sale; we provitgependent dealers and brokers our software
applications under which the dealers and brokendisttheir boat inventories for sale, which theam be posted to other websites selected by
the dealers and brokers; and we conduct a yachtechausiness in which we offer customers the ojpmity to charter thirgparty owned powe
and sailing yachts in exotic locations.
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U.S. Recreational Boating Industry

The total U.S. recreational boating industry getezt@pproximately $30.4 billion in retail salescalendar 2010, which is down from the
peak of $39.5 billion in calendar 2006. The resailes include retail sales of new and used reoregtboats; marine products, such as engines,
trailers, parts, and accessories; and relatedrigpatipenditures, such as fuel, insurance, docktogage, and repairs. Retail sales of new and
used boats, engines, trailers, and accessoriesmtecbfor approximately $21.7 billion of such sale2010. Annual retail recreational boating
sales were $17.9 billion in 1988, but declined tove of $10.3 billion in 1992 based on industryalptiblished by the National Marine
Manufacturers Association. We believe this declimes attributable to several factors, including@ession, the Gulf War, and the imposition
throughout 1991 and 1992 of a luxury tax on boald at prices in excess of $100,000. The luxurywas repealed in 1993, and retail boating
sales increased each year thereafter except f&, 28®3, 2007, 2008, 2009, and 2010.

The recreational boat retail market remains higrdgmented with little consolidation having occulte date and consists of numerous
boat retailers, most of which are small companiegses by individuals that operate in a single madget provide varying degrees of
merchandising, professional management, and custeengce. We believe that many boat retailerssa@untering increased pressure from
boat manufacturers to improve their levels of sgnadnd systems, increased competition from largéomal retailers in certain product lines,
and, in certain cases, business succession issues.

Strategy

Our goal is to enhance our position as the natit@ding recreational boat dealer. Key elementsuofoperating and growth strategy
include the following.

Emphasizing Customer Satisfaction and LoyaltyVe seek to achieve a high level of customtsfaation and establish long-term
customer loyalty by creating an overall enjoyaldating experience beginning with a hassle-freetpase process. We further enhance and
simplify the purchase process by helping to arrdimgncing and insurance at our retail locationhwibompetitive terms and streamlined
turnaround. We offer the customer a thorough inewatientation of boat operations where availagdewell as ongoing boat safety,
maintenance, and use seminars and demonstratiotisefoustomer’s entire family. We also continue customer service after the sale by
leading and sponsoring MarineMax Getaways! grougtihg trips to various destinations, rendezvoubleyigs, and on-the-water organized
events to provide our customers with pre-arranggzbdunities to enjoy the pleasures of the bodtfiegtyle. We also endeavor to provide
superior maintenance and repair services, oftautir mobile service at the customer’s wet slip it extended service department hours
and emergency service availability, that minimize hassles of boat maintenance.

Achieving Operating Efficiencies and SynergiesWe strive to increase the operating efficieaaf and achieve certain synergies among
our dealerships in order to enhance internal gramth profitability. We centralize various aspedtseartain administrative functions at the
corporate level, such as accounting, finance, arsee coverage, employee benefits, marketing, gicapdanning, legal support, purchasing and
distribution, and management information systenentf@lization of these functions reduces duplieagxpenses and permits the dealerships tc
benefit from a level of scale and expertise thatild@therwise be unavailable to each dealershipiithalally. We also seek to realize cost
savings from reduced inventory carrying costs essalt of purchasing boat inventories on a natiéexal and directing boats to dealership
locations that can more readily sell such boatsetdinancing costs through our credit sources;aidme purchase discounts and rebates for
certain marine products, supplies, and advertisiihg. ability of our retail locations to offer theraplementary services of our other retalil
locations, such as offering customer excursion dppdies, providing maintenance and repair sewigethe customer’s boat location, and
giving access to a larger inventory, increasestimpetitiveness of each retail location. By ceitiiad) these types of activities, our store
managers have more time to focus on the custonteth@ndevelopment of their teams.

Promoting Brand Name Recognition and the Marinel@axnection We are promoting our brand name recognitiotake advantage
of our status as the nation’s only coast-to-coamtime retailer. This strategy also recognizes ity existing and potential customers who
reside in Northern markets and vacation for sub-
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stantial periods in Southern markets will prefeptmchase and service their boats from the samlekmwelvn company. We refer to this strate
as the “MarineMax Connection.” As a result, oumsige emphasizes the MarineMax name at each oboatidns, and we conduct national
advertising in various print and other media.

Offering Additional Products and Services, Incluglifhose Involving Higher Profit Margins We plan to continue to offer additional
product lines and services throughout our dealpssaind, when appropriate, online and various effsitations. We are offering throughout
dealerships product lines that previously have lwggamed only at certain of our locations. We atdxbain additional product lines through the
acquisition of distribution rights directly from mafacturers and the acquisition of dealerships digitribution rights. In either situation, such
expansion is typically done through agreementsappbint us as the exclusive dealer for a desidnggegraphic territory. We plan to continue
to grow our financing and insurance, parts and ssmées, service, and boat storage businessestén ferve our customers and thereby
increase revenue and improve profitability of thegger margin businesses. We also have implemeggressive programs to increase
substantially the sale over the Internet of useatdand a wide range of boating parts, accesssrigplies, and products. In addition, we have
established a yacht charter business and are ctimgliypcograms to sell used boats, offer F&| produend sell boating parts and accessories at
various offsite locations.

Marketing over the Internet Our web initiatives span across multiple widssiincluding our core sitejww.MarineMax.com The
websites provide customers with the ability to fearore about our company and our products. Our ieegenerates direct sales and provides
our stores with leads to potential customers fov aad used boats, brokerage services, financersndance products, and repair and
maintenance services. In addition, we utilize vasiéeeder websites and social networking websgitekive additional traffic and leads for our
various product and service offerings. As mentioakdve, we also maintain multiple online storefsdiotr customers to purchase used boats
and a wide variety of boating parts and accessories

Pursuing Strategic Acquisitions We capitalize upon the significant consolidatopportunities available in the highly fragmented
recreational boat dealer industry by acquiring petelent dealers and improving their performancepaafitability through the implementatic
of our operating strategies. The primary acquisifmcus is on well-established, high-end recreatitwoat dealers in geographic markets not
currently served by us, particularly geographic kets with strong boating demographics, such asarithin the coastal states and the Great
Lakes region. We also may seek to acquire boaedettlat, while located in attractive geographickets, have not been able to realize
favorable market share or profitability and that b@nefit substantially from our systems and ojpeyagtrategies. We may expand our range of
product lines, service offerings, and market pextietn by acquiring companies that distribute reiosal boat product lines or boating-related
services different from those we currently offes &result of our considerable industry experiaaragrelationships, we believe we are well
positioned to identify and evaluate acquisitiondidates and assess their growth prospects, th@ygobtheir management teams, their local
reputation with customers, and the suitabilityheit locations. We believe we are regarded asteactive acquirer by boat dealers because of
(2) the historical performance and the experiemzkraputation of our management team within thesty; (2) our decentralized operating
strategy, which generally enables the managera atquired dealer to continue their involvemerdéalership operations; (3) the ability of
management and employees of an acquired dealarticipate in our growth and expansion through pt&d stock ownership and career
advancement opportunities; and (4) the abilityfferdiquidity to the owners of acquired dealersotigh the receipt of common stock or cash.
We have entered into an agreement regarding atiqusiwith the Sea Ray Division of Brunswick. Undee agreement, acquisitions of Sea
Ray dealers will be mutually agreed upon by us $ea Ray with reasonable efforts to be made todectubalance of Sea Ray dealers that
been successful and those that have not been.gfaemaent provides that Sea Ray will not unreasgnatthhold its consent to any proposed
acquisition of a Sea Ray dealer by us, subjedig¢aonditions set forth in the agreement, as furdlescribed in “Business — Brunswick
Agreement Relating to Acquisitions.”

Opening New Facilities We intend to continue to establish additice#il facilities in our existing and new marketsem markets
conditions improve. We believe that the demograpbifoour existing geographic territories suppoet tpening of additional facilities, and we
have opened 28 new retail facilities, excludingsthopened on a temporary basis for a specific germince our formation in January 1998.
We also plan to
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reach new customers through various innovativel fetanats developed by us, such as mall storesflaating retail facilities. We continually
monitor the performance of our retail locations ata$e retail locations that do not meet our exgiems or that were opened for a specific

purpose that is no longer relevant. Based on tfaeders since March 1998, we have closed 50 rletedltions, excluding those opened on a

temporary basis for a specific purpose, includifgrfiscal 2009.

Emphasizing Employee Recruiting, Training, and Degpment.  We devote substantial efforts to recruit ergpks that we believe to be
exceptionally well qualified for their position ataltrain our employees to understand our corel igtéosophies, which focus on making the
purchase of a boat and its subsequent use as{fiesknd enjoyable as possible. Through our MdareUniversity, or MMU, we teach our
retail philosophies to existing and new employdeséous locations and online, through MMU-onlindMU is a modularized and instructor-
led educational program that focuses on our ratajihilosophies and provides instruction on sucttermas the sales process, customer
service, F&I, accounting, leadership, and humaoueses.

Emphasizing Best Practices We emphasize the “best practices” developedshgnd our acquired dealers as appropriate thoodghur
locations. As an example, we follow a no-hagglesalpproach at each of our dealerships. Under trew®Max One Price hassle-free sales
approach, we sell our boats at posted prices, giypeepresenting a discount from the manufactsretiggested retail price, thereby elimina
the anxieties of price negotiations that occur wstrboat purchases. In addition, we adopt, whenefiigal, the best practices developed by us
and our acquired dealers in terms of location,gfedayout, product purchases, maintenance andrregices (including extended service
hours and mobile or dockside services), product emxployee training, and customer education andcsss.

Operating with Decentralized ManagementWe maintain a generally decentralized apprdache operational management of our
dealerships. The decentralized management apptakeb advantage of the extensive experience of leaaagers, enabling them to
implement policies and make decisions, includirggappropriate product mix, based on the needsedbttal market. Local management
authority also fosters responsive customer sematitepromotes long-term community and customeriosighips. In addition, the centralization
of certain administrative functions at the corperatvel enhances the ability of local manager®toi$ their efforts on day-to-day dealership
operations and the customers.

Utilizing Technology Throughout Operations We believe that our management informatioiesgswhich currently is being utilized by
each of our dealerships and was developed ovembeuof years through cooperative efforts with mown vendor, enhances our ability to
integrate successfully the operations of our dehlps and future acquired dealers. The systenitédes the interchange of information and
enhances cross-selling opportunities throughoutoorpany. The system integrates each level of tipagaon a company-wide basis,
including purchasing, inventory, receivables, ficiahreporting, budgeting, and sales managemerm.syetem also provides sales
representatives with prospect and customer infaomahat aids them in tracking the status of tleeintacts with prospects, automatically
generates follow-up correspondence to such prospiecilitates the availability of boats companydejilocates boats needed to satisfy
particular customer requests, and monitors the t@aémce and service needs of customers’ boatsiepresentatives also utilize the computer
system to assist in arranging customer financirjiasurance packages. Our managers use a web-{oad¢ol access essentially all financial
and operational data from anywhere at any time.

Products and Services

We offer new and used recreational boats and relataine products, including engines, trailersiggamnd accessories. While we sell a
broad range of new and used boats, we focus oniymeirand products. In addition, we assist in agiag related boat financing, insurance,
and extended service contracts; provide boat meamiee and repair services; offer slip and storageramodations; provide boat and yacht
brokerage services; license a software applicdtiothird-party boat inventory listings; conducyacht charter business; and maintain a
Rewards Club program for our customers.
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New Boat Sales

We primarily sell recreational boats, includinggdare boats and fishing boats. The principal prizdwe offer are manufactured by
Brunswick, the leading worldwide manufacturer afreational boats, including Sea Ray pleasure bBatston Whaler fishing boats, Cabo
Yachts, Hatteras Yachts, and Meridian Yachts.dodi 2011, we derived approximately 48% of our nexefrom the sale of new boats
manufactured by Brunswick. We believe that we repnéed approximately 7% of all of Brunswick’'s marproduct sales during that period.
Certain of our dealerships also sell luxury yacfishing boats, and pontoon boats provided by ot@nufacturers, including Italy-based
Azimut. During fiscal 2011, new boat sales accodrite 60.6% of our revenue.

We offer recreational boats in most market segmdnitshave a particular focus on premium qualigagure boats and yachts as refle
by our fiscal 2011 average new boat sales pri@pfoximately $126,000, a decrease of approximdi@¥y from approximately $145,000 in
fiscal 2010, compared with an estimated industerage calendar 2010 selling price of approxima#&ly,000 based on industry data publis
by the National Marine Manufacturers Associatioived our locations in some of the more affluenfsiobre boating areas in the United States
and emphasis on high levels of customer serviceselle relatively higher percentage of large ratiomal boats, such as mega-yachts, yachts,
and sport cruisers. We believe that the produesliwe offer are among the highest quality withiirthespective market segments, with well-
established trade-name recognition and reputafamguality, performance, and styling.

The following table is illustrative of the rangedaapproximate manufacturer suggested retail peinge of new boats that we currently
offer, but is not all inclusive.

Manufacturer Suggested

Product Line and Trade Name Overall Length Retail Price Range
Motor Yachts
Hatteras Motor Yacht 54 to 10C + $3,000,000 to $10,000,00
Azimut 3¢ to 11€ + 790,000 to 12,000,00!
Convertibles
Hatteras Convertible 54 to 77+ 2,300,000 to 7,000,00!
Cabo 32" to 57 475,000 to 2,000,00(
Pleasure Boats
Sea Ray 18 to 61 21,000 to 2,500,0(
Meridian 34 to 54 300,000 to 1,600,0(
Bayliner 1€ to 32 13,000 to 155,0(
Fishing Boats
Boston Whale 11 to 37 8,000 to 400,0C
Grady White 18 to 3¢ 40,000 to 500,0¢
Ski Boats
Malibu 20" to 2% 44,000 to 88,0C
AXis 20" to 27 35,000 to 38,0C
Nautique by Correct Cra 21’ to 2% 57,000 to 105,0(

Motor Yachts Hatteras Yachts and Azimut are two of the dsrpremier yacht builders. The motor yacht prodings typically
include state-of-the-art designs with live-aboandukies. Hatteras offers a flybridge with extengivest seating; covered aft deck, which may
be fully or partially enclosed, providing the baanéth additional living space; an elegant salamg anultiple staterooms for accommodations.
Azimut yachts are known for their Americanized opeyout with Italian design and powerful performan@he luxurious interiors of Azimut
yachts are accented by windows and multiple accotatians that have been designed for com

Convertibles Hatteras Yachts and Cabo Yachts are two ofvibriéd’s premier convertible yacht builders andeoftate-of-the-art
designs with liveaboard luxuries. Convertibles are primarily fishiregsels, which are well equipped to meet the nekdgen the most seriol
tournament-class competitor. Hatteras featuresiamnge
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that offer luxurious salon/galley arrangements,tipld staterooms with private heads, and a codkpit includes a bait and tackle center,
fishbox, and freezer. Cabo is known for spacioukpits and accessibility to essentials, such aschaists, livewells, bait prep centers, and
tackle lockers. Cabo interiors offer elegance, lggited by teak woodwork, halogen lighting, and érgtorage areas.

Pleasure Boats Sea Ray and Meridian pleasure boats targétthetluxury and the family recreational boatingke#s and come in a
variety of configurations to suit each customes@stigular recreational boating style. Sea Ray spachts and yachts serve the luxury segment
of the recreational boating market and includedbhe line living accommodations with a salonuliyf equipped galley, and multiple
staterooms. Sea Ray sport yachts and yachts aiteldean cabin, bridge cockpit, and cruiser mod&lea Ray sport boat and sport cruiser
models are designed for performance and depentyatoilimeet family recreational needs and includeyraf the features and accommodations
of Sea Ray’s sport yacht and yacht models. Meridort yachts and yachts are known for their gpdidormance and thoughtful use of space
with 360-degree views and spacious salon, galleg,stateroom accommodations. Meridian sport yaatsyachts are available in sedan,
motoryacht, and pilothouse models. All Sea RayMeddian pleasure boats feature custom instrumiemahat may include an electronics
package; various hull, deck, and cockpit desigas¢hn include a swim platform; bow pulpit and edidridge; and various amenities, such as
swivel bucket helm seats, lounge seats, sun pagthays, built-in ice chests, and refreshment esnBayliner sport boat and sport cruiser
models are designed for performance and depentyatoilimeet family recreational needs at lower ppots. Most Sea Ray, Bayliner, and
Meridian pleasure boats feature Mercury or Mer@uéengines.

Fishing Boats The fishing boats we offer, such as Boston Mtha@nd Grady White, range from entry level modeladvanced models
designed for fishing and water sports in lakesshapd off-shore waters, with cabins with limitegtaboard capability. The fishing boats
typically feature livewells, in-deck fishboxes, rmdders, rigging stations, cockpit coaming padsl, fsesh and saltwater washdowns.

Ski Boats The ski boats we offer, such as Malibu, Azisgd Nautique by Correct Craft, range from entrelexwodels to advanced
models, all of which are designed to achieve amalie wake for increased skier and wakeboardepopeence and safety. With a variety of
designs and options, the ski boats we offer willesgd to the competitor and recreational user alike.

Used Boat Sales

We sell used versions of the new makes and modelsfier and, to a lesser extent, used boats of otlaces and models generally taken
as trade-ins. During fiscal 2011, used boat saleswnted for 19.0% of our revenue, and 77.1% ofided boats we sold were Brunswick
models.

Our used boat sales depend on our ability to scaustgply of high-quality used boats at attracgixiees. We acquire substantially all of
our used boat inventory through customer tradeWesintend to continue to increase our used bosihbas as a result of the availability of
quality used boats generated from our new boas &dferts, the increasing number of used boatsateatvell-maintained through our service
initiatives, including our Premium Certified Pre-©&d Program, our ability to market used boats thinout our combined dealership network
to match used boat demand, and the experiencer giagtit brokerage operations. Additionally, subsgdly all of our used boat inventory is
posted on our website, which expands the awarergsavailability of our products to a large auden€ boating enthusiasts. We also sell t
boats at various marinas and other offsite locatithnoughout the country.

To further enhance our used boat sales, we lauretigdmium Certified Pre-Owned Program, or PCP@sdaal 2008. Generally, PCPO
boats are less than four years old, have passb@-pdint inspection, and carry a one year warraididitionally, we offer the Sea Ray Legacy
warranty plan available for used Sea Ray boatsthesssix years old. The Legacy plan applies thepmlifying used Sea Ray boat, which has
passed a 48-point inspection, and provides pratectyainst failure of most mechanical parts fotaithree years. We believe these programs
enhance our sales of used Sea Ray boats by mogvatirchasers of used Sea Ray boats to complétgtirehases through our Sea Ray
dealerships.
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We recently established a web-based listing sefeicendividuals and boat dealers to list theirdibeats for sale. Similar to other web-
based listing services, the listings are offeredugh a tiered pricing strategy ranging from a béfsee” package to premium packages for a
designated period of time. We also help facilitikes by connecting buyers with independent sepriceiders that offer boat inspections, boat
transportation, and boat financing. We generaterreg for boat listings from sellers, lead generafiom service providers, and display
advertising from service providers.

Marine Engines, Related Marine Equipment, and Boagj Parts and Accessories

We offer marine engines and propellers, substaytdl of which are manufactured by Mercury Marieglivision of Brunswick. We sell
marine engines and propellers primarily to retagtomers as replacements for their existing engingsopellers. Mercury Marine has
introduced various new engine models that redugeeremissions to comply with current Environmeifadtection Agency requirements. See
“Business — Environmental and Other RegulatoryéssuAn industry leader for almost six decades,ddgr Marine specializes in state-of-
the-art marine propulsion systems and accessdi@sy of our dealerships have been recognized bycigriMarine as “Premier Service
Dealers.” This designation is generally awardedetas meeting certain standards and qualifications.

We also sell a broad variety of marine parts amgssories at our retail locations, at various tfications, through our print catalog,
and through our newly enhanced website portal. &lnegrine parts and accessories include marine@hécs; dock and anchoring products,
such as boat fenders, lines, and anchors; boats;dvailer parts; water sport accessories, suthlees, lines, wakeboards, and skies; engine
parts; oils; lubricants; steering and control systpcorrosion control products, service produdgh+performance accessories, such as
propellers and instruments; and a complete lingoating accessories, including life jackets, irdtdés, and water sports equipment. We also
offer novelty items, such as shirts, caps, andeeplates bearing the manufacturer’s or dealegsd.

Our in-store parts and accessories efforts have &geanded with more products, enhanced displaygspeore focused marketing efforts.
In order to serve customers in locations where avaat have retail locations, we have embarked @roaggressive print catalog and web
presence, which carry substantially more produws pbffered at our retail locations and are coridggtrograms to sell parts and accessori
various offsite locations. In all of our parts aaxtessories business, we utilize our industry kadgeé and experience to offer boating
enthusiasts high-quality products with which wedaxperience.

The sale of marine engines, related marine equipraed boating parts and accessories accountéZ®s of our fiscal 2011 revenue.

Maintenance, Repair, and Storage Services

Providing customers with professional, prompt naiiaince and repair services is critical to our sefiests and contributes to our
success. We provide maintenance and repair ser@icgasst of our retail locations, with extendedvger hours at certain of our locations. In
addition, in many of our markets, we provide molpil@intenance and repair services at the locatidheo€ustomer’s boat. We believe that this
service commitment is a competitive advantage énntlarkets in which we compete and is critical toeftorts to provide a troublfree boating
experience. To further this commitment, in cer@fiour markets, we have opened stand-alone maintenand repair facilities in locations that
are more convenient for our customers and thaeass the availability of such services. We als@belthat our maintenance and repair
services contribute to strong customer relatiorshipd that our emphasis on preventative maintereamtguality service increases the
potential supply of well-maintained boats for osed boat sales.

We perform both warranty and nevarranty repair services, with the cost of warrambyk reimbursed by the manufacturer in accordi
with the manufacturer’s warranty reimbursement prog For warranty work, most manufacturers, inetgdBrunswick, reimburse a
percentage of the dealer’s posted service labesratith the percentage varying depending on théds customer satisfaction index rating
and attendance at service
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training courses. We derive the majority of our raaty revenue from Brunswick products, as Brunsvaickducts comprise the majority of
products sold. Certain other manufacturers reimbwarranty work at a fixed amount per repair. Beedooat manufacturers permit warranty
work to be performed only at authorized dealershisreceive substantially all of the warrantedntexiance and repair work required for the
new boats we sell. The third-party extended wayranhtracts we offer also result in an ongoing dednfar our maintenance and repair
services for the duration of the term of the exeshdarranty contract.

Our maintenance and repair services are performedanufacturer-trained and certified service teclamis. In charging for our
mechanics’ labor, many of our dealerships use iabkrrate structure designed to reflect the difficand sophistication of different types of
repairs. The percentage markups on parts are siynilased on manufacturer suggested prices andaneokditions for different parts.

At many of our locations, we offer boat storage/@ess, including in-water slip storage and insidd autside land storage. These storage
services are offered at competitive market ratesiaclude in-season and winter storage.

Maintenance, repair, and storage services accofioté&d9% of our revenue during fiscal 2011. Tmislides warranty and non-warranty
services.

F&I Products

At each of our retail locations and at various itdftocations, we offer our customers the abiliyfihance new or used boat purchases anc
to purchase extended service contracts and ariasgeance coverage, including boat property, cildditand accident, disability, and casualty
insurance coverage (collectively, “F&I").

We have relationships with various national mapneduct lenders under which the lenders purchédsd estallment contracts
evidencing retail sales of boats and other marimdyxts that are originated by us in accordanck aitsting pre-sale agreements between us
and the lenders. These arrangements permit usedvesa portion of the finance charges expectdietearned on the retail installment contract
based on a variety of factors, including the cretiinding of the buyer, the annual percentageofdtee contract charged to the buyer, and the
lender’s then current minimum required annual peiage rate charged to the buyer on the contradcs. gdrticipation is subject to repayment
by us if the buyer prepays the contract or defawmitisin a designated time period, usually 90 to #&9s. To the extent required by applicable
state law, our dealerships are licensed to originad sell retail installment contracts financing sale of boats and other marine products.

We also offer third-party extended service congactder which, for a predetermined price, we prewtl designated services pursuant to
the service contract guidelines during the contiereh at no additional charge to the customer alaodeductible. While we sell all new boats
with the boat manufacturex'standard hull warranty of generally five yeard atandard engine warranty of generally one yedeneled servic
contracts provide additional coverage beyond tine firame or scope of the manufacturer’s warrantyctasers of used boats generally are
able to purchase an extended service contract,ietlemselected boat is no longer covered by thaufacturer’'s warranty. Generally, we
receive a fee for arranging an extended servic&aomn Most required services under the contragtpeovided by us and paid for by the third-
party contract holder.

We also are able to assist our customers with piperdunity to purchase credit life insurance, aenidand disability insurance, and
property and casualty insurance. Credit life inaaeapolicies provide for repayment of the boatditing contract if the purchaser dies while
the contract is outstanding. Accident and disapilisurance policies provide for payment of the thipncontract obligation during any period
in which the buyer is disabled. Property and cdguasurance covers loss or damage to the boatd®fet act as an insurance broker or agent
or issue insurance policies on behalf of insuMdfs.do, however, provide marketing activities antteotrelated services to insurance companies
and brokers for which we receive marketing feese Ohour strategies is to generate increased magkites by offering more competitive
insurance products.

During fiscal 2011, fee income generated from F&dqucts accounted for 2.7% of our revenue. We telibat our customers’ ability to
obtain competitive financing quickly and easilyoatr dealerships complements our ability to sell et used boats. We also believe our
ability to provide customer-tailored financing ofisame-
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day” basis gives us an advantage over many of our camnsetparticularly smaller competitors that lable resources to arrange boat finant
at their dealerships or that do not generate sefficolume to attract the diversity of financirmusces that are available to us.

Brokerage Services

Through employees or subcontractors that are lemthsat or yacht brokers, we offer boat or yacbkérage services at most of our re
locations. For a commission, we offer for sale lerekl boats or yachts, listing them on various eesites, advising our other retail locations
of their availability through our integrated comgusystem, and posting them on our web siteyw.MarineMax.com Often sales are co-
brokered, with the commission split between theilmgiyand selling brokers. We believe that our actegmtential used boat customers and
methods of listing and advertising customdnsikered boats or yachts is more extensive thgypisal among brokers. In addition to genera
revenue from brokerage commissions, our brokeragaces also enable us to offer a broad array ed iats or yachts without increasing
related inventory costs. During fiscal 2011, brelggr service commissions accounted for 2.6% ofexarue.

Our brokerage customers generally receive the $éghelevel of customer service as our new and bsed customers. Our waterfront
retail locations enable in-water demonstrationarobn-site brokered boat. Our maintenance andireeaiices, including mobile service, also
are generally available to our brokerage custonTérs.purchaser of a boat brokered through us @sdake advantage of MarineMax
Getaways! weekend and day trips and other rendszyatherings and in-water events, as well as hpatation and safety seminars. We
believe that the array of services we offer arguaiin the brokerage business.

Inventory Listing

We have developed and license to independent demter brokers a software application under whiehdisalers and brokers can list tl
boat inventories for sale, which can then be posierher websites selected by the dealers ancelsoWe charge these dealers and brokel
up and monthly fees.

Yacht Charter

We recently launched a yacht charter business iohwle offer customers the opportunity to char@wer and sailing yachts in exotic
destinations, starting with our initial locationttme British Virgin Islands. This business ent#ils sale by us of specifically designed yachts to
third parties for inclusion in our yacht chartexdt; a yacht management agreement under which gactdrs enable us to put their yachts in
our yacht charter program for a period of fourite fyears for a fixed monthly fee payable by us; services in storing, insuring, and
maintaining their yachts; and the charter by uthe§e yachts to vacation customers at agreed &eble to us. The yacht owners will be able
to utilize the yachts for personal use for a desigd number of weeks during the term of the managéagreement and take possession of
their yachts following the expiration of the yachénagement agreements.

Offsite Sales

We sell used boats, offer F&I products, and saftgpand accessories at various third-party oftsitations, including marinas.

Rewards Club

We maintain a Rewards Club for our customers. Gawdtd Club offers members discounts on service walperform as well discour
on parts and accessories that we sell at our tetations, by print catalog, or online.
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Retail Locations

We sell our recreational boats and other marindymts and offer our related boat services througtefail locations in Alabama,
Arizona, California, Colorado, Connecticut, Floridzeorgia, Kansas, Maryland, Minnesota, MissoueywNersey, New York, North Carolina,
Ohio, Oklahoma, Rhode Island, Tennessee, and TExa$. retail location generally includes an indstoowroom (including some of the
industry’s largest indoor boat showrooms) and asida area for displaying boat inventories, a bessnoffice to assist customers in arranging
financing and insurance, and maintenance and régulities.

Many of our retail locations are waterfront propeston some of the nation’s most popular boatiegtions, including the San Diego Bay
in California; Norwalk Harbor in Connecticut; muyilk& locations on the Intracoastal Waterway, thaitit Ocean, Biscayne Bay, Boca Ciega
Bay, Naples Bay, Tampa Bay, and the Caloosahathes in Florida; Lake Lanier in Georgia; ChesapeBay in Maryland; Leech Lake and
the St. Croix River in Minnesota; Lake of the Ozgré&nd Table Rock Lake in Missouri; Barnegat Bagkd Hopatcong, Little Egg Harbor B
and the Manasquan River in New Jersey; Great SBagdthe Hudson River, and Huntington Harbor in Néavk; Masonboro Inlet in North
Carolina; Lake Erie in Ohio; Grand Lake in Oklahgmeannessee River in Tennessee; and Clear Lakd,akelLewisville in Texas. Our
waterfront retail locations, most of which incluarina-type facilities and docks at which we digpdar boats, are easily accessible to the
boating populace, serve as in-water showroomseaatlle the sales force to give customers immedtiatater demonstrations of various boat
models. Most of our other locations are in closexpnity to water.

Operations
Dealership Operations and Management

We have adopted a generally decentralized approeitie operational management of our dealershigslé/éertain administrative
functions are centralized at the corporate lewelal management is primarily responsible for thetdaday operations of the retail locations.
Each retail location is managed by a store manages,oversees the day-to-day operations, persoanélfinancial performance of the
individual store, subject to the direction of aicegl manager, who generally has responsibilitytfier retail locations within a specified
geographic region. Typically, each retail locat@dso has a staff consisting of an F&l manager,respaanager, and a service manager, sales
representatives, maintenance and repair technjcaasvarious support personnel.

We attempt to attract and retain quality employaesur retail locations by providing them with oinggtraining to enhance sales
professionalism and product knowledge, career azbraent opportunities within a larger company, anfable benefit packages. We
maintain a formal training program, called MarineManiversity or MMU, which provides training for grioyees in all aspects of our
operations. Training sessions are held at our uaniegional locations covering a variety of topM#4U-online offers various modules over
Internet. Highly trained, professional sales repmatives are an important factor to our successfigls efforts. These sales representatives are
trained at MMU to recognize the importance of fastg an enjoyable sales process, to educate custamehe operation and use of the boats,
and to assist customers in making technical andjdekecisions in boat purchases. The overall fafddMU is to teach our core retailing
values, which focus on customer service.

Sales representatives receive compensation prin@arih commission basis. Each store manager imaethemployee with incentive
bonuses based on the performance of the managktdig. Maintenance and repair service managesve compensation on a salary basis
with bonuses based on the performance of theirrttapats. Our management information system prowéded store and department manager
with daily financial and operational informatiomabling them to monitor their performance on aydaileekly, and monthly basis. We have a
uniform, fully integrated management informatiostgym serving each of our dealerships.
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Sales and Marketing

Our sales philosophy focuses on selling the plessaf the boating lifestyle. We believe that thidaal elements of our sales philosophy
include our appealing retail locations, no-hasalesapproach, highly trained sales representatigis level of customer service, emphasis on
educating the customer and the customer’s familpaat usage, and providing our customers with dppdres for boating. We strive to
provide superior customer service and support befturing, and after the sale.

Each retail location offers the customer the opputy to evaluate a large variety of new and useatdin a comfortable and convenient
setting. Our full-service retail locations facitiéaa turn-key purchasing process that includeadite lender financing packages, extended
service agreements, and insurance. Many of ouit letations are located on waterfronts and matimdsch attract boating enthusiasts and
enable customers to operate various boats prioraking a purchase decision.

We sell our boats at posted MarineMax One Pricasghnerally represent a discount from the manufacs suggested retail price. Our
sales approach focuses on customer service by mingncustomer anxiety associated with price negiatin.

As a part of our sales and marketing efforts, vge glarticipate in boat shows and in-the-water satesits at area boating locations,
typically held in January and February and towarldnd of the boating season, in each of our msdet in certain locations in close
proximity to our markets. These shows and evemsiarmally held at convention centers or marinath) area dealers renting space. Boat
shows and other offsite promotions are an importantie for generating sales orders. The boat shtsesggenerate a significant amount of
interest in our products resulting in boat salésrahe show.

We emphasize customer education through onerneducation by our sales representatives asona locations, our delivery captai
before and after a sale, and through in-house semfor the entire family on boat safety, the us# @peration of boats, and product
demonstrations. Typically, one of our delivery @ps or the sales representative delivers the meste boat to an area boating location and
thoroughly instructs the customer about the opamatif the boat, including hanas instructions for docking and trailering the bdai enhanc
our customer relationships after the sale, we atlsponsor MarineMax Getaways! group boating topgrious destinations, rendezvous
gatherings, and on-the-water organized eventtioahote the pleasures of the boating lifestyle hE@ampany-sponsored event, planned and
led by a company employee, also provides a faverat@dium for acclimating new customers to boatihigring exciting boating destinations,
creating friendships with other boaters, and engllis to promote actively new product offeringbdating enthusiasts.

As a result of our relative size, we believe weehacompetitive advantage within the industry bingeble to conduct an organized and
systematic advertising and marketing effort. PAduw marketing effort includes an integrated pexgtpmanagement system that tracks the
status of each sales representative’s contactsantiospect, automatically generates follow-upespondence, facilitates company-wide
availability of a particular boat or other marin@guct desired by a customer, and tracks the nraantse and service needs for the customer’s
boat.

Suppliers and Inventory Management

We purchase substantially all of our new boat inegndirectly from manufacturers, which allocatennigoats to dealerships based on the
amount of boats sold by the dealership. We alsbamxge new boats with other dealers to accommodaterner demand and to balance
inventory.

We purchase new boats and other marine-relatedipt®@ffom Brunswick, which is the world’s largesamufacturer of marine products,
including Sea Ray, Boston Whaler, Bayliner, Cabattétas, Harris, and Meridian. We also purchaselmmats and other marine related
products from other manufacturers, including AzisBenetti Group, Grady White, Tracker Marine, Malilaund Nautique by Correct Craft. In
fiscal 2011, sales of new Brunswick boats accoufdaedpproximately 48% of our revenue. No purchafasew boats and other marine rele
products from any other manufacturer accountednfmre than 10% of our revenue in fiscal 2011. Wéelbelour Sea Ray boat purchases
represented approximately 41% of Sea Ray’s newdalas and approximately 7% of all Brunswick mapneduct sales during fiscal 2011.
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We have entered into multi-year agreements witmBwick covering Sea Ray, Boston Whaler, Baylineh&; Hatteras, and Meridian
products. We typically deal with each of our mawtiigers, other than Brunswick, under an annualheweable, non-exclusive dealer
agreement.

The dealer agreements do not restrict our rigketbany product lines or competing products. Trens of each dealer agreement
appoints a designated geographical territory ferdbaler, which is exclusive to the dealer so lsthe dealer is not in breach of the material
obligations and performance standards under theeaggnt and then current material policies and progrfollowing notice and the expiration
of any applicable cure periods without cure.

Manufacturers generally establish prices on an alnpasis, but may change prices in their sole digmr. Manufacturers typically
discount the cost of inventory and offer inventbnancing assistance during the manufacturers’ sleasons, generally October through
March. To obtain lower cost of inventory, we strivecapitalize on these manufacturer incentivaake product delivery during the
manufacturers’ slow seasons. This permits us to gacing advantages and better product availghdlitring the selling season. Arrangements
with certain other manufacturers may restrict agintrto offer some product lines in certain markets

Upon the completion of the Surfside-3 acquisitiotMarch 2006, we became the exclusive dealer famAzBenetti Group’s Azimut
product line in the Northeast United States. Int&jper 2008, our geographic territory was expandédclude Florida. The Azimut dealer
agreement provides a geographic territory to prentoe product line and to network with the appratericlientele through various independent
locations designated for Azimut retail sales.

We transfer individual boats among our retail lamad to fill customer orders that otherwise migikte substantially longer to fill from t
manufacturer. This reduces delays in delivery, hiepmaximize inventory turnover, and assists imimmizing potential overstock or out-of-
stock situations. We actively monitor our inventtgyels to maintain levels appropriate to meetentranticipated market demands. We are
bound by contractual agreements governing the ataiunventory that we must purchase in any yeamflany manufacturer, but the failure to
purchase at agreed upon levels may result in sgedbcertain manufacturer incentives. We partiteipa numerous end-of-summer
manufacturer boat shows, which manufacturers spaosell off their remaining inventory at reduasasts before the introduction of new
model year products, typically beginning in July.

Inventory Financing

Marine manufacturers customarily provide interessistance programs to retailers. The interesttassis varies by manufacturer and r
include periods of free financing or reduced interate programs. The interest assistance mayitaljactly to the retailer or the financial
institution depending on the arrangements the nzatufer has established. We believe that our fiimgrerrangements with manufacturers are
standard within the industry.

We account for consideration received from our wead accordance with FASB Accounting Standarddif@Zmtion 605-50, “Revenue
Recognition, Customer Payments and Incentives” CAB5-50"). ASC 605-50 requires us to classifyiest assistance received from
manufacturers as a reduction of inventory costratated cost of sales as opposed to netting thstasse against our interest expense incurred
with our lenders. Pursuant to ASC 605-50, amouwstsived by us under our co-op assistance prognammsdur manufacturers are netted
against related advertising expenses.

We are party to an Inventory Financing Agreemenm (Credit Facility”) with GE Commercial Distribath Finance Company, or
GECDF. The Credit Facility provides a floor plangncing commitment of up to $150 million. The Ctdehcility matures on June 24, 2014
and is subject to extension for two one-year parigdbject to GECDF approval.

The interest rate for amounts outstanding undeCieelit Facility is 383 basis points above the am@th London Inter-Bank Offering
Rate. There is an unused line fee of ten basigpomthe unused portion of the line.
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The Credit Facility has certain financial covenafitse covenants include provisions that our levenragio not exceed 2.75to 1.0 and !
our current ratio must be greater than 1.2 to AtGeptember 30, 2011, we were in compliance wittha covenants under the Credit Facility.

The initial advance under the Credit Facility wasdito pay off our prior credit facility. Subsequadvances will be initiated by the
acquisition of eligible new and used inventory dlt tne re-advances against eligible new and usedritory that has been partially paid-off.
Advances on new inventory will mature 1,081 dagsrfthe original invoice date. Advances on usedritwy will mature 361 days from the
date we acquire the used inventory. Each advarggbigct to a curtailment schedule, which requines we pay down the balance of each
advance on a periodic basis starting after six hsnthe curtailment schedule varies based on heedf inventory and the value of the
inventory.

The collateral for the Credit Facility is all of opersonal property with certain limited exceptioNsne of our real estate has been
pledged for collateral for the Credit Facility.

We also are a party to an Inventory Financing Agrest (the “CGI Facility”) with CGI Finance, Inc.QGI"). The CGI Facility provides
a floor plan financing commitment of $30 milliondais designed to provide financing for our Azimoweéntory needs. The CGI Facility has a
term of approximately one year ending in August2athich is typical in the industry for similar flo plan facilities; however, each advance
under the CGlI Facility can remain outstanding ®mionths. The interest rate for amounts outstandittgr the CGI Facility is 350 basis
points above the one month London Inter-Bank OfifgiRate.

Advances under the CGI Facility will be initiateg the acquisition of eligible new and used inveptor will be re-advances against
eligible new and used inventory that has beenaglbripaid-off. Advances on new inventory will maeus50 days from the advance date.
Advances on used inventory will mature 366 daymftbe advance date. Each advance is subject tdailaent schedule, which requires that
we pay down the balance of each advance on a fiebadis starting after six months for used invensnd one year for new inventory. The
curtailment schedule varies based on the typevafitory.

The collateral for the CGI Facility is our entirgifut inventory financed by the CGI Facility witkrtain limited exceptions. None of ¢
real estate has been pledged for collateral foC@é Facility. We must maintain compliance with ieais covenants, including balance sheet
related covenants of current and leverage rat®deéined in the CGI Facility. The CGI Facility agemplates that other lenders may be added
by us to finance other inventory not financed urtlerCGI Facility, if needed.

At September 30, 2011, we owed an aggregate of.8XtBlion under the Credit Facility and the CGlIcily. Outstanding short-term
borrowings accrued interest at a rate of 4.0% &eptember 30, 2011, and the Credit Facility aedd| Facility provided us with an
additional net borrowing availability of approxiregt $53.2 million, based upon the outstanding beimg base availability. All indebtedness
associated with our real estate holdings were degaiing the fiscal year ended September 30, 2009.

Management Information System

We believe that our management information systehnich currently is being utilized by each of ouatigships and was developed over
a number of years through cooperative efforts witbmmon vendor, enhances our ability to integsateessfully the operations of our
dealerships and future acquisitions, facilitatesitiierchange of information, and enhances cratisgepportunities throughout our company.
The system integrates each level of operations@mgany-wide basis, including purchasing, inventogceivables, financial reporting,
budgeting, and sales management. The system enablesnonitor each dealership’s operations in otaléentify quickly areas requiring
additional focus and to manage inventory. The systbso provides sales representatives with prospettustomer information that aids them
in tracking the status of their contacts with pexsp, automatically generates follow-up correspandéo such prospects, facilitates the
availability of a particular boat company-wide, &es boats needed to satisfy a particular custoageiest, and monitors the maintenance and
service needs of customers’ boats. Company repsess also utilize the system to assist in arir@nfinancing and insurance packages.
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Brunswick Agreement Relating to Acquisitions

We and the Sea Ray Division of Brunswick are partiean agreement extending through December 2@t Htovides a process for the
acquisition of additional Sea Ray boat dealersdleatre to be acquired by us. Under the agreeraequisitions of Sea Ray dealers will be
mutually agreed upon by us and Sea Ray with redderéforts to be made to include a balance offadealers that have been successful
and those that have not been. The agreement peotlide Sea Ray will not unreasonably withhold @esent to any proposed acquisition of a
Sea Ray dealer by us, subject to the conditionfoghtin the agreement. Among other things, theeament provides for us to provide Sea Ray
with a business plan for each proposed acquisitimfyding historical financial and five-year projed financial information regarding the
acquisition candidate; marketing and advertisiramp] service capabilities and managerial and g&afonnel; information regarding the ability
of the candidate to achieve performance standaittifvdesignated periods; and information regardimgsuccess of our previous acquisitions
of Sea Ray dealers. The agreement also contem@ateRay reaching a good faith determination whektieacquisition would be in its best
interest based on our dedication and focus of reegwn the Sea Ray brand and Sea Ray’s cons@erdtany adverse effects that the
approval would have on the resulting territory égafation of adjacent or other dealers and theradesef any violation of applicable laws or
rights granted by Sea Ray to others.

Dealer Agreements with Brunswick

Brunswick, through its Sea Ray division, and weotigh our dealerships, are parties to Sales andc8ekgreements relating to Sea Ray
products extending through December 2015. Eacheasfet dealer agreements appoints one of our deigleesha dealer for the retail sale,
display, and servicing of designated Sea Ray pitsdparts, and accessories currently or in thedutold by Sea Ray. Each dealer agreement
designates a designated geographical territorthiodealer, which is exclusive to the dealer ag Emthe dealer is not in breach of the material
obligations and performance standards under treeaggnt and Sea Ray’s then current material polésidsprograms following notice and the
expiration of any applicable cure periods withoutec Each dealer agreement also specifies retaititms, which the dealer may not close,
change, or add to without the prior written conssrfea Ray, provided that Sea Ray may not unraddpmithhold its consent. Each dealer
agreement also restricts the dealer from sellidgerising (other than in recognized and estabtigharine publications), soliciting for sale, or
offering for resale any Sea Ray products outsgléeitritory without the prior written consent oféSeay as long as similar restrictions also
apply to all domestic Sea Ray dealers selling coaipga Sea Ray products. In addition, each dealeeagent provides for the lowest product
prices charged by Sea Ray from time to time torodloenestic Sea Ray dealers, subject to the dealeting all the requirements and conditi
of Sea Ray’s applicable programs and the righteaf Bay in good faith to charge lesser prices teralealers to meet existing competitive
circumstances, for unusual and non-ordinary busiogsumstances, or for limited duration promotigmagrams.

Among other things, each dealer agreement reqthieedealer to

» devote its best efforts to promote, display, adsertand sell Sea Ray products at each of itd tetaitions in accordance with the
agreement and applicable lav

 display and utilize at each of its retail locati@igns, graphics, and image elements with Sei's identification that positively refle
the Sea Ray image and promote the retail sale@Rag products

» purchase and maintain at all times sufficient ineenof current Sea Ray products to meet the retlerdemand of customers at each
of its locations and to meet Sea I's applicable minimum inventory requiremer

* maintain at each retail location, or at anotheeptable location, a service department that isgnigstaffed and equipped to serv
Sea Ray products promptly and professionally andamtain parts and supplies to service Sea Ragugte properly on a timely bas

» perform all necessary product rigging, installatiand inspection services prior to delivery to jmagers in accordance with Sea Ray’s
standards and perform p-sale services of all Sea Ray products sold by ¢aded and brought to the dealer for serv
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» provide or arrange for warranty and service workSea Ray products regardless of the selling dealeondition of sale

» exercise reasonable efforts to address circumsidanaghich another dealer has made a sale to gimaliretail purchaser wr
permanently resides within the de!s territory where such sale is contrary to thersgllleale’s Sales and Service Agreeme

» provide appropriate instructions to purchasersmm to obtain warranty and service work from thelee:

« furnish product purchasers with Sea ’s limited warranty on new products and with infotimia and training as to the safe and prc
operation and maintenance of the produ

» assist Sea Ray in performing any product defectracall campaigns

» achieve sales performance in accordance with fairaasonable standards and sales levels estabbgtfeea Ray in consultation with
the dealer based on factors such as populatiozs pakential, market share percentage of Sea Ralgts sold in the territory
compared with competitive products sold in theitery, local economic conditions, competition, psates history, number of retail
locations, and other special circumstances thataffagt the sale of Sea Ray products or the deialeach case consistent with
standards established for all domestic Sea Ragdestlling comparable produc

» provide designated financial information that arehtful and accurate

» conduct its business in a manner that preserves@mahces the reputation and goodwill of both Siaddd the dealer for providit
quality products and service

* maintain the financial ability to purchase and nteiimon hand and display Sea I's current product model

* maintain customer service ratings in compliancé\8éa Ra’s criteria;

» comply with those deal’s obligations that may be imposed or establishe8da/Ray applicable to all domestic Sea Ray de:
* maintain a financial condition that is adequatsatisfy and perform its obligations under the agresat;

» achieve within designated time periods or maintagtor dealer status (which is Sea Ray’s highegbpmance status) or other
applicable certification requirements as estabtisihem time to time by Sea Ray applicable to alindstic Sea Ray deale

» notify Sea Ray of the addition or deletion of aatail locations

» sell Sea Ray products only on the basis of Sei's published applicable limited warranty and makether warranty o
representations concerning the limited warrantpressed or implied, either verbally or in writir

» provide timely warranty service on all Sea Ray iaid presented to the dealer by purchasers indagoe with Sea Ray'then currel
warranty program applicable to all domestic Sea &Realers selling comparable Sea Ray products

» provide Sea Ray with access to the d¢s books and records and such other informatioreasRay may reasonably request to ve
the accuracy of the warranty claims submitted ta Bay by the dealer with regard to such warrargind.

Sea Ray has agreed to indemnify each of our deadgisist any losses to third parties resulting f&ea Rays negligent acts or omissic
involving the design or manufacture of any of itsgucts or any breach by it of the agreement. Bdchur dealers has agreed to indemnify Sea
Ray against any losses to third parties resultiomfthe dealer’s negligent acts or omissions inmgithe dealer’s application, use, or repair of
Sea Ray products, statements or representatiospeotfically authorized by Sea Ray, the installatd any after market components or any
other modification or alteration of Sea Ray produand any breach by the dealer of the agreement.
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Each dealer agreement may be terminated

* by Sea Ray, upon 60 days prior written noticehéf dealer fails or refuses to place a minimum stackrder of the next model y¢'s
products in accordance with requirements applicebldl Sea Ray dealers generally or fails to nitsdinancial obligations as they
become due to Sea Ray or to the d¢'s lenders

* by Sea Ray or the dealer, upon 60 days writterc@dti the other, in the event of a breach or defauthe other with any of the of tl
material obligations, performance standards, cavespaepresentations, warranties, or duties impbgetie agreement or the Sea Ray
manual that has not been cured within 60 dayseofititice of the claimed deficiency or within a i@aable period when the cure
cannot be completed within a 60-day period, ohatend of the 60-day period without the opportutatgure when the cause
constitutes bad faitt

* by Sea Ray or the dealer if the other makes a fii@atl misrepresentation that is material to theagrent or the other engages in an
incurable act of bad faitl

» by Sea Ray or the dealer in the event of the irsaly, bankruptcy, or receivership of the otl
» by Sea Ray in the event of the assignment of theeagent by the dealer without the prior writtensemt of Sea Ray

* by Sea Ray upon at least 15 days’ prior writtericeah the event of the failure to pay any sums a@ owing to Sea Ray that are not
disputed in good faith; ar

» upon the mutual consent of Sea Ray and the d¢

Employees

As of September 30, 2011, we had 1,203 employe&38 bf whom were in store-level operations andB&hom were in corporate
administration and management. We are not a pawyycollective bargaining agreements. We consider elations with our employees to
excellent.

Trademarks and Service Marks

We have registered trade names and trademarkgheith.S. Patent and Trademark Office for variouses including “MarineMax,”
“MarineMax Getaways,” “MarineMax Care,” “Deliverirthe Dream,” “MarineMax Delivering the Boating Dreg “Newcoast Financial
Services,” “MarineMax Boating Gear Center,” and “fven on Water.” We have registered the name “MariweNh the European
Community. We have trade name and trademark apiplicapending in Canada for various names, inclyiMarineMax,” “Delivering the
Dream,” and “The Water Gene.” There can be no assarthat any of these applications will be granted

Seasonality and Weather Conditions

Our business, as well as the entire recreatioratitg industry, is highly seasonal, with seasopalitrying in different geographic
markets. Over the thrgeear period ended September 30, 2011, the aveezgaue for the quarters ended December 31, Marchud® 30, ar
September 30 represented approximately 19%, 23%, a8d 30%, respectively, of our average annuamess. With the exception of Florir
we generally realize significantly lower sales &igher levels of inventories and related short-teorrowings, in the quarterly periods ending
December 31 and March 31. The onset of the publit bnd recreation shows in January stimulatesdzdes and typically allows us to reduce
our inventory levels and related short-term borraysithroughout the remainder of the fiscal year.

Our business is also subject to weather patterhigshamay adversely affect our results of operatiéits example, drought conditions (or
merely reduced rainfall levels) or excessive raiay close area boating locations or render boat&mgyerous or inconvenient, thereby
curtailing customer demand for our products. Initalll unseasonably cool weather and prolongedexicdnditions may lead to a shorter
selling season in certain
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locations. Hurricanes and other storms could résudisruptions of our operations or damage tolmat inventories and facilities, as has been
the case when Florida and other markets were affdzy hurricanes. Although our geographic divensitikely to reduce the overall impact to
us of adverse weather conditions in any one manlesgt, these conditions will continue to represet¢mial, material adverse risks to us and
our future financial performance.

Environmental and Other Regulatory Issues

Our operations are subject to extensive regulatiopervision, and licensing under various fedestalte, and local statutes, ordinances,
and regulations. While we believe that we maingdimequisite licenses and permits and are in caanpé with all applicable federal, state, and
local regulations, there can be no assurance thatilwbe able to maintain all requisite licenseasl @ermits. The failure to satisfy those and
other regulatory requirements could have a matadaérse effect on our business, financial corlitamd results of operations. The adoption
of additional laws, rules, and regulations coukbdlave a material adverse effect on our busivesfous federal, state, and local regulatory
agencies, including the Occupational Safety andthldadministration, or OSHA, the United States BEowvimental Protection Agency, or EPA,
and similar federal and local agencies, have jidgisth over the operation of our dealerships, refagilities, and other operations with respect
to matters such as consumer protection, workefstyseand laws regarding protection of the envirentincluding air, water, and soil.

The EPA has various air emissions regulations @lo@ard marine engines that impose more strictgars standards for two-cycle,
gasoline outboard marine engines. The majorithefdutboard marine engines we sell are manufactyédercury Marine. Mercury Maring’
product line of low-emission engines, including ®ptiMax, Verado, and other four-stroke outboaldsje achieved the EPA’s mandated 2006
emission levels. Any increased costs of producimgjrees resulting from EPA standards, or the ingbdf our manufacturers to comply with
EPA requirements, could have a material adversiedin our business.

Certain of our facilities own and operate undergabatorage tanks, or USTs, for the storage of varetroleum products. The USTs are
generally subject to federal, state, and local lang regulations that require testing and upgradfidSTs and remediation of contaminated
soils and groundwater resulting from leaking USfisaddition, if leakage from comparmwned or operated USTs migrates onto the propé
others, we may be subject to civil liability torthiparties for remediation costs or other damaBased on historical experience, we believe
our liabilities associated with UST testing, upgrsdand remediation are unlikely to have a matadsakrse effect on our financial condition or
operating results.

As with boat dealerships generally, and parts @&ndice operations in particular, our business imgslthe use, handling, storage, and
contracting for recycling or disposal of hazardousoxic substances or wastes, including envirortainsensitive materials, such as motor
waste motor oil and filters, transmission fluidtiteeze, freon, waste paint and lacquer thinnattebies, solvents, lubricants, degreasing
agents, gasoline, and diesel fuels.

Accordingly, we are subject to regulation by fediestate, and local authorities establishing resients for the use, management,
handling, and disposal of these materials and heaitd environmental quality standards, and ligbikiated thereto, and providing penalties
violations of those standards. We are also subjeletws, ordinances, and regulations governingstigation and remediation of contamination
at facilities we operate to which we send hazardwuexic substances or wastes for treatment, fexycor disposal.

We do not believe we have any material environnidiatailities or that compliance with environmentalvs, ordinances, and regulations
will, individually or in the aggregate, have a mi&kadverse effect on our business, financial o or results of operations. However, soil
and groundwater contamination has been known & akicertain properties owned or leased by ush®Ve also been required and may in the
future be required to remove aboveground and umdengl storage tanks containing hazardous substancesstes. As to certain of our
properties, specific releases of petroleum have beare in the process of being remedied in aeourd with state and federal guidelines. We
are monitoring the soil and groundwater as requiedpplicable state and federal guidelines. Intaald the shareholders of the acquired
dealers have indemnified us for
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specific environmental issues identified on envinemtal site assessments performed by us as pdwe efquisitions. We maintain insurance
for pollutant cleanup and removal. The coveragesgaythe expenses to extract pollutants from landater at the insured property, if the
discharge, dispersal, seepage, migration, releagscape of the pollutants is caused by or reBuolts a covered cause of loss. We also have
additional storage tank liability insurance and p8fund” coverage where applicable. In additiomtaia of our retail locations are located on
waterways that are subject to federal or state tagslating navigable waters (including oil polartiprevention), fish and wildlife, and other
matters.

Two of the properties we own were historically ussdyasoline service stations. Remedial action regpect to prior historical site
activities on these properties has been completaeddordance with federal and state law. Also,afreur properties is within the boundaries
a “Superfund” site, although neither property hasrbnor is expected to be identified as a contitiat the contamination in the area. We,
however, do not believe that these environmensaies will result in any material liabilities to us.

Additionally, certain states have required or amesidering requiring a license in order to opeeatecreational boat. While such licens
requirements are not expected to be unduly reiseiategulations may discourage potential firsteibuyers, thereby limiting future sales,
which could adversely affect our business, findnmadition, and results of operations.

Product Liability

The products we sell or service may expose us tiengial liabilities for personal injury or propertiamage claims relating to the use of
those products. Historically, the resolution ofguot liability claims has not materially affectedrdusiness. Our manufacturers generally
maintain product liability insurance, and we maimthird-party product liability insurance, which we belieeebe adequate. However, we n
experience legal claims in excess of our insuraoeerage, and those claims may not be covereddwyance. Furthermore, any significant
claims against us could adversely affect our bissinnancial condition, and results of operatiand result in negative publicity. Excessive
insurance claims also could result in increasedrarsce premiums.

Competition

We operate in a highly competitive environmentadidition to facing competition generally from reatien businesses seeking to attract
consumers’ leisure time and discretionary spenduitars, the recreational boat industry itselfighty fragmented, resulting in intense
competition for customers, quality products, bdedve space, and suitable retail locations. We relg tertain extent on boat shows to generate
sales. Our inability to participate in boat showsur existing or targeted markets could have aristadverse effect on our business, finar
condition, and results of operations.

We compete primarily with single-location boat @galand, with respect to sales of marine equipnpamts, and accessories, with
national specialty marine stores, catalog retgilgwsrting goods stores, and mass merchants. Ciimpetmong boat dealers is based on the
quality of available products, the price and vadfithe products, and attention to customer serndibere is significant competition both within
markets we currently serve and in new marketsweatnay enter. We compete in each of our markets retailers of brands of boats and
engines we do not sell in that market. In additeeveral of our competitors, especially thosersgllioating accessories, are large national or
regional chains that have substantial financiakketing, and other resources. However, we belibaédur integrated corporate infrastructure
and marketing and sales capabilities, our costttre, and our nationwide presence enable us tpetmeffectively against these companies.
Private sales of used boats represent an additsgraficant source of competition.

23



Table of Contents

Executive Officers

The following table sets forth information concerieach of our executive officers:

Name Age Position

William H. McGill Jr. 67 Chairman of the Board, President, Chief Executifc€r, and Directo
Michael H. McLamk 46 Executive Vice President, Chief Financial OfficBgcretary, and Directt
Edward A. Russe 51 Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Off

Kurt M. Frahn 43 Vice President of Finance, Chief Accounting Offiesd Treasure
Paulee C. Da 42 Vice President, General Counsel, and AssistanteSay

William H. McGill Jr. has served as the Chief Executive Officer of Mavlag since January 23, 1998 and as the ChairmamedBbard
and as a director of our company since March 63185. McGill served as the President of our compfrom January 23, 1988 until
September 8, 2000 and re-assumed the positionlprd JR002. Mr. McGill was the principal owner aptesident of Gulfwind USA, Inc., one
of our operating subsidiaries, from 1973 untilnterger with us.

Michael H. McLambhas served as Executive Vice President of our casnpence October 2002, as Chief Financial Officeces
January 23, 1998, as Secretary since April 5, 1868,as a director since November 1, 2003. Mr. Mdhaerved as Vice President and
Treasurer of our company from January 23, 1998 Qatiober 22, 2002. Mr. McLamb, a certified puldiccountant, was employed by Arthur
Andersen LLP from December 1987 to December 199%jrgy most recently as a senior manager.

Edward A. Russelias served as Executive Vice President and Chiefddipg Officer of our company since February 20d0.Russell
served as Executive Vice President of OperatiodsSales of our company from February 2008 untilréaty 2010. Mr. Russell served as \
President of Operations of our company from Mar@@&until February 2008, and as a Vice Presidenuoftompany from October 22, 2002
until March 2006. Mr. Russell served as the Redidfenager of our Florida operations from Augus2@02 until October 22, 2002 and as the
District President for our Central and West Florigieerations from March 1998 until August 1, 2002. Russell was an owner and General
Sales Manager of Gulfwind USA Inc., one of our @pieig subsidiaries, now called MarineMax of CenEialrida, from 1984 until its merger
with our company in March 1998.

Kurt M. Frahnhas served as Vice President of Finance and Trefagliour company since October 22, 2002 and asf@{ticounting
Officer since June 10, 2011. Mr. Frahn served asdbir of Taxes and Acquisitions of our companyrfriglay 15, 1998 until October 22, 20(
Mr. Frahn was employed by Arthur Andersen LLP frBaptember 3, 1991 until May 15, 1998, serving meatntly as a tax consulting
manager.

Paulee C. Dayas served as Vice President of our company siabeuBry 2009 and as General Counsel and Assiséanétary since
January 2003. Ms. Day, an active member of thedddBar, was employed by Maxxim Medical from Mayd92o November 2002, serving as
Vice President, General Counsel, and Secretargr Rrithat time, Ms. Day was Corporate Attornejekerd Corporation from June 1997
through May 1999 and a corporate attorney at thefilen Trenam, Kemker, Scharf, Barkin, Frye, O’Neaihd Mullis, P.A. from January 1995
through June 1997.
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Iltem 1A. Risk Factors

General economic conditions and consumer spendidt@rns can negatively impact our operating resuléd the severe recession that
began in late 2007 has adversely affected the bwatndustry and our company.

General economic conditions and consumer spenditigrps can negatively impact our operating resultdavorable local, regional,
national, or global economic developments or uadeties regarding future economic prospects coedllice consumer spending in the markets
we serve and adversely affect our business. Ecanoomditions in areas in which we operate dealpsstparticularly Florida in which we
generated 45%, 54%, and 50% of our revenue duisaglf2009, 2010, and 2011, respectively, can lawajor impact on our operations.

Local influences, such as corporate downsizingitanl base closings, and inclement weather, alstdcadversely affect our operations in
certain markets.

In an economic downturn, consumer discretionaryndjpey levels generally decline, at times resuliimdisproportionately large
reductions in the sale of luxury goods. Consumendjmng on luxury goods also may decline as a resuitwer consumer confidence levels,
even if prevailing economic conditions are favoeatfllthough we have expanded our operations dyr@rgds of stagnant or modestly
declining industry trends, the cyclical naturelod tecreational boating industry or the lack ofuistdy growth could adversely affect our
business, financial condition, or results of opersat in the future. Any period of adverse econoaainditions or low consumer confidence h
negative effect on our business.

Lower consumer spending resulting from a downtarthe housing market and other economic factoretaely affected our business in
fiscal 2007 and continued weakness in consumerdspgmesulting from substantial weakness in thariirial markets and deteriorating
economic conditions had a very substantial negatifect on our business in fiscal 2008, 2009, 2@h@, 2011. Our revenue decreased from
$1.2 billion in fiscal 2007, to $885.4 million imstal 2008, to $588.6 million in fiscal 2009, to5§43 million in fiscal 2010, and increased
slightly to $480.9 million in fiscal 2011. Our eargs decreased from a net income of $20.1 milliofiscal 2007 to a net loss of $134.3 million
in fiscal 2008 (including a $122.1 million goodwiithpairment charge), a net loss of $76.8 milliofiggal 2009, net income of $2.5 million in
fiscal 2010 (including a $19.2 million tax refundpd a net loss of $11.5 million in fiscal 2011 %k substantially deteriorating economic and
financial conditions have had a greater impact amyrother participants in the boating industry hvagértain manufacturers and dealers ceasing
business operations or filing for bankruptcy. Whhie reduction in boating industry participants migave a long-term positive impact on our
company’s competitive position, we are facing arpgeet to continue to face short-term competitivesgure resulting from decreased selling
prices as a result of forced sales and other lafidds of excess inventory.

These conditions caused us to defer our acquigitiogram, delay new store openings, reduce ountove purchases, engage in
inventory reduction efforts, close a number of @iail locations, reduce our headcount, and ameaddeplace our credit facility. While we
believe the steps we have taken to date will enabl® emerge from the current economic environrasra stronger and more profitable
company, we cannot predict the length or sevefith@se unfavorable economic or financial condgion the extent to which they will
adversely affect our operating results nor can kedipt the effectiveness of the measures we haente address this environment or whether
additional measures will be necessary. A contilomadif depressed economic factors could have additivegative effects on our company,
including interfering with our supply of certaindmds by manufacturers, reduced marketing and sthport by manufacturers, decreased
revenue, additional pressures on margins, andadluré to satisfy covenants under our credit agesgm

The availability and costs of borrowed funds canvadsely affect our ability to obtain adequate baaventory and the ability and
willingness of our customers to finance boat purces.

The availability and costs of borrowed funds caweasely affect our ability to obtain and maintadtequate boat inventory and the
holding costs of that inventory as well as theigb#dnd willingness of our customers to financettmarchases. As of September 30, 2011, we
had no long-term debt. We rely on our credit féeii to purchase and maintain our inventory of ©0@ur ability to borrow under our credit
facilities
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depends on our ability to continue to satisfy awemants and other obligations under our credilifias. The aging of our inventory limits our
borrowing capacity as defined provisions in ouddréacilities reduce the allowable advance rateasinventory ages. Our access to funds
under our credit facilities also depends upon thility of our lenders, GECDF and CGl, to meet tHfaimding commitments, particularly if they
experience shortages of capital or experience skaegolumes of borrowing requests from othersrye short period of time. A continuation
of depressed economic conditions, weak consumedgpg turmoil in the credit markets, and lenddficlilties could interfere with our ability
to maintain compliance with our debt covenantstangtilize our credit facilities to fund our opeiats. Accordingly, it may be necessary fol
to close additional stores, further reduce our egpestructure, or modify the covenants with oudés. Any inability to utilize our credit
facilities or the acceleration of amounts owedyltésy from a covenant violation, insufficient caléral, or lender difficulties, could require us
to seek other sources of funding to repay amounttstanding under our credit facilities or replacesapplement our credit facilities, which rr
not be possible at all or under commercially reabtenterms.

Our Credit Facility with GECDF provides a floor pléinancing commitment of $150 million, and the G&zlcility provides a floor plan
financing commitment of $30 million. The collatefat our Credit Facility with GECDF is all of ouepsonal property with certain limited
exceptions, and our collateral for the CGI Facilityur entire Azimut inventory financed by the G&&cility with certain limited exceptions.
None of our real estate has been pledged as callateder either facility. As of September 30, 204& were in compliance with all of tl
Credit Facility covenants and our additional ava#aborrowings under our credit facilities were apgmately $53.2 million based upon the
outstanding borrowing base availability.

Similarly, decreases in the availability of crealitd increases in the cost of credit adversely affecability of our customers to purchase
boats from us and thereby adversely affects odityatm sell our products and impacts the profitéypiof our finance and insurance activities.
Tight credit conditions during fiscal 2008, fis@409, fiscal 2010, and fiscal 2011 adversely affiéche ability of customers to finance boat
purchases, which had a negative affect on our dpgreesults.

Our strategies to enhance our performance may netduccessful.

We are increasing our efforts to grow our financamgl insurance, parts and accessory, service, ghahter, and boat storage businesses
to better serve our customers and thereby increasmue and improve profitability to these highergin businesses. In addition, we have
implemented aggressive programs to substantiathease the sale over the Internet of used boats, pacessories, and a wide range of
boating supplies and products. These efforts aograms are designed to increase our revenue andeedir dependence on the sale of new
boats. These business initiatives will requireaiadd personnel, enter businesses in which we tlhave extensive experience, and encounter
substantial competition. As a result, our strate¢fieenhance our performance may not be successfulve may increase our expenses.

Our success depends to a significant extent onwledl being, as well as the continued popularity areputation for quality of the boating
products, of our manufacturers, particularly Brunsiek’'s Sea Ray, Boston Whaler, Cabo, Hatteras, andrdian boat lines and Azimut-
Benetti Group’s Azimut products.

Approximately 48% of our revenue in fiscal 2011ule=d from sales of new boats manufactured by Brigls including approximately
32% from Brunswick’s Sea Ray division and approxehal6% from Brunswick’s other divisions. The rander of our fiscal 2011 revenue
from new boat sales resulted from sales of produets a limited number of other manufacturers, nofiehich accounted for more than 10%
of our revenue.

We depend on our manufacturers to provide us wibkycts that compare favorably with competing patglin terms of quality,
performance, safety, and advanced features, imguttie latest advances in propulsion and navigatystems. Any adverse change in the
production efficiency, product development effotesshnological advancement, marketplace acceptamadketing capabilities, and financial
condition of our manufacturers, particularly Brumsgiven our reliance on Sea Ray, Cabo, BayliBeiston Whaler, Hatteras, and Meridian,
would have a substantial adverse impact on ounkasi Any difficulties encountered by any of oumnrfacturers,
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particularly Brunswick, resulting from economimdincial, or other factors could adversely affeetdhality and amount of products that they
are able to supply to us and the services and sughay provide to us.

The interruption or discontinuance of the operatiohBrunswick or other manufacturers could caisstolexperience shortfalls,
disruptions, or delays with respect to needed itargn Although we believe that adequate alternateces would be available that could
replace any manufacturer other than Brunswick g®duct source, those alternate sources may navdikable at the time of any interruption,
and alternative products may not be available atparable quality and prices.

We maintain dealer agreements with Brunswick conpB8ea Ray products. Each dealer agreement hakisgyear term and provides for
the lowest product prices charged by the Sea Ragialh of Brunswick from time to time to other dostie Sea Ray dealers. These terms are
subject to

» the dealer meeting all the requirements and carditof Sea Ré' s applicable programs; a
« the right of Brunswick in good faith to charge kesprices to other deale

» to meet existing competitive circumstanc

» for unusual and nc-ordinary business circumstances

« for limited duration promotional prograrr

Each dealer agreement designates a specific gdogahperritory for the dealer, which is exclusiethe dealer so long as the dealer is
not in breach of the material obligations and penfance standards under the agreement and SeatRey’surrent material policies and
programs following notice and the expiration of applicable cure periods without cure.

We also maintain dealer agreements with Hatterasrotg Hatteras products. Each agreement allowteket to revise prices at any tir
and such new prices will supersede previous prieessuant to the agreements, we must bear anyslaessacur as a result of such price
changes and may not recover from Hatteras for @sgels. In addition, certain of our dealerships n@yrepresent manufacturers or product
lines that compete directly with Hatteras withdstgrior written consent.

Upon the completion of the Surfside-3 acquisitiotMarch 2006, we became the exclusive dealer famAzBenetti Group’s Azimut
product line for the Northeast United States. Ipt8@mber 2008, our geographic territory was expandéaclude Florida. The Azimut dealer
agreement provides a geographic territory to prenttme product line and to network with the appratgriclientele through various independent
locations designated for Azimut retail sales.

As is typical in the industry, we generally deathwinanufacturers, other than the Sea Ray divisi@runswick, under renewable annual
dealer agreements. These agreements do not camtaicontractual provisions concerning product pgadr required purchasing levels. Pric
is generally established on a model year basisskaubject to change in the manufacturer’s sderdtion. Any change or termination of these
arrangements for any reason could adversely gifectuct availability and cost and our financialfpemance.

Boat manufacturers exercise substantial control ovar business.

We depend on our dealer agreements. Through degleements, boat manufacturers, including Brunsveg&rcise significant control
over their dealers, restrict them to specified fimres, and retain approval rights over changesanagement and ownership, among other
things. The continuation of our dealer agreemeiitts most manufacturers, including Brunswick, dependon, among other things, our
achieving stated goals for customer satisfactitinga and market share penetration in the markeedeby the applicable dealership. Failur
meet the customer satisfaction, market share gaatspther conditions set forth in any dealer agese could have various consequences,
including the following:

« the termination of the dealer agreemt
» the imposition of additional conditions in subsesfudealer agreement
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« limitations on boat inventory allocatior

» reductions in reimbursement rates for warranty waekKormed by the deale
* loss of certain manufacturer to dealer incentioe:

» denial of approval of future acquisitior

Our dealer agreements with certain manufactunectyding Brunswick, do not give us the exclusiyghtito sell those manufacturers’
products within a given geographical area. Accayljyina manufacturer, including Brunswick, couldtarize another dealer to start a new
dealership in proximity to one or more of our lacas, or an existing dealer could move a dealergh#location that would be directly
competitive with us. These events could have a madidverse effect on our competitive position éindncial performance.

The failure to receive rebates and other dealerémtives on inventory purchases or retail sales abglbstantially reduce our margins.

We rely on manufacturers’ programs that providentives for dealers to purchase and sell partidwdat makes and models or for
consumers to buy particular boat makes or modely.éliminations, reductions, limitations, or otlebranges relating to rebate or incentive
programs that have the effect of reducing the benet receive, whether relating to the abilitynodinufacturers to pay or our ability to qualify
for such incentive programs, could increase thectiffe cost of our boat purchases, reduce our maagid competitive position, and have a
material adverse effect on our financial perforneanc

Fuel prices and supply may affect our business.

All of the recreational boats we sell are powergdli@sel or gasoline engines. Consequently, amrimggon in the supply, or a significant
increase in the price or tax on the sale of fueh@agional or national basis could have a matadaérse effect on our sales and operating
results. Increases in fuel prices (such as thaaeottcurred during fiscal 2008) negatively impamatosales. At various times in the past, diesel
or gasoline fuel has been difficult to obtain. Bupply of fuels may be interrupted, rationing mayilaposed, or the price of or tax on fuels
may significantly increase in the future, adverselpacting our business.

The availability of boat insurance is critical touw success.

The ability of our customers to secure reasonatity@able boat insurance that is satisfactory twérs that finance our customers’
purchases is critical to our success. Historicaffordable boat insurance has been available. Wehurricanes that have impacted the sta
Florida and other markets over the past severaby@eurance rates have escalated and insurameeage has become more difficult to obti
In addition, as a severe storm approaches langranse providers cease underwriting until the stba® passed. This loss of insurance pre
lenders from lending. As a result, sales of boatste temporarily halted making our revenue diffitupredict and potentially causing sale:
be cancelled. Any difficulty of customers to obtaiifordable boat insurance could impede boat saldsadversely affect our business.

Other recreational activities and poor industry pEaption can adversely affect the levels of boatghases.

Other recreational activities and poor industrycpetion can adversely affect the levels of boatipases. As a seller of high-end
consumer products, we must compete for discretjosiending with a wide variety of other recreaticaivities and consumer purchases. In
addition, perceived hassles of boat ownership afadively poor customer service and customer edut#iiroughout the retail boat industry
represent impediments to boat purchases. Our cestoemtric strategy is intended to overcome thesegptions.

Adverse federal tax policies can have a negativfeetfon us.

Changes in federal and state tax laws, such ampwsition of luxury taxes on new boat purchaseggimses in prevailing tax rates, and
removal of certain interest deductions, also infeeeconsumersiecisions to purchase products we offer and coanle fa negative effect on ¢
sales. For example, during 1991 and 1992,
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the federal government imposed a luxury tax on ressreational boats with sales prices in exces400%00, which coincided with a sharp
decline in boating industry sales from a high ofrentthan $17.9 billion in 1988 to a low of $10.3libit in 1992. Any increase in tax rates,
including those on capital gains and dividendstipalarly those on high-income taxpayers, couldeadely affect our boat sales.

The expansion and success of our on-line businesdesends on our ability to provide quality servimeour Internet customers, and our
future growth will be negatively impacted if we anet able to provide such services.

Our on-line businesses are subject to a numbaeskaf and uncertainties that are beyond our coritraluding the following:

» changes in technolog

» changes in consumer willingness to purchase preduatthe Internet, including increases in consupnisacy concerns relating to the
Internet;

* Dbreaches of Internet securi
* increases in software filters that may inhibit ability to market our products and services overltiternet

» changes in applicable federal and state regulasioch as the Federal Trade Commission Act, theGraidit Reporting Act, and the
Gramn-Leact-Bliley Act and similar types of international law

« failure of our Internet service providers to penfiatheir services properly and in a timely and é&fit manner

« failures in our infrastructure or by third partissich as telephone or electric power service, tiagtih website downtime or oth
problems;

« failure by us to process on-line customer ordecsigtely and timely, which may negatively impacttbfuture on-line and in-store
purchases by such custome

« inability of our suppliers to provide warehousinmgldulfillment services, which may negatively impé&ature or-line purchases b
customers

» our failure to assess and evaluate our supplieessare that we offer products that are desireldaging enthusiast

» the potential exposure to liability with respecthad-party information, including copyright oaitemark infringement or other
wrongful acts of third parties; false or erronefsrmation provided by third parties; or illegaltavities by third parties, such as the
sale of stolen boats or other goods;

» changing laws, rules, and regulations, such asgrnpesition of taxes, that could affect the desireansumers to purchase goods over
the Internet

If we are not able to provide satisfactory sentiweur Internet customers, our future growth wélddversely affected. Further, we may
also be vulnerable to competitive pressures froemgtiowing e-commerce activity in our market, bathiteey may impact our own on-line
business, and as they may impact the operatindtsesu investment values of our existing physicahtions.

Our recently launched yacht charter business exp®ss to certain risks.

Our recently launched yacht charter business erttedl sale by us of specifically designed yachthkitd parties for inclusion in our yacht
charter fleet; a yacht management agreement ungiehwacht owners enable us to put their yachtaimyacht charter program for a period of
four to five years for a fixed monthly fee payableus; our services in storing, insuring, and naimihg their yachts; and the charter by us of
these yachts to
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vacation customers at agreed fees payable to ufa@ure to find purchasers for yachts intendeddor charter fleet will increase our boat
inventory and related operating costs; and ouunffaito generate a sufficient number of vacatiomten@ustomers will require us to absorb all
the costs of the monthly fees to the yacht ownemell as other operating costs.

Customers consider safety and reliability a prin@ogicern in selecting a yacht charter provider.htabarter may present a number of
safety risks, including catastrophic disaster, aslveveather and marine conditions, mechanicalr&agund collision. If we are unable to
maintain acceptable records for safety and reltgbdur ability to retain current customers antleait new customers may be adversely
affected. Additionally, any safety issue encourdataring a yacht charter may result in claims agfairs as well as negative publicity. These
events could have a material adverse effect ondh®etitive position and financial performance of oore boat sales business.

The yacht charter business is also highly fragmgrdensisting primarily of local operators and frhisees. Competition among charter
operators is based on location, the type and digaaits offered, charter rates, destinations sedsand attention to customer service. Yacht
charters also face competition from other travel lefsure options, including, but not limited touises, hotels, resorts, theme parks, organized
tours, land-based casino operators and vacatiori@hip properties. We therefore risk losing busmest only to other charter operators, but
also to vacation operators that provide such ateres.

Our success depends, in part, on our ability to tioane to make successful acquisitions and to intaty the operations of acquired dealt
and each dealer we acquire in the future.

Since March 1, 1998, we have acquired 21 recredltiomat dealers, two boat brokerage operationsfvaadull-service yacht repair
facilities. Each acquired dealer operated indepethgerior to its acquisition by us. Our succespat®ls, in part, on our ability to continue to
make successful acquisitions and to integrate pleeations of acquired dealers, including centnadjziertain functions to achieve cost savings
and pursuing programs and processes that promopecation and the sharing of opportunities anduess among our dealerships. We may
not be able to oversee the combined entity efftbjesr to implement effectively our growth and ogting strategies. To the extent that we
successfully pursue our acquisition strategy, eaulting growth will place significant additionatmhands on our management and
infrastructure. Our failure to pursue successfally acquisition strategies or operate effectively ¢ombined entity could have a material
adverse effect on our rate of growth and operagigrformance.

Unforeseen expenses, difficulties, and delays fregtly encountered in connection with rapid expansithrough acquisitions could
inhibit our growth and negatively impact our profibility.

Our growth strategy of acquiring additional recieadl boat dealers involves significant risks. Tétistegy entails reviewing and
potentially reorganizing acquired business openaticorporate infrastructure and systems, and diahnontrols. Unforeseen expenses,
difficulties, and delays frequently encounteredamnection with rapid expansion through acquis&ioauld inhibit our growth and negatively
impact our profitability. We may be unable to idgnsuitable acquisition candidates or to comptéte acquisitions of candidates that we
identify. Increased competition for acquisition datates or increased asking prices by acquisitiordcates may increase purchase prices for
acquisitions to levels beyond our financial caggbdr to levels that would not result in the retsirequired by our acquisition criteria.
Acquisitions also may become more difficult in fhéure as we acquire more of the most attractivaats. In addition, we may encounter
difficulties in integrating the operations of aced dealers with our own operations or managingiaed dealers profitably without substantial
costs, delays, or other operational or financiabfgms.

We may issue common or preferred stock and indostamtial indebtedness in making future acquisitidrhe size, timing, and
integration of any future acquisitions may caudestantial fluctuations in operating results fronagar to quarter. Consequently, operating
results for any quarter may not be indicative @ftbsults that may be achieved for any subsequemtay or for a full fiscal year. These
fluctuations could adversely affect the market g€ our common stock.
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Our ability to continue to grow through the acqtigsi of additional dealers will depend upon varifastors, including the following:

 the availability of suitable acquisition candidaé¢sttractive purchase prict

the ability to compete effectively for availablegacsition opportunities

+ the availability of borrowed funds or common stedkh a sufficient market price to complete the dsifions;
« the ability to obtain any requisite manufacturegovernmental approval

« the ability to obtain approval of our lender under current credit agreement;

» the absence of one or more manufacturers attemfatiimypose unsatisfactory restrictions on us innemtion with their approval
acquisitions

As a part of our acquisition strategy, we frequertigage in discussions with various recreationat lealers regarding their potential
acquisition by us. In connection with these disirss we and each potential acquisition candidath@nge confidential operational and
financial information, conduct due diligence indges, and consider the structure, terms, and camditdf the potential acquisition. In certain
cases, the prospective acquisition candidate agieds discuss a potential acquisition with artyeotparty for a specific period of time, grants
us an option to purchase the prospective dealex étmsignated price during a specific time, anéegto take other actions designed to enh
the possibility of the acquisition, such as prepgiaudited financial information and convertingatounting system to the system specifier
us. Potential acquisition discussions frequentke talace over a long period of time and involvdidifit business integration and other issues,
including in some cases, management successioretatdd matters. As a result of these and othéorfsica number of potential acquisitions
that from time to time appear likely to occur dd result in binding legal agreements and are nosemmated.

We may be required to obtain the consent of Brunskvand various other manufacturers prior to the agigition of other dealers.

In determining whether to approve acquisitions, nfacturers may consider many factors, includingfmancial condition and
ownership structure. Manufacturers also may imposglitions on granting their approvals for acqiasis, including a limitation on the
number of their dealers that we may acquire. Oiityalo meet manufacturersequirements for approving future acquisitions Wwalve a direc
bearing on our ability to complete acquisitions afféct our growth strategy. There can be no asserthat a manufacturer will not terminate
its dealer agreement, refuse to renew its dealereagent, refuse to approve future acquisitionsalee other action that could have a material
adverse effect on our acquisition program.

We and the Sea Ray Division of Brunswick have ae@gent extending through June 2015 that provigeseess for the acquisition of
additional Sea Ray boat dealers that desire techei@d by us. Under the agreement, acquisitioreaf Ray dealers will be mutually agreed
upon by us and Sea Ray with reasonable efforte tméde to include a balance of Sea Ray dealerbaiatbeen successful and those that
not been. The agreement provides that Sea Rayatilinreasonably withhold its consent to any prepdacquisition of a Sea Ray dealer by
subject to the conditions set forth in the agreem@mong other things, the agreement requires ysdeide Sea Ray with a business plan for
each proposed acquisition, including historicaafinial and five-year projected financial informatiegarding the acquisition candidate;
marketing and advertising plans; service capabiliind managerial and staff personnel; informatgarding the ability of the candidate to
achieve performance standards within designatdédgserand information regarding the success ofppevious acquisitions of Sea Ray deal
The agreement also contemplates Sea Ray reaclgiogdafaith determination whether the acquisitioruldde in its best interest based on our
dedication and focus of resources on the Sea Raydand Sea Ray’s consideration of any adverseteffieat the approval would have on the
resulting territory configuration and adjacent trery dealers sales and the absence of any violatiapplicable laws or rights granted by Sea
Ray to others.
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Our growth strategy also entails expanding our pebtines and geographic scope by obtaining addifidistribution rights from our
existing and new manufacturers. We may not be taldecure additional distribution rights or obtaintable alternative sources of supply if we
are unable to obtain such distribution rights. THability to expand our product lines and geograstiope by obtaining additional distribution
rights could have a material adverse effect orgtevth and profitability of our business.

Our growth strategy may require us to secure sideaint additional capital, the amount of which wilepend upon the size, timing, and
structure of future acquisitions and our working gatal and general corporate needs.

If we finance future acquisitions in whole or inrptrough the issuance of common stock or seesritonvertible into or exercisable for
common stock, existing stockholders will experiedietion in the voting power of their common staahkd earnings per share could be
negatively impacted. The extent to which we willdi#e and willing to use our common stock for asiigins will depend on the market value
of our common stock and the willingness of potérsédlers to accept our common stock as full otipbconsideration. Our inability to use our
common stock as consideration, to generate cashdperations, or to obtain additional funding thgbwebt or equity financings in order to
pursue our acquisition program could materiallyifiour growth.

Any borrowings made to finance future acquisitiongor operations could make us more vulnerablke d@wnturn in our operating
results, a downturn in economic conditions, or@ases in interest rates on borrowings that aresutyg interest rate fluctuations. If our cash
flow from operations is insufficient to meet oubtiservice requirements, we could be required Haadelitional equity securities, refinance our
obligations, or dispose of assets in order to roaetlebt service requirements. In addition, ouditr@rangements contain financial covenants
and other restrictions with which we must comphgliiding limitations on the incurrence of additibmalebtedness. Adequate financing may
not be available if and when we need it or mayh®oavailable on terms acceptable to us. The faitugbtain sufficient financing on favorable
terms and conditions could have a material advefifeet on our growth prospects and our businesantiial condition, and results of
operations.

Our internal growth and operating strategies of afiag new locations and offering new products invelvisk.

In addition to pursuing growth by acquiring boaalkées, we intend to continue to pursue a stratégyawth through opening new retail
locations and offering new products in our existamgl new territories. Accomplishing these goalsefqransion will depend upon a number of
factors, including the following:

 our ability to identify new markets in which we cabtain distribution rights to sell our existingamtditional product lines

» our ability to lease or construct suitable faaktiat a reasonable cost in existing or new mar

 our ability to hire, train, and retain qualifiedrpennel,

 the timely integration of new retail locations irgRisting operations

 our ability to achieve adequate market penetraidiavorable operating margins without the acqiaisiof existing dealers; ar
 our financial resource

Our dealer agreements with Brunswick require Bruals\® consent to open, close, or change retailtlona that sell Sea Ray products,
and other dealer agreements generally containasipibvisions. We may not be able to open and ¢p@ew retail locations or introduce new
product lines on a timely or profitable basis. Muvrer, the costs associated with opening new retzgltions or introducing new product lines
may adversely affect our profitability.
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As a result of these growth strategies, we exmeekpend significant time and effort in opening aesduiring new retail locations and
introducing new products. Our systems, procedw@strols, and financial resources may not be adedoasupport expanding operations. The
inability to manage our growth effectively couldvieaa material adverse effect on our business, ¢iahnondition, and results of operations.

Our planned growth also will impose significant addesponsibilities on members of senior manageamhtequire us to identify,
recruit, and integrate additional senior level nggera. We may not be able to identify, hire, omtrsiitable additions to management.

Our business, as well as the entire recreationabling industry, is highly seasonal, with seasonglitarying in different geographic
markets. In addition, weather and environmental atitions may adversely impact our business.

During the three-year period ended September 31,20e average revenue for the quarterly periods@
December 31, March 31, June 30, and Septembempd@sented 19%, 23%, 28%, and 30%, respectivelyuoaverage annual revenue. With
the exception of Florida, we generally realize gigantly lower sales and higher levels of invetggrand related short-term borrowings in the
quarterly periods ending December 31 and MarchTB&.onset of the public boat and recreation showlshuary stimulates boat sales and
allows us to reduce our inventory levels and relateort-term borrowings throughout the remaindeheffiscal year. Our business could
become substantially more seasonal as we acquaterdahat operate in colder regions of the UnBtates.

Weather and environmental conditions may advelisghact our operating results. For example, droeghtlitions, reduced rainfall
levels, excessive rain and environmental conditisash as the BP oil spill in the Gulf of Mexicoayiforce boating areas to close or render
boating dangerous or inconvenient, thereby cungitiustomer demand for our products. While we tiatklly maintain a full range of
insurance coverage for any such events, there €a lassurance that such insurance coverage igaédeq cover losses that we sustain as a
result of such disasters. In addition, unseasonaixy weather and prolonged winter conditions neadlto shorter selling seasons in certain
locations. Many of our dealerships sell boats tst@mers for use on reservoirs, thereby subjectimdpasiness to the continued viability of
these reservoirs for boating use. Although our gaaigic diversity and any future geographic expamgidl reduce the overall impact on us of
adverse weather and environmental conditions incen@ymarket area, weather and environmental congitivill continue to represent poten
material adverse risks to us and our future opaggierformance. As a result of the foregoing ameofactors, our operating results in some
future quarters could be below the expectatiors@tk market analysts and investors.

In addition, hurricanes and other storms couldltésuhe disruption of our operations or damageuo boat inventories and facilities as
has been the case when Florida and other marketsdea affected by hurricanes. While we traditiynalaintain property and casualty
insurance coverage for damage caused by hurricartesther storms, there can be no assurance ttairsurance coverage is adequate to
cover losses that we may sustain as a result oichnes and other storms.

We face intense competition.

We operate in a highly competitive environmentadidition to facing competition generally from nooakting recreation businesses
seeking to attract discretionary spending dollgrs recreational boat industry itself is highlygnaented and involves intense competition for
customers, product distribution rights, and sugakekail locations, particularly on or near wateysiaCompetition increases during periods of
stagnant industry growth. During the recent receggsie have also faced competition from banks digting repossessed boats.

We compete primarily with single-location boat @galand, with respect to sales of marine partgssories, and equipment, with
national specialty marine parts and accessoriessstoatalog retailers, sporting goods stores nheass merchants. Competition among boat
dealers is based on the quality of available prtsjube price and value of the products, and atterid customer service. There is significant
competition both within markets we currently seavel in new markets that we may enter. We compegadh of our markets with
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retailers of brands of boats and engines we daelbin that market. In addition, several of oumgeetitors, especially those selling marine
equipment and accessories, are large nationab@rral chains that have substantial financial, ratirig, and other resources. Private sales of
used boats represent an additional source of catiopet

Due to various matters, including environmentalagyns, permitting and zoning requirements, and &titiqn for waterfront real estate,
some markets in the United States have experiestéacreased waiting list for marina and storagglability. In general, the markets in
which we currently operate are not experiencingamysual difficulties. However, marine retail adtivcould be adversely effected in markets
that do not have sufficient marine and storagelabiity to satisfy demand.

We depend on income from financing, insurance, aextended service contracts.

A portion of our income results from referral fekgived from the placement or marketing of variinance and insurance, or F&lI,
products, consisting of customer financing, insaeaproducts, and extended service contracts, tis¢ significant component of which is the
participation and other fees resulting from oues#l customer financing contracts. During fiscal 2OF&I products accounted for 2.7% of our
revenue.

The availability of financing for our boat purchesand the level of participation and other feeg@aeive in connection with such
financing depend on the particular agreement batwaseand the lender and the current rate envirohrhenders may impose terms in their
boat financing arrangements with us that may baworhble to us or our customers, resulting in redutemand for our customer financing
programs and lower participation and other feest@uer financing became more difficult to securgrdufiscal 2008, which continued in
fiscal 2009, fiscal 2010, and fiscal 2011.

The reduction of profit margins on sales of F&I gwots or the lack of demand for or the unavailgbdif these products could have a
material adverse effect on our operating margins.

We depend on key personnel.

Our success depends, in large part, upon the eongjrefforts and abilities of our executive offiseAlthough we have employment
agreements with certain of our executive officers,cannot assure that these or other executivempeeswill remain with us. Expanding our
operations may require us to add additional exeeyiersonnel in the future. As a result of our déedized operating strategy, we also rely on
the management teams of our dealerships. In additie likely will depend on the senior managemdrany significant businesses we acquire
in the future. The loss of the services of one orarof these key employees before we are abldarecaaind retain qualified replacement
personnel could adversely affect our business.

The products we sell or service may expose us temq@l liability for personal injury or property dmage claims relating to the use of
those products.

Manufacturers of the products we sell generallynmtan product liability insurance. We also mainttiird-party product liability
insurance that we believe to be adequate. We magrience claims that are not covered by or thaireexcess of our insurance coverage. The
institution of any significant claims against usiltbsubject us to damages, result in higher insteaosts, and harm our business reputation
with potential customers.

Environmental and other regulatory issues may impacr operations.

Our operations are subject to extensive regulatiopervision, and licensing under various fedestalte, and local statutes, ordinances,
and regulations. The failure to satisfy those ath@oregulatory requirements could have a matadaerse effect on our business, financial
condition, and results of operations.

Various federal, state, and local regulatory agemdncluding the Occupational Safety and Healtm#dstration, or OSHA, the United
States Environmental Protection Agency, or EPA, simdlar federal and local agencies, have jurisdicover the operation of our dealerships,
repair facilities, and other operations, with
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respect to matters such as consumer protectiorkersirsafety, and laws regarding protection oféhgironment, including air, water, and soil.
The EPA promulgated emissions regulations for cartthanarine engines that impose stricter emissitarglards for two-cycle, gasoline
outboard marine engines. The majority of the outtb@aarine engines we sell are manufactured by Mgrmelarine. Mercury Marine’s product
line of low-emission engines, including the OptiMaéerado, and other four-stroke outboards, havéesed the EPA’s mandated 2006
emission levels. Any increased costs of producmgjrees resulting from EPA standards or the ingbditour manufacturers to comply with
EPA requirements, could have a material adverseiedin our business.

Certain of our facilities own and operate undergbatorage tanks, or USTs, for the storage of varetroleum products. USTs are
generally subject to federal, state, and local land regulations that require testing and upgradfigSTs and remediation of contaminated
soils and groundwater resulting from leaking USMisaddition, we may be subject to civil liability third parties for remediation costs or other
damages if leakage from our owned or operated USi@sates onto the property of others.

Our business involves the use, handling, storagegcantracting for recycling or disposal of hazarslor toxic substances or wastes,
including environmentally sensitive materials, sashmotor oil, waste motor oil and filters, transsion fluid, antifreeze, freon, waste paint
lacquer thinner, batteries, solvents, lubricanggrdasing agents, gasoline, and diesel fuels. Aotgly, we are subject to regulation by federal,
state, and local authorities establishing invesibgeand health and environmental quality standaadd liability related thereto, and providing
penalties for violations of those standards.

We also are subject to laws, ordinances, and régofagoverning investigation and remediation aftemination at facilities we operate
or to which we send hazardous or toxic substancesstes for treatment, recycling, or disposapdrticular, the Comprehensive
Environmental Response, Compensation and Lialitty or CERCLA or “Superfund,” imposes joint, striand several liability on

» owners or operators of facilities at, from, or tbigh a release of hazardous substances has occ
» parties that generated hazardous substances thateleased at such facilities; e
» parties that transported or arranged for the tramapon of hazardous substances to such facil

A majority of states have adopted Superfund statcdenparable to and, in some cases, more stritigemtCERCLA. If we were to be
found to be a responsible party under CERCLA dmélar state statute, we could be held liable fibirevestigative and remedial costs
associated with addressing such contaminationddiitian, claims alleging personal injury or proedamage may be brought against us as a
result of alleged exposure to hazardous substarseling from our operations. In addition, certafrour retail locations are located on
waterways that are subject to federal or state fagslating navigable waters (including oil polariiprevention), fish and wildlife, and other
matters.

Soil and groundwater contamination has been knavexist at certain properties owned or leased byMeshave also been required and
may in the future be required to remove abovegramunderground storage tanks containing hazamsldustances or wastes. As to certain of
our properties, specific releases of petroleum teen or are in the process of being remediataddordance with state and federal guideli
We are monitoring the soil and groundwater as regudy applicable state and federal guidelines.ali¥e may have additional storage tank
liability insurance and Superfund coverage whemiegble. Environmental laws and regulations amaglex and subject to frequent change.
Compliance with amended, new, or more stringenslamregulations, more strict interpretations asemg laws, or the future discovery of
environmental conditions may require additionalengtitures by us, and such expenditures may be iaater

Two of the properties we own were historically ussdyasoline service stations. Remedial action regpect to prior historical site
activities on these properties has been completaddordance with federal and state law. Also,afreur properties is within the boundaries
a Superfund site, although neither property has #entified as a contributor to the contaminatiothe area.
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Additionally, certain states have required or amesidering requiring a license in order to opeeatecreational boat. These regulations
could discourage potential buyers, thereby limifinyre sales and adversely affecting our busirfesscial condition, and results of
operations.

The market price of our common stock could be suhjo wide fluctuations as a result of many factors
Factors that could affect the trading price of cemmon stock include the following:
* variations in our operating resul
« the thin trading volume and relatively small publl@at of our common stocl
 our ability to continue to secure adequate levefinancing;
 variations in sam-store sales
» general economic, political, and market conditic
» changes in earnings estimates published by ana
 the level and success of our acquisition progradhreaw store opening
 the success of dealership integrati
* relationships with manufacturel
» seasonality and weather conditio
» governmental policies and regulatio
» the performance of the recreational boat industryaneral; an
« factors relating to suppliers and competit

In addition, market demand for small-capitalizatetacks, and price and volume fluctuations in tioelsmarket unrelated to our
performance could result in significant fluctuasdn the market price of our common stock.

The performance of our common stock could advera#gct our ability to raise equity in the publi@arkets and adversely affect our
acquisition program.

The issuance of additional capital stock in the e, including shares that we may issue pursuantstock-based grants, including stock
option grants, and future acquisitions, may resutt dilution in the net tangible book value per shaiof our common stock.

Our board of directors has the legal power andaiithto determine the terms of an offering of &saof our capital stock, or securities
convertible into or exchangeable for these shaoethie extent of our shares of authorized and ueid€apital stock. The issuance of additional
common stock in the future, including shares thatmay issue pursuant to stock-based grants, imgugtock option grants, and future
acquisitions, may result in dilution in the netdéne book value per share of our common stock.

A substantial number of shares are eligible for tut sale.

As of September 30, 2011, there were 22,512,20@sltd our common stock outstanding. Substant&llgf these shares are freely
tradable without restriction or further registrationder the securities laws, unless held by arilis@é” of our company, as that term is defined
in Rule 144 under the securities laws. Shares Iekffiliates of our company, which generally indéuour directors, officers, and certain
principal stockholders, are
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subject to the resale limitations of Rule 144 dibsd below. Outstanding shares of common stocledsu connection with the acquisition of
any acquired dealers are available for resale bagirsix months after the respective dates of dggigitions, subject to compliance with the
provisions of Rule 144 under the securities laws.

As of September 30, 2011, we had issued optiopsitchase approximately 3,877,067 shares of comtomk and 620,972 restricted
stock awards under our incentive stock plan, andsauged 436,821 shares of common under our empkigek purchase plan. We have filed a
registration statement under the securities lawsgéster the common stock to be issued under thiass. As a result, shares issued under
plans will be freely tradable without restrictionless acquired by affiliates of our company, wht) be subject to the volume and other
limitations of Rule 144.

We may issue additional shares of common stockefeged stock under the securities laws as paahgfacquisition we may complete
in the future. If issued pursuant to an effectiegistration statement, these shares generallybwifteely tradable after their issuance by per
not affiliated with us or the acquired companies.

We do not pay cash dividends.

We have never paid cash dividends on our commark sto

Certain provisions of our restated certificate afdorporation and bylaws and Delaware law may maketange in the control of our
company more difficult to complete, even if a chanip control were in the stockholders’ interest pright result in a premium over the
market price for the shares held by the stockholsler

Our certificate of incorporation and bylaws divioler board of directors into three classes of dinecelected for staggered three-year
terms. The certificate of incorporation also pr@gdhat the board of directors may authorize thasisce of one or more series of preferred
stock from time to time and may determine the dghteferences, privileges, and restrictions axth#2 number of shares of any such series of
preferred stock, without any vote or action by stackholders. The board of directors may authdtieassuance of preferred stock with voting
or conversion rights that could adversely affeettbting power or other rights of the holders aihoaon stock. The certificate of incorporation
also allows our board of directors to fix the numbkdirectors and to fill vacancies on the boafdicectors.

We also are subject to the anti-takeover provis@frSection 203 of the Delaware General Corporatiaw, which prohibits us from
engaging in a “business combination” with an “ietted stockholder” for a period of three yearsrdfte date of the transaction in which the
person became an “interested stockholder,” unlesgtisiness combination is approved in a prescritether.

Certain of our dealer agreements could also matifiitult for a third party to attempt to acquiaesignificant ownership position in our
company. In addition, the stockholders’ agreemadtgovernance agreement will have the effect akiasing the control of our directors,
executive officers, and persons associated witinthe

Our sales of Azimut-Benetti Group products may havarsely affected by fluctuations in currency excige rates between the U.S. dollar
and the euro.

Products purchased from Italy-based Azimut-Ber@&ttiup are subject to fluctuations in the euro t8.Ulollar exchange rate, which
ultimately may impact the retail price at which @an sell such products. As a result, fluctuationthe value of the euro compared with the
U.S. dollar may impact the price points at whichaae sell profitably Azimut-Benetti Group producsd such price points may not be
competitive with other product lines in the Unitstates. Accordingly, such fluctuations in excharages ultimately may impact the amount of
revenue, cost of goods sold, cash flows, and egsnire recognize for the Azimut-Benetti Group prddines. The impact of these currency
fluctuations could increase, particularly if ouveaue from the Azimut-Benetti
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Group products increase as a percentage of olirévtenue. We also could incur losses from hedgiagsactions designed to reduce our risk
to fluctuation in exchange rates. We cannot pretieteffects of exchange rate fluctuations or cwyeate hedges on our operating results.
Therefore, in certain cases, we may, from timent@t enter into foreign currency cash flow hedgesetiuce the variability of cash flows
associated with firm commitments to purchase baatsyachts from Azimut-Benetti Group. We cannotiesshat our strategies will
adequately protect our operating results from ffects of exchange rate fluctuations.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Commen

Not applicable.

ltem 2.  Properties

We lease our corporate offices in Clearwater, BirWe also lease 29 of our retail locations utelses, many of which contain multi-
year renewal options and some of which grant tuistrfght of refusal to purchase the propertyaat ¥alue. In most cases, we pay a fixed
at negotiated rates. In substantially all of theestsd locations, we are responsible for taxestiesijiinsurance, and routine repairs and
maintenance. We own the property associated withtl2dr retail locations we operate and one joimtwes as noted below. Additionally, we
own seven retail locations that are currently aioae noted below.

The following table reflects the status, approxiensize, and facilities of the various retail looas we operate as of the date of this re

Square Operated
Location Location Type Footage(1 Facilities at Property Since(2) Waterfront
Alabama
Gulf Shores Company owne 4,000 Retail and servic 199¢ —
Arizona
Tempe Company owne 34,00C Retail and servic 1992 —
California
San Diegc Third-party leas 70C  Retail only 2011 San Diego Ba
Colorado
Grand Junctiol Third-party leas 9,30C Retail, service, and stora 1986 —
Connecticut
Norwalk Third-party leas: 7,000 Retail and servic 1994 Norwalk Harbor
Florida
Cape Haze(4 Company owne 18,00 Retall, 8 wet slip: — Intracostal Waterwa
Clearwatel Company owne 42,00C Retail and service; 20 wet sli 1973 Tampa Bay
Cocoa Company owne 15,00C Retail and servic 1968 —
Dania Company owne 32,00C  Repair and service; 16 wet sl 1991 Port Everglade
Destin Third-party leas 6,000  Retail and servic 2011 —
Fort Myers Third-party leas 8,00C  Retail and service; 18 wet sli 1983 Caloosahatchee Riv:
Jacksonville Company owne 15,00 Retail and servic 2004 —
Key Largo Third-party leas 8,90C Retail and service; 6 wet slij| 2002 Card Sounc
Miami Company owne 7,20C  Retail and service; 15 wet sli 1980 Little River
Miami Company owne 5,000 Service only; 11 wet slig 2005 Little River
Naples Company owne 19,60( Retail and service; 14 wet sli 1997 Naples Bay
North Palm Beach(4 Company owne 22,80C Retail and service; 8 wet sli| — Intracostal Waterwa
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Location
Panama Cit
Pensacol;
Pompano Beac
Pompano Beac
Sarasot:

St. Petersburg(:
Stuart

Tampa

Venice

Georgia

Buford (Atlanta)
Cumming (Atlanta
Kansas

Kansas City
Maryland
Baltimore

Joppa

White Mash(4;
Minnesota
Bayport
Rogers

Walker

Walker
Missouri
Kimberling City
Lake Ozark
Laurie(4)
Osage Beach(«
Springfield(4)
Nevada

Las Vegas(4
New Jersey
Brant Beact
Brick

Lake Hopatconq
Ship Bottom
Somers Point

New York
Copiague
Huntington

Location Type

Square
Footage(1

Third-party leas
Third-party leas
Company owne
Company owne
Third-party leas

Joint venture

Company owne
Company owne
Company owne

Company owne
Third-party leas

Third-party leas

Third-party leas
Company owne

Company owne

Third-party leas
Company owne
Company owne
Company owne

Third-party leas
Company owne
Company owne
Company owne
Company owne

Company owne

Third-party leas
Company owne
Third-party leas
Third-party leas
Third-party leas

Third-party leas
Third-party leas

10,50(
24,30(
23,00(

5,40(
26,50(

15,00(
29,10(
13,10(
62,00(

13,50(
13,00(

7,00(

7,60(
28,40(

19,80(

45(
70,00(
76,40(

6,80(

50C
60,30(
70C
2,00(
12,20(

21,60(

3,80(
20,00(
4,60(
19,30(
31,00(

15,00(
1,20(

Facilities at Property
Retail only; 8 wet slip:
Retail and servic
Retail and service; 16 wet sli
Retail and service; 24 wet sli
Retail, service, and storage;
wet slips
Yacht service, 20 wet slif
Retail and service; 66 wet sli
Retail and servic

Retail, service, and storage; 90

wet slips

Retail and servic
Retail and service; 50 wet sli

Retail only

Retail and service; 17 wet sl
Retail, service, and storage; 2
wet slips

Retail and servic

Retail only; 10 wet slip
Retail, service, and stora
Retail, service, and stora
Retail and service; 93 wet sli

Retail only; 7 wet slip:

Retail and service; 300 wet sli
Retail and servic

Retail and servic

Retail and servic

Retail and servic

Retail and service; 36 wet sli
Retail and service; 225 wet sli
Retail and service; 80 wet sli
Retail and servic

Retail, service and storage; 3¢
wet slips

Retail only
Retail and servic
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Operated
Since(2)

2011
1974
1990
2005
1972

2006
2002
1995
1972

2001
1981

2010

2005
1966

1996
1991
1989
1977

2000
1987

1965
1977
1998
1972
1987

1993
1995

Waterfront
Saint Andrew Bay

Intracoastal Waterwa
Intracoastal Waterwa
Sarasota Ba

Boca Ciega Ba
Intracoastal Waterwa

Intracoastal Waterway

Lake Lanier

Baltimore Inner Harba
Gunpowder Rive

St Croix River

Leech Lake

Table Rock Lake
Lake of the Ozark

Barnegat Ba)
Manasquan Rive
Lake Hopatcony

Little Egg Harbor Bay

Huntington Harbor an
Long Island Soun
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Location
Lindenhurst (Delivery Center)

Lindenhurst (Marina)

Manhattar
New Rochelle

North Carolina
Southport
Wrightsville Beacl
Ohio

Port Clinton

Oklahoma

Afton

Rhode Island
Newport
Tennesset¢
Chattanoog:
Texas

Lewisville (Dallas)
Seabrool

Location Type

Square
Footage(1.

Third-party leas

Third-party leas

Third-party leas
Third-party leas

Third-party leas
Third-party leas

Company owne

Third-party leas
Third-party leas
Third-party leas

Company owne
Company owne

54,00(

14,60(

1,20(
4,65(

1,60(
34,50(

80,00(

3,50(
70C
3,00¢

22,00(
32,00(

Facilities at Property

Retail, service, and dry storage

Marina and service; 370 wet slips

Retail only; 75 wet slip
Retail and servic

Retail only
Retail, service, and stora

Retail, service and storac
8 wet slips

Retail and service; 23 wet sli
Retail only
Retail only; 12 wet slip

Retail and servic
Retail and service; 30 wet sli

(1) Square footage is approximate and does not in@utkide sales space or dock or marina facili
(2) Operated since date is the date the facility waneg@ by us or opened prior to its acquisition hy
(3) Joint venture entered into with Brunswick to acquirarina and service facilit

(4) Owned location that is currently close

Operated
Since(2) Waterfront
1968 Neguntatogur
Creek to Great
South Bay
1968 Neguntatogur
Creek to Great
South Bay
1996 Hudson Rivel
2008 Long Island
Sound
2008  Cape Fear Rive
1996 Masonboro Inle
1997 Lake Erie
2003 Grand Lake
2011  Newport Harbol
2005 Tennessee Rive
2002 —
2002 Clear Lake
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Iltem 3. Legal Proceeding:

We are party to various legal actions arising eahdinary course of business. While it is not ifelaso determine the actual outcome of
these actions as of September 30, 2011, we doetiev/b that these matters will have a material extveffect on our consolidated financial
condition, results of operations, or cash flows.

Item 4. Removed and Reservi

PART II
ltem 5.  Market for the Registrar's Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters, asduer Purchases of Equity Securiti

Our common stock has been traded on the New YargkSExchange under the symbol HZO since our ingiddlic offering on June 3,
1998 at $12.50 per share. The following table feth high and low sale prices of the common stiacleach calendar quarter indicated as
reported on the New York Stock Exchange.

High Low

2009

First quartel $ 3.61 $1.1¢

Second quarte $ 6.1F $1.84

Third quarte! $ 8.52 $3.01

Fourth quarte $ 9.4¢€ $6.44
2010

First quarte! $11.9¢ $8.6%

Second quarte $12.7¢ $6.91

Third quartel $ 8.51 $6.17

Fourth quarte $ 9.6F $6.8E
2011

First quarte! $ 9.9¢ $7.92

Second quarte $10.6¢ $7.51

Third quarte! $ 9.67 $5.5C

Fourth guarter (through December 6, 20 $ 8.4¢ $5.51

On December 6, 2011, the closing sale price oftoarmon stock was $6.20 per share. On Decemberl8, #ere were approximately
100 record holders and approximately 5,000 bersgftiners of our common stock.

Dividends

We have never declared or paid cash dividends ooa@umon stock. We currently plan to retain anyesys to finance the growth of ¢
business rather than to pay cash dividends. Pagnoéminy cash dividends in the future will dependbar financial condition, results of
operations, and capital requirements as well asrdétttors deemed relevant by our board of dirsctor
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Performance Graph

The following line graph compares cumulative tataickholder returns for the five years ended Sepé&rB0, 2011 for (i) our common
stock, (ii) the Russell 2000 Index, and (iii) thaddaq Retail Trade Index. The graph assumes astimeat of $100 on September 30, 2006.
The calculations of cumulative stockholder retunrttee Russell 2000 Index and the Nasdaq RetaileThadiex include reinvestment of
dividends. The calculation of cumulative stockholdgurn on our common stock does not include estwment of dividends because we dic
pay any dividends during the measurement period.historical performance shown is not necessardjcative of future performance.

COMPARISON OF 5 YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN *
Among MarineMayx, Inc., the Russell 2000 Index
and the NASDAQ Retail Trade Index
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* $100 invested on 9/30/06 in stock or index, inalgdieinvestment of dividends. Fiscal year endingt&aber 30

The performance graph above shall not be deemiledi™fior purposes of Section 18 of the Securiti@stiange Act of 1934, as amended,
or Exchange Act, or otherwise subject to the ligbif that section. The performance graph abovenei be deemed incorporated by refere
into any filing of our company under the Exchangs ér the Securities Act of 1933, as amended.
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Selected Financial Dat:

The following table contains certain financial aygkrating data and is qualified by the more dedailensolidated financial statements
and notes thereto included elsewhere in this reppbi balance sheet and statement of operatioasagat derived from the consolidated
financial statements and notes thereto that hage badited by Ernst & Young LLP, an independenisteged certified public accounting firm.
The financial data shown below should be read ijuwection with the consolidated financial statensesntd the related notes thereto and
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Finan€ahdition and Results of Operations” included elsesg in this report.

Iltem 6.

Fiscal Year Ended September 30,
2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
(Amounts in thousands except share, per share, amdtail location data)

Statement of Operations Data:

Revenue $ 1,255,98! $ 885,40° $ 588,58! $ 450,34( $ 480,89
Cost of sale: 956,25 679,16« 499,92! 339,53: 361,40(
Gross profil 299,73« 206,24 88,66( 110,80° 119,49:
Selling, general, and

administrative expenst 245,22: 217,42t 159,99¢ 123,97: 127,89¢
Goodwill and intangible asset

impairment charg — 122,09: — — —
Income (loss) from operatiol 54,51( (133,279 (71,339 (13,165 (8,402
Interest expense, n 26,95¢ 20,16/ 14,06+ 3,92¢ 3,48¢
Income (loss) before income t

provision (benefit 27,55t (153,439 (85,409 (17,09 (11,890
Income tax provision (benefi 7,48¢ (19,16 (8,630) (19,589 (367)
Net income (loss $  20,06¢ $ (134,27) $ (76,77)) $ 2,497 $ (11,52)
Net income (loss) per shal

Diluted $ 1.04 $ 7.3C $ 4.1]) $ 0.11 $ (0.52)
Weighted average number

shares

Diluted _19,289,23 _18,391,48 _18,685,42 _22,597,95 _22,375,27
Other Data (as of yea-end):
Number of retail locations(? 88 80 55 56 54
Sales per store(2)(: $  15,24¢ $ 12,49 $ 11,28¢ $ 8,77¢ $ 9,91:
Same-store sales growth(3)(: D% (28)% (29% (17)% 8%

September 30,
2007 2008 2009 2010 2011

Balance Sheet Data
Working capital $170,38¢ $134,45¢ $ 97,17¢ $102,05! $ 97,71¢
Total asset 825,87¢ 661,32 393,64« 336,76( 363,12¢
Goodwill and other intangible assets, 121,17: — — — —
Long-term debt (including current portion)( 30,83t — — — —
Total stockholder equity 373,55¢ 248,58: 197,75t 202,03( 195,00(

(1) Includes only those retail locations open at peend.
(2) Includes only those stores open for the entireqtieg 1:-month period
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(3) New and acquired stores are included in the conbpalemse at the end of the s’s thirteenth month of operatior

(4) A store is one or more retail locations that aja@eht or operate as one entity. Sales per statsam-store sales growth is intended o
as supplemental information and is not a substftuteevenue or net income presented in accordasitbegenerally accepted accounting
principles.

(5) Amount excludes our sheterm borrowings for working capital and inventoiyancing.

ltem 7. Managemen's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition drkResults of Operation

The following should be read in conjunction withrRaincluding the matters set forth in the “RB&ctors” section of this report, and our
Consolidated Financial Statements and notes thareliecded elsewhere in this report.

Overview

We are the largest recreational boat retailer énUhited States with fiscal 2011 revenue in excé$=75 million. Through our current !
retail locations in 19 states, we sell new and usetkational boats and related marine produatfjding engines, trailers, parts, and
accessories. We also arrange related boat finanicisigrance, and extended service contracts; pedwicht repair and maintenance services;
offer yacht and boat brokerage services; and, wéesdable, offer slip and storage accommodatidves.recently implemented programs to
increase substantially our sale over the Interhesed boats and a wide range of boating partgssccies, supplies, and products; the sale of
used boats, boating parts, and accessories, aasvisle offer of F&I products at various offsitedtions; and the charter of power and sailing
yachts. None of these programs has had a matégat en our financial statemen

MarineMax was incorporated in January 1998. We cenoad operations with the acquisition of five inglegient recreational boat
dealers on March 1, 1998. Since the initial acgjoiss in March 1998, we have acquired 21 recreatibnat dealers, two boat brokerage
operations, and two full-service yacht repair fiiels. As a part of our acquisition strategy, wegfnently engage in discussions with various
recreational boat dealers regarding their poteatiglisition by us. Potential acquisition discussifrequently take place over a long period of
time and involve difficult business integration asttier issues, including, in some cases, managesnenession and related matters. As a r
of these and other factors, a number of potentigligitions that from time to time appear likelyoecur do not result in binding legal
agreements and are not consummated. We did notletavgny significant acquisitions during the fisgaars ended September 30, 2009 or
2010 and completed a relatively small acquisitiofiscal 2011.

General economic conditions and consumer spenditigrps can negatively impact our operating resultdavorable local, regional,
national, or global economic developments or uadeties regarding future economic prospects coedllice consumer spending in the markets
we serve and adversely affect our business. Ecanooniditions in areas in which we operate dealpsshgarticularly Florida in which we
generated 45%, 54%, and 50% of our revenue duisieglf2009, 2010, and 2011, respectively, can laavajor impact on our operations.

Local influences, such as corporate downsizingitanyl base closings, inclement weather, and enwiemal conditions, such as the BP oil <
in the Gulf of Mexico, also could adversely affedr operations in certain markets.

In an economic downturn, consumer discretionaryngimgy levels generally decline, at times resulimdisproportionately large
reductions in the sale of luxury goods. Consumendng on luxury goods also may decline as a re$uttwer consumer confidence levels,
even if prevailing economic conditions are favoeatfllthough we have expanded our operations dyr@rgds of stagnant or modestly
declining industry trends, the cyclical naturetwd tecreational boating industry or the lack ofustdy growth may adversely affect our
business, financial condition, and results of opena. Any period of adverse economic conditiontoar consumer confidence has a negative
effect on our business.
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Lower consumer spending resulting from a downtarthe housing market and other economic factorsmsaly affected our business in
fiscal 2007 and continued weakness in consumerdspgmesulting from substantial weakness in thariirial markets and deteriorating
economic conditions had a very substantial negadifext on our business in fiscal 2008, 2009, 2@h@, 2011. These conditions caused us to
defer our acquisition program, delay new store opE) reduce our inventory purchases, engage eniavy reduction efforts, close a number
of our retail locations, reduce our headcount, ameénd and replace our credit facility. Acquisiti@m&l new store openings remain important
strategies to our company, and we plan to resumgrowth through these strategies when more noemahomic conditions return. However,
we cannot predict the length or severity of thesiaworable economic or financial conditions or éx¢ent to which they will continue to
adversely affect our operating results nor can keelipt the effectiveness of the measures we h&ente address this environment or whether
additional measures will be necessary.

Although economic conditions have adversely affécter operating results, we have capitalized oncoue strengths to substantially
outperform the industry, resulting in market shgas. Our ability to capture such market shargsttp the alignment of our retailing
strategies with the desires of consumers. We lelieg steps we have taken to address weak mankeéitions will yield an increase in future
revenue. As general economic trends improve, weaqur core strengths and retailing strategielspasition us to capitalize on growth
opportunities as they occur and will allow us toeege from this challenging economic environmenhwiteater earnings potential.

Application of Critical Accounting Policies

We have identified the policies below as criti@abur business operations and the understandiografsults of operations. The impact
and risks related to these policies on our busiopssations is discussed throughout Managemenssusdsion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations when such @diaffect our reported and expected financialltesu

In the ordinary course of business, we make a nuwibestimates and assumptions relating to thertigygoof results of operations and
financial condition in the preparation of our fiméal statements in conformity with accounting pijptes generally accepted in the United
States. We base our estimates on historical expergeand on various other assumptions that wevieediee reasonable under the circumstal
The results form the basis for making judgmentsuaitite carrying values of assets and liabilitied tire not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results could differ significarfilgm those estimates under different assumptiodscanditions. We believe that the following
discussion addresses our most critical accountitigies, which are those that are most importarhéoportrayal of our financial condition and
results of operations and require our most difficstibjective, and complex judgments, often asalref the need to make estimates about the
effect of matters that are inherently uncertain.

Revenue Recognition

We recognize revenue from boat, motor, and tragdes and parts and service operations at thethienkoat, motor, trailer, or part is
delivered to or accepted by the customer or theceis completed. We recognize deferred revenum fservice operations and slip and sto
services on a straight-line basis over the terth@fcontract or when service is completed. We neizegcommissions earned from a brokerage
sale at the time the related brokerage transactases. We recognize commissions earned by uddoing notes with financial institutions in
connection with customer boat financing when wegaize the related boat sales. We recognize matkétes earned on credit life, accident,
disability, and hull insurance products sold bydkparty insurance companies at the later of cust@nceptance of the insurance product as
evidenced by contract execution or when the relbted sale is recognized. We also recognize conmnisgarned on extended warranty
service contracts sold on behalf of third-partyunasice companies at the later of customer accepfaftbe service contract terms as evidenced
by contract execution or recognition of the relatedt sale.

Certain finance and extended warranty commissiodsaarketing fees on insurance products may begelarack if a customer
terminates or defaults on the underlying contraitiw a specified period of time. Based upon oysegience of terminations and defaults, we
maintain a chargeback allowance that was not
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material to our financial statements taken as alevas of September 30, 2010 or 2011. Should rediffes materially from our historical
experiences, we would need to modify our estiméfatare chargebacks, which could have a matedakese effect on our operating margins.

Vendor Consideration Received

We account for consideration received from our wadn accordance with FASB Accounting Standarddif@mtion 605-50, “Revenue
Recognition, Customer Payments and Incentives” CAB5-50"). ASC 605-50 requires us to classifyiest assistance received from
manufacturers as a reduction of inventory costrafated cost of sales as opposed to netting thstasse against our interest expense incurred
with our lenders. Pursuant to ASC 605-50, amouetteived by us under our co-op assistance prognamsdur manufacturers are netted
against related advertising expenses.

Inventories

Inventory costs consist of the amount paid to aeguiventory, net of vendor consideration and pasehdiscounts, the cost of equipment
added, reconditioning costs, and transportatiotsaeating to acquiring inventory for sale. Wetstaew boat, motor, and trailer inventories at
the lower of cost, determined on a specific-idécdtion basis, or market. We state used boat, matat trailer inventories, including trade-ins,
at the lower of cost, determined on a specific-ifieation basis, or market. We state parts andssaories at the lower of cost, determined on
an average cost basis, or market. We utilize atolical experience, the aging of the inventorées] our consideration of current market tre
as the basis for determining a lower of cost orketavaluation allowance. As of September 30, 201d 2011, our lower of cost or market
valuation allowance was $7.3 million and $3.4 roilli respectively. If events occur and market coowtt change, causing the fair value to fall
below carrying value, the lower of cost or markaiiration allowance could increase.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

FASB Accounting Standards Codification 360-10-4®dperty, Plant, and Equipment, Impairment or Désppof Long-Lived
Assets” (“ASC 360-10-40"), requires that long-livasisets, such as property and equipment and pecti@angibles subject to amortization,
be reviewed for impairment whenever events or chang circumstances indicate that the carrying athofian asset may not be recoverable.
Recoverability of the asset is measured by compaudd its carrying amount to undiscounted futureazesh flows the asset is expected to
generate. If such assets are considered to beriedpaihe impairment to be recognized is measurd¢kdeaamount by which the carrying amount
of the asset exceeds its fair market value. Eséisat expected future cash flows represent ourdsthate based on currently available
information and reasonable and supportable assangptAny impairment recognized in accordance wiBCA360-10-40 is permanent and may
not be restored. As of September 30, 2011, we badecognized any impairment of long-lived assetsdnnection with ASC 360-10-40 based
on our reviews.

Stock-Based Compensation

We account for our share-based compensation ptdiosving the provisions of FASB Accounting Standaf@odification 718,
“Compensation — Stock Compensation” (“ASC 718”)aktordance with ASC 718, we use the Black-Scha&sation model for valuing all
stock-based compensation and shares purchasedaurdemployee Stock Purchase Plan. We measure cwaten for restricted stock
awards and restricted stock units at fair valu¢hengrant date based on the number of shares exptecvest and the quoted market price o
common stock. For restricted stock units with madanditions, we utilize a Monte Carlo simulatianteedded in a lattice model to determine
the fair value. We recognize compensation cosaficawards in earnings, net of estimated forfe#ymn a straight-line basis over the requisite
service period for each separately vesting pouioitme award.
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Income Taxes

We account for income taxes in accordance with FASBounting Standards Codification 740, “Income &six(“ASC 740"). Under
ASC 740, we recognize deferred tax assets anditiebifor the future tax consequences attributableemporary differences between the
financial statement carrying amounts of existingeds and liabilities and their respective tax basfs measure deferred tax assets and liab
using enacted tax rates expected to apply to teviabbme in the years in which we expect those tearp differences to be recovered or
settled. We record valuation allowances to redusedeferred tax assets to the amount expected tedlieed by considering all available
positive and negative evidence.

Pursuant to ASC 740, we must consider all poskivé negative evidence regarding the realizatiadeédrred tax assets, including past
operating results and future sources of taxablenre Under the provisions of ASC 740-10, we deteettithat our net deferred tax asset
needed to be fully reserved given recent earningsredustry trends.

The Worker, Homeownership, and Business Assistaatef 2009 was signed into law in November 200BisTact allowed us to
carryback our 2009 net operating loss, which hadlaation allowance recorded against the entireuarhand which we were not able to
carryback under the prior tax law. The additiorerrgback generated a tax refund of $19.2 milliolne Tax refund was recorded as income tax
benefit during our quarter ended December 31, 20@9period in which this act was enacted. We fdezhrryback claim with the Internal
Revenue Service, and we received a $19.2 milliemekin the quarter ended March 31, 2010.

For a more comprehensive list of our accountingcs, including those which involve varying deggexd judgment, see Note 2 —
“Significant Accounting Policies” of Notes to Cortislated Financial Statements.

Results of Operations
The following table sets forth certain financiatalas a percentage of revenue for the periodsatetic

Fiscal Year Ended September 30,

2009 2010 2011
(Amounts in thousands)

Revenue $588,58! 100.(% $450,34( 100.% $480,89: 100.(%
Cost of sale: 499,92! 84.% 339,53 75.4% 361,40( 75.1%
Gross profil 88,66( 15.1% 110,80 24.€% 119,49: 24.%
Selling, general, and administrative exper 159,99¢ 27.2% 123,97: 27.5% 127,89¢ 26.6%
Loss from operation (71,339 (12.2)% (13,169 (2.9% (8,4072) (1.8%
Interest expens 14,06¢ 2.4% 3,92¢ 0.9% 3,48¢ 0.7%
Loss before income tax bene (85,402 (14.9% (17,09) (3.89% (11,890 (2.5%
Income tax benef 8,63( 1.5% 19,58¢ 4.4% 367 0.1%
Net income (loss $(76,777) (18.0% $ 2,497 0.6% $(11,52) (2.4%

Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2011 Compared Witital Year Ended September 30, 2010

Revenue. Revenue increased $30.6 million, or 6.8%, t80%g million for the fiscal year ended SeptemberZl1 from $450.3 millio
for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2010. Bfitlcrease, $34.3 million was attributable to & i@crease in comparable-store sales, which
was partially offset by a decline of $3.7 millicglated to stores opened or closed that were rpbkifor inclusion in the comparable-store
base for the 12 months ended September 30, 20&lintrease in our comparaldere sales was due to an increase in new boat sdilset by
a decline in used boat sales, because less ustxhviber@ available for sale for most of fiscal 2@binpared with fiscal 2010. Our retail sales
continue to be adversely impacted by the ongoigeic pressure on our industry.
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Gross Profit. Gross profit increased $8.7 million, or 7.8%, td$5 million for the fiscal year ended September2il1 from
$110.8 million for the fiscal year ended Septen8@®r2010. Gross profit as a percentage of revemreased to 24.9% for the fiscal year er
September 30, 2011 from 24.6% for the fiscal yealed September 30, 2010. The increase in grost e primarily attributable to
incrementally increased margins on boat salesaliragroving industry inventory conditions.

Selling, General, and Administrative Expense$elling, general, and administrative expenses aseré $3.9 million, or 3.2%, to
$127.9 million for the fiscal year ended Septen8@:r2011 from $124.0 million for the fiscal yeaded September 30, 2010. The overall
increase in selling, general, and administrativeeeses was attributable to increased commissiddsapaa result of increased new boat sales.
Additionally, we increased marketing expenses datext with boat show spending, partially related¢ar brands we added during the year.
The fiscal year ended September 30, 2010 inclugedeversal of approximately $3.9 million of stdeksed compensation expense, resulting
from the achievement of performance criteria ofaiarrestricted stock units no longer being probalbhe fiscal year ended September 30,
2011 included approximately $750,000 in store clgsind lease termination costs. Additionally, tkedl year ended September 30, 2010
included approximately $1.2 million in store clggicosts and $1.0 million of debt extinguishmentgoslated to our previous credit facility.
Excluding these items in both periods would haweilted in a decrease in selling, general, and adtrative expenses as a percentage of
revenue of approximately 1.5% from 27.9% for tisedi year ended September 30, 2010 to 26.4% fdistted year ended September 30, 2
This decrease in selling, general, and adminiseatkpenses (with such adjustments) as a perceotageenue was primarily attributable to
expense leverage obtained through our reported a@bfe-store sales increase.

Interest Expense. Interest expense decreased $438,000, or 11.198,%adillion for the fiscal year ended SeptemberZi,1 from
$3.9 million for the fiscal year ended SeptemberZ10. Interest expense as a percentage of revimeased to 0.7% for the fiscal year
ended September 30, 2011 from 0.9% for the fiseal gnded September 30, 2010. The decrease waaripyrienresult of a lower interest rate
on our new floor plan credit facilities with GECRIRd CGI.

Income Tax Benefit We had an income tax benefit of $367,000lerfiscal year ended September 30, 2011 compatbdawiincome
tax benefit of $19.6 million for the fiscal yeardsu September 30, 2010. Our tax benefit in 2010itexs from the enactment of the Worker,
Homeownership, and Business Assistance Act of 2008:h was signed into law in November 2009. Thisadlowed us to carryback our 2C
net operating loss, which previously had a valuma#ibowance recorded against the entire amountdrich we were not able to carryback
under the prior tax law. The additional carrybaekerated a tax refund of $19.2 million. This tafunel was recorded as income tax benefit
during the quarter ended December 31, 2009, tHechar which this act was enacted. We filed a daack claim with the Internal Revenue
Service, and we received a $19.2 million refunthenquarter ended March 31, 2010.

Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2010 Compared Witital Year Ended September 30, 2009

Revenue. Revenue decreased $138.3 million, or 23.5%4&0.3 million for the fiscal year ended Septen®:r2010 from $588.6
million for the fiscal year ended September 30,200f this decrease, $89.0 million was attributdbla decline in comparable-store sales and
$49.3 million was attributable to stores openedlosed that were not eligible for inclusion in g@mparable-store base for the 12 months
ended September 30, 2010. The decline in our cabjastore sales was due to the ongoing econoragspre on our industry caused by the
widely reported recession, a difficult retalil fircimg environment, and the impact of the BP oillspithe Gulf of Mexico on customer’s
purchasing decisions, all of which have adverselydcted our retail sales.

Gross Profit. Gross profit increased $22.1 million, or 25.0%$1d.0.8 million for the fiscal year ended Septen@r2010 from
$88.7 million for the fiscal year ended Septeml®&rZD09. Gross profit as a percentage of reverereased to 24.6% for the fiscal year ended
September 30, 2010 from 15.1% for the fiscal yealed September 30, 2009. The increase in gross asad percentage of revenue was a
result of the actions we took to dramatically regliroventory levels and improve its aging. Thes@astresulted in a reduction in the
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amount of discounting required on new and used &alas. Gross profit also was positively impactea iproduct mix shift from boat sales to
our higher margin brokerage services, finance,iasgrance products, and service, parts, and actesgooducts.

Selling, General, and Administrative Expense$elling, general, and administrative expenses dser$36.0 million, or 22.5%, to
$124.0 million for the fiscal year ended Septen@@r2010 from $160.0 million for the fiscal yeaded September 30, 2009. The overall
decrease in selling, general, and administratiyeeses resulted from the strategic store reductimtsve enacted throughout our 2009 fiscal
year. Additionally, through reductions in workforeee reduced personnel costs, commissions, andgeabanuses along with reductions
marketing, travel, and entertainment expensesfisbal year ended September 30, 2010 includedethersal of approximately $3.9 million of
stock-based compensation expense, resulting frera¢hievement of performance criteria of certastrieted stock units no longer being
probable. The fiscal year ended September 30, R@0®ded approximately $6.2 million in store clogicosts. Additionally, the fiscal year
ended September 30, 2010 included approximate® iillion in store closing costs and $1.0 milliohdebt extinguishment costs related to
our previous credit facility. Excluding these itemsuld have resulted in an increase in sellingegaln and administrative expenses as a
percentage of revenue of approximately 1.8% fromi @6for the fiscal year ended September 30, 202 18% for the fiscal year ended
September 30, 2010. This increase in selling, génand administrative expenses (with such adjusts)@s a percentage of revenue was
primarily attributable to the reported same-st@ies decline, which reduced our ability to leverageexpense structure.

Interest Expense. Interest expense decreased $10.2 million, or 72t@%3.9 million for the fiscal year ended Septent® 2010 from
$14.1 million for the fiscal year ended Septemt®&rZD09. The decrease was primarily a result ofedesed borrowings under our credit
facility. Interest expense as a percentage of newelecreased to 0.9% for the fiscal year endedeBdyar 30, 2010 from 2.4% for the fiscal
year ended September 30, 2009 because of the imwict average borrowings on our credit facil

Income Tax Benefit. Our income tax benefit for the fiscal year endegdt&mber 30, 2010 was $19.6 million compared witl6 $8illion
for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2009. fitkase in our tax benefit was primarily due toghactment of the Worker, Homeowners
and Business Assistance Act of 2009, which wasesignto law in November 2009. This act allowedasdrryback our 2009 net operating
loss, which previously had a valuation allowanamrded against the entire amount and which we wetable to carryback under the prior
law. The additional carryback generated a tax mffi519.2 million. This tax refund was recordedracome tax benefit during the quarter
ended December 31, 2009, the period in which ttisvas enacted. We filed a carryback claim withltiternal Revenue Service, and we
received a $19.2 million refund in the quarter ehifarch 31, 2010.

Quarterly Data and Seasonality

Our business, as well as the entire recreatioratifgindustry, is highly seasonal, with seasopaiitrying in different geographic
markets. With the exception of Florida, we gengreglalize significantly lower sales and higher lewvaf inventories, and related short-term
borrowings, in the quarterly periods ending Decenfdeand March 31. The onset of the public boatraedeation shows in January stimulates
boat sales and allows us to typically reduce ouentory levels and related short-term borrowingsulghout the remainder of the fiscal year.
Our business could become substantially more sahgome acquire dealers that operate in coldeioregyof the United States or close retail
locations in warm climates.

Our business is also subject to weather patterhigshamay adversely affect our results of operatiéits example, drought conditions (or
merely reduced rainfall levels) or excessive raiay close area boating locations or render boatamgyerous or inconvenient, thereby
curtailing customer demand for our products andises. In addition, unseasonably cool weather antbpged winter conditions may lead t
shorter selling season in certain locations. Harrés and other storms could result in disruptidriaipooperations or damage to our boat
inventories and facilities, as has been the casnvitorida and other markets were affected by bames. Although our geographic diversity is
likely to reduce the overall impact to us of adeansather
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conditions in any one market area, these conditiahgontinue to represent potential, material @cbe risks to us and our future financial
performance.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Our cash needs are primarily for working capitast@port operations, including new and used boatelated parts inventories, off-
season liquidity, and growth through acquisitiond aew store openings. Acquisitions and new stpenimgs remain important strategies to
our company, and we plan to resume our growth titrdbese strategies when more normal economic gonslireturn. However, we cannot
predict the length or severity of these unfavoraaenomic or financial conditions. We regularly ritonthe aging of our inventories and
current market trends to evaluate our current atté inventory needs. We also use this evaluati@onjunction with our review of our
current and expected operating performance andceeghdusiness levels to determine the adequacyrdfrancing needs. These cash needs
have historically been financed with cash generfited operations and borrowings under our crediilifees. Our ability to utilize our credit
facilities to fund operations depends upon theatetbl levels and compliance with the covenante®fcredit facilities. Turmoil in the credit
markets and weakness in the retail markets magfémgewith our ability to remain in compliance withe covenants of the credit facilities and
therefore our ability to utilize the credit fadiis to fund operations. At September 30, 2011, wer=vin compliance with all covenants under
credit facilities. We currently depend upon dividerand other payments from our dealerships andredit facilities to fund our current
operations and meet our cash needs. As 100% ovieach of our dealerships, we determine the amafrgach distributions, and currently,
no agreements exist that restrict this flow of feifrdm our dealerships.

For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2011, wsesth in operating activities was approximately $Million. For the fiscal years end
September 30, 2009 and 2010, cash provided by tipgectivities approximated $209.1 million and $illion, respectively. For the fiscal
year ended September 30, 2009, cash provided batopgp activities was due primarily to the sign#fit reduction of inventories. For the fis
year ended September 30, 2010, cash provided batimge activities was primarily related to a dese@ inventories due to our reductior
purchasing and our comparable-store sales, a deche@ccounts receivable from our manufacturerd,acadecrease in income tax receivable
resulting from the collection of the carryback olapartially offset by a decrease in our accouaigple. For the fiscal year ended
September 30, 2011, cash used in operating aeswitas primarily related to an increase in invgntisiven by new product lines added and
timing of boats received. This was partially offbgta decrease in accounts receivable from our faaturers as a result of reduced aging. In
addition, customer deposits increased as a reklatge yachts that were placed on order.

For the fiscal years ended September 30, 2009,, 2002011, cash used in investing activities vpgs@aimately $1.9 million,
$2.0 million, and $8.7 million, respectively. Fbietfiscal years ended September 30, 2009 and 28%0,used in investing activities was
primarily used to purchase property and equipmssteiated with improving and relocating existintpilfacilities. For the fiscal year ended
September 30, 2011, cash used in investing aewtias primarily used in a business acquisitiontarmlirchase property and equipment
associated with improving existing retail facilgieOf the $8.7 million cash used in investing dtiée for the fiscal year ended September 30,
2011, approximately $2.3 million was used in theibess acquisition to acquire inventory and equigme

For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2011, mastided by financing activities was approximat®B6.2 million. For the fiscal years
ended September 30, 2009 and 2010, cash usediciig activities was approximately $212.0 milleomd $47.2 million, respectively. For the
fiscal year ended September 30, 2009, cash uséddncing activities was primarily attributablettoe repayments of short-term borrowings,
partially offset by proceeds from our common steale. For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2@Eb, used by financing activities was
primarily attributable to net payments on our sHertn borrowings as a result of decreased inverigugis. For the fiscal year ended
September 30, 2011, cash provided by financingities was primarily attributable to net short-telorrowings as a result of increased
inventory levels.

In June 2011, we entered into an amendment torm@ntory Financing Agreement (the “Credit Facil)tydriginally entered into in June
2010 with GE Commercial Distribution Finance Comp#tGECDF"), as
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amended in December 2010. The June 2011 amendamentg other things, modified the amount of borrgnarailability, interest rate, and
maturity date of the Credit Facility. The amendeddt Facility provides a floor plan financing contment up to $150 million, up from the
previous limit of $100 million, subject to borrovgmase availability resulting from the amount agihg of our inventory. The amended Credit
Facility matures in June 2014, subject to extenfomtwo one-year periods, with the approval of GHC

The amended Credit Facility has certain finanaislemants as specified in the agreement. The cot®irartude provisions that our
leverage ratio must not exceed 2.75 to 1.0 andatlwaturrent ratio must be greater than 1.2 to AtGBeptember 30, 2011, we were in
compliance with all of the covenants under the afedrCredit Facility. The interest rate for amouwnitstanding under the amended Credit
Facility is 383 basis points above the one-monthdam Inter-Bank Offering Rate (“LIBOR”). There ia anused line fee of ten basis points on
the unused portion of the amended Credit Facility.

Advances under the amended Credit Facility arébeid by the acquisition of eligible new and usegentory or are re-advances against
eligible new and used inventory that have beerigigrpaid-off. Advances on new inventory matur@8i, days from the original invoice date.
Advances on used inventory mature 361 days frond#te we acquire the used inventory. Each advansehiject to a curtailment schedule,
which requires that we pay down the balance of eastance on a periodic basis starting after sixthmmhe curtailment schedule varies b
on the type and value of the inventory. The cotldtéor the amended Credit Facility is all of owrponal property with certain limited
exceptions. None of our real estate has been plefdgeollateral for the amended Credit Facility.

In September 2011, we entered into an extensiautfir August 31, 2012 to our Inventory Financing&ament (the “CGI Facility”),
originally entered into in October 2010 with CGh&nce, Inc. The CGI Facility provides a floor pfarancing commitment of $30 million and
is designed to provide financing for our Azimutéméory needs. The CGI Facility has an approximateyear term, which is typical in the
industry for similar floor plan facilities; howevezach advance under the CGI Facility can remaistanding for 18 months. The interest rate
for amounts outstanding under the CGI Facility3® ®asis points above the one-month LIBOR.

Advances under the CGI Facility are initiated by #rquisition of eligible new and used inventoryar re-advances against eligible new
and used inventory that has been partially paidAuddfzances on new inventory mature 550 days frograiiivance date. Advances on used
inventory mature 366 days from the advance dateh Bdvance is subject to a curtailment scheduleghwiequires that we pay down the
balance of each advance on a periodic basis,rgjatter six months for used inventory and one y@anew inventory. The curtailment
schedule varies based on the type of inventory.

The collateral for the CGI Facility is our entirgifut inventory financed by the CGI Facility witkertain limited exceptions. None of ¢
real estate has been pledged as collateral fa€@leFacility. We must maintain compliance with eémtfinancial covenants as specified in the
CGl Facility. The covenants include provisions tbat leverage ratio must not exceed 2.75 to 1.0tladour current ratio must be greater than
1.2 to 1.0. At September 30, 2011, we were in caanpé with all of the covenants under the CGI FgcilThe CGI Facility contemplates that
other lenders may be added by us to finance otlveniory not financed under the CGI Facility, ieded.

The amended Credit Facility and CGI Facility replaar prior $180 million credit facility that praled for a line of credit with asset-
based borrowing availability. The interest ratedorounts outstanding under the prior credit faciies 490 basis points above the one-month
LIBOR.

As of September 30, 2010 and 2011, our indebtedisesxciated with financing our inventory and wogkaapital needs totaled
approximately $93.8 million and $118.8 million, pestively. At September 30, 2010 and 2011, thedsterate on the outstanding short-term
borrowings was 4.0% and 4.0%, respectively. At Seer 30, 2011, our additional available borrowingder our amended Credit Facility
and CGl Facility were approximately $53.2 millioaded upon the outstanding borrowing base avaiiabilhe aging of our inventory limits
our borrowing capacity as defined curtailments oedihe allowable advance rate as our inventory.ages
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Except as specified in this “Management’s Discussind Analysis of Financial Condition, and Resaft®perations” and in our
consolidated financial statements, we have no niatsmmitments for capital for the next 12 montA& believe that our existing capital
resources will be sufficient to finance our operasi for at least the next 12 months, except fosipes significant acquisitions.
Contractual Commitments and Commercial Commitments

The following table sets forth a summary of our en@ contractual obligations and commercial commeitts as of September 30, 2011:

Year Ending Short-Term Long-Term Operating
September 30, Borrowings(1) Liabilities(2) Leases(3 Total
(Amounts in thousands)

2012 $ 118,82¢ $ = $ 5,78: $124,61:
2013 — 5,89¢ 4,52: 10,41¢
2014 — — 3,44z 3,44z
2015 — — 2,79¢ 2,795
2016 — — 1,77¢ 1,77¢
Thereaftel — — 2,131 2,131
Total $ 118,82 $ 5,89 $20,45( $145,17-

(1) Estimates of future interest payments for skemn borrowings have been excluded in the talpiesentation. Amounts due are contingent
upon the outstanding balances and the variableefstteates. As of September 30, 2011, the intea¢ston our short-term borrowings was
4.0%.

(2) The amounts included in lo-term liabilities consist primarily of deferred rewes, gross unrecognized tax benefits and our et
liability for claims on certain workers’ compensatiinsurance policies. While we estimate the améwube paid in excess of 12 months,
the ultimate timing of the payments is subjectédain variability. Accordingly, we have classifial amounts as due in the following y«
for the purposes of this tab

(3) Amounts for operating lease commitments do nouitkelcertain operating expenses such as mainteriasaeance, and real estate ta
These amounts are not a material component of tipgrexpenses

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We do not have any transactions, arrangementsher celationships with unconsolidated entitieg Hra reasonably likely to affect our
financial condition, liquidity, or capital resouscé/Ne have no special purpose or limited purposiemnthat provide off-balance sheet
financing, liquidity, or market or credit risk supp; we do not engage in hedging, or research ardldpment services; and we do not have
other relationships that expose us to liabilityt ikanot reflected in the financial statements.

ltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about MakRisk

At September 30, 2011, all of our short-term delsebinterest at a variable rate, tied to LIBOR asfarence rate. Changes in the
underlying LIBOR interest rate on our short-ternbtdeould affect our earnings. For example, a hygiithal 100 basis point increase in the
interest rate on our short-term debt would resuliri increase of approximately $1.2 million in aanure-tax interest expense. This estimated
increase is based upon the outstanding balancerahort-term debt as of September 30, 2011 andvessno mitigating changes by us to
reduce the outstanding balances, no additionaldstassistance that could be received from verdigedo the interest rate increase, and no
changes in the base LIBOR rate.

Products purchased from European-based manufestameisubject to fluctuations in the euro to Udlad exchange rate, which
ultimately may impact the retail price at which @an sell such products. Accordingly, fluctuationghie value of the euro compared with the
U.S. dollar may impact the price points at whichcae
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profitably sell European products, and such prigiefs may not be competitive with other producesirin the United States. Accordingly, such
fluctuations in exchange rates ultimately may intghe amount of revenue, cost of goods sold, dasysf and earnings we recognize for
European product lines. We cannot predict the &ffetexchange rate fluctuations on our operatésyits. In certain cases, we may enter into
foreign currency cash flow hedges to reduce th@akdity of cash flows associated with forecastedghases of boats and yachts from
Europearbased manufacturers. We are not currently engagfmtéign currency exchange hedging transactiomsaoage our foreign curren
exposure. If and when we do engage in foreign aggrexchange hedging transactions, we cannot afsaitreur strategies will adequately
protect our operating results from the effectsxafhange rate fluctuations.

Item 8.  Financial Statements and Supplementary D¢

Reference is made to the financial statementsjakes thereto, and the report thereon, commencirmgage F-1 of this report, which
financial statements, notes, and report are ingatpd herein by reference.

ltem 9.  Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants orcéunting and Financial Disclosure

Not applicable.

Iltem 9A. Controls and Procedure
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

We maintain disclosure controls and proceduresatetlesigned to ensure that material informatguired to be disclosed by us in
Securities Exchange Act reports is recorded, psasissummarized and reported within the time perggekcified in the Securities and
Exchange Commission’s rules and forms, and thdt sdormation is accumulated and communicated tonesanagement, including the Chief
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, ggpeopriate, to allow timely decisions regardinguiegd disclosure.

Our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial io#fr have evaluated the effectiveness of the demigihoperation of our disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in Rules 18a}Hhd 15d-15(e) under the Securities ExchangefAt934) as of the end of the period
covered by this report. Based on such evaluatioeh sfficers have concluded that, as of the enttl@fperiod covered by this report, our
disclosure controls and procedures were effectitheareasonable assurance level.

Changes in Internal Controls

During the quarter ended September 30, 2011, there no changes in our internal controls over fam@reporting that materially
affected, or were reasonably likely to materialfifeet, our internal control over financial repodin

Limitations on the Effectiveness of Controls

Our management, including our Chief Executive @ffiand Chief Financial Officer, does not expect tha disclosure controls and
procedures and internal controls over financiabrépg will prevent all errors and all fraud. A dool system, no matter how well conceived
and operated, can provide only reasonable, notales@assurance that the objectives of the cosyrslem are met. Further, the design of a
control system must reflect the fact that thereraseurce constraints, and the benefits of conimuist be considered relative to their costs.
Although our disclosure controls and proceduredasggned to provide reasonable assurance of aoitheir objectives because of the
inherent limitations in all control systems, no lenstion of controls can provide absolute assurdhatall control issues and instances of fraud,
if any, within the company have been detected. @lmaserent limitations include the realities thalgments in decision-making can be faulty,
and that breakdowns can occur because of simple @rmistake. Additionally, controls can be cirotanted by the individual acts of some
persons, by collusion of two or more people, ontanagement override of the control. The design of
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any system of controls also is based in part ugotam assumptions about the likelihood of futurergs, and there can be no assurance that
any design will succeed in achieving its statedgaader all potential future conditions; over timaecontrol may become inadequate becat
changes in conditions, or the degree of compliavite the policies or procedures may deteriorateaBee of the inherent limitations in a cost-
effective control system, misstatements due torenréraud may occur and not be detected.

CEO and CFO Cetrtifications

Exhibits 31.1 and 31.2 are the Certifications & @hief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officrespectively. The Certifications
are required in accordance with Section 302 oSaanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (the “Section 302 Cegtfons”). This Item of this report,
which you are currently reading is the informatemmcerning the Evaluation referred to in the Sec802 Certifications and this information
should be read in conjunction with the Section @@2tifications for a more complete understandintheftopics presented.

Management's Report on Internal Control over Finandal Reporting

Management is responsible for establishing and taiaimg adequate internal control over financiglasing, as such term is defined in
Rule 13a-15(f) of the Securities Exchange Act d4.9Jnder the supervision and with the participatid our management, including our
principal executive officer and principal financaficer, we conducted an evaluation of the effemtiess of the Company’s internal control
over financial reporting as of September 30, 204 feguired by the Securities Exchange Act of 198 R3a15(c). In making this assessm
we used the criteria set forth by the Committe8mdnsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commisgic@®S0O”) in Internal Control —
Integrated FrameworkBased on its evaluation, our management conclutdts internal control over financial reportingsveffective as of
September 30, 2011.

Our internal control over financial reporting asS#ptember 30, 2011 has been audited by Ernst andgrLLP, an independent
registered public accounting firm, as stated inrtfeport which appears below.
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Report of Independent Registered Certified Public Acounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
MarineMax, Inc.

We have audited MarineMax, Inc. and subsidiariet@rnal control over financial reporting as of Sepber 30, 2011, based on criteria
established in Internal Control — Integrated Framewssued by the Committee of Sponsoring Orgaitinatof the Treadway Commission
(the COSO criteria). MarineMax, Inc. and subsidiatimanagement is responsible for maintaining &ffednternal control over financial
reporting, and for its assessment of the effecégsrof internal control over financial reportinglirded in the accompanying management’s
report on internal control over financial reportif@ur responsibility is to express an opinion om @ompany’s internal control over financial
reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stedgdof the Public Company Accounting Oversightq&@nited States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet amdbtain reasonable assurance about whetheatigifenternal control over financial
reporting was maintained in all material respe©tsr audit included obtaining an understanding térimal control over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness etésting and evaluating the design and operatifeg®@feness of internal control based on the
assessed risk, and performing such other procedsreg considered necessary in the circumstancefeliéve that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial repogiis a process designed to provide reasonableaagsuregarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of finahstatements for external purposes in accordanttegenerally accepted accounting princip
A company’s internal control over financial repogiincludes those policies and procedures thgté€ttain to the maintenance of records that,
in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reftbettransactions and dispositions of the assdtseofompany; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary tatgegaparation of financial statements in accor@awith generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditureb®itbmpany are being made only in accordance withoaizations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasanabburance regarding prevention or timely deteafainauthorized acquisition, use or
disposition of the company’s assets that could lrareterial effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or d¢t@isstatements. Also, projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periodssabject to the risk that controls may becomdenaate because of changes in condition
that the degree of compliance with the policiepraicedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, MarineMax, Inc. and subsidiariesimeained, in all material respects, effective intdrcontrol over financial reporting as
of September 30, 2011, based on the COSO criteria

We also have audited, in accordance with the stdsdz the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@snited States), the
consolidated balance sheets of MarineMax, Inc.sagidiaries as of September 30, 2011 and 2010hanetlated consolidated statements of
operations, stockholders’ equity and cash flowsefach of the three years in the period ended Séygte®®, 2011 of MarineMax, Inc. and
subsidiaries and our report dated December 8, 2Rffessed an unqualified opinion thereon.

/sl Ernst & Young LLP

Tampa, Florida
December 8, 2011
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PART IlI

Item 10.  Directors, Executive Officers, and Corporate Govarnce

The information required by this Item relating tar @irectors is incorporated herein by referencthéodefinitive Proxy Statement
(particularly under the caption “Corporate Govewel to be filed pursuant to Regulation 14A of wechange Act for our 2012 Annual
Meeting of Stockholders. The information requirgdtthis Item relating to our executive officersigluded in “Business — Executive
Officers.”

We have adopted a code of ethics that appliesttprincipal executive officer, principal financiafficer, and other senior accounting
personnel. The “Code of Ethics for the CEO and @&efiinancial Officers” is located on our websitevatw.MarineMax.conin the Investor
Relations section under Corporate Governance.

We intend to satisfy the disclosure requirementeuriggm 5.05(c) of Form 8-K regarding any amendntenor waiver from, a provision
of this code of ethics by posting such informationour website, at the address and location specifbove.
ltem 11.  Executive Compensatio

The information required by this Item is incorp@aherein by reference to the definitive Proxy @tent (particularly under the caption
“Executive Compensation”) to be filed pursuant &gRlation 14A of the Exchange Act for our 2012 AalnMeeting of Stockholders.
ltem 12.  Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners ailinagement and Related Stockholder Matt:

The information required by this Item is incorp@cherein by reference to the definitive Proxy &teant (particularly under the caption
“Security Ownership of Principal Stockholders, Bi@'s, and Officers”) to be filed pursuant to Regian 14A of the Exchange Act for our
2012 Annual Meeting of Stockholders.

Item 13.  Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, aDatector Independenci

The information required by this Item is incorp@cherein by reference to the definitive Proxy @tent (particularly under the caption
“Certain Relationships and Related Transactiorshd filed pursuant to Regulation 14A of the Exa®Act for our 2012 Annual Meeting of
Stockholders.

Iltem 14.  Principal Accountant Fees and Servict

The information required by this Item is incorp@aherein by reference to the definitive Proxy @tent (particularly under the caption
“Ratification of Appointment of Independent Auditpto be filled pursuant to Regulation 14A of thedBange Act for our 2012 Annual
Meeting of Stockholders.

PART IV

Item 15.  Exhibits and Financial Statement Scheduls
(@) Financial Statements and Financial Statement Schetks

(1) Financial Statements are listed in the Indeg¢osolidated Financial Statements on page F-hisfé¢port.

(2) No financial statement schedules are includszhbse such schedules are not applicable, aresquited, or because required
information is included in the consolidated finalatatements or notes thereto.
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(b) Exhibits

Exhibit
Number
3.1
3.1(a)
3.2
3.3
4.1

10.3(h)
10.3())
10.3())
10.4
10.5
10.1871

10.20
10.20(a)
10.21()t
10.21(g)
10.21(h)
10.21(i)t
10.21(j)t
10.21(k)"
10.22
10.23
10.24
10.25
10.26%
10.26(a)
10.27%
10.28

10.29(a)
10.29(b)

Exhibit
Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the Regist, including all amendments to date

Certificate of Amendment of Restricted Certificafdncorporation of the Registrant(

Third Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Regig{3a

Certificate of Designation of Series A Junior Rapiating Preferred Stock(:

Specimen of Common Stock Certificate

Employment Agreement between Registrant and WillkaniVicGill Jr.(4)

Employment Agreement between Registrant and MicHadlcLamb(4)

Employment Agreement between Registrant and EdwaRlussell(4)

1998 Incentive Stock Plan, as amended through Bep&y, 2001(5

1998 Employee Stock Purchase Plai

Hatteras Sales and Service Agreement, effectivaustut, 2006 among the Registrant, MarineMax Motachfs, LLC, anc
Hatteras Yachts Division of Brunswick Corporation

Agreement Relating to Acquisitions between Regidteand Brunswick Corporation, dated December 7 528X

Sea Ray Sales and Service Agreemet

Inventory Financing Agreement executed on Jun€@40, among MarineMax, Inc. and its subsidiarisarrowers, and
GE Commercial Distribution Finance Corporation| asder.(9)

Program Terms Letter executed on June 24, 2010nami@rineMax, Inc. and its subsidiaries, as Bornsyand GE
Commercial Distribution Finance Corporation, as dem(9)

Amendment Number One to Inventory Financing Agrestmexecuted on December 17, 2010, among MarineMaxand
its subsidiaries, as Borrowers, and GE Commerdgribution Finance Corporation, as Lender.(

Amendment Number One to Program Terms Letter, égeaon December 17, 2010, among MarineMax, Inc.itsnd
subsidiaries, as Borrowers, and GE Commercial Digion Finance Corporation, as Lender.(

Amendment Number Two to Inventory Financing Agreatnexecuted on June 1, 2011, among MarineMax,dnd.its
subsidiaries, as Borrowers, and GE Commercial Digfion Finance Corporation, as Lender.(

Amendment Number Two to Program Terms Letter, ebeztan June 1, 2011, among MarineMax, Inc. ansubsidiaries
as Borrowers, and GE Commercial Distribution Firm@orporation, as Lender.(1

MarineMax, Inc. 2007 Incentive Compensation Plah

Form Stock Option Agreement for 2007 Incentive Cengation Plan(1zZ

Form Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement for 20f@entive Compensation Plan(]

Director Fee Share Purchase Program

Floor Plan Loan Agreement executed on October I020y and among MarineMax, Inc. and its subsidgras Borrower
and CGlI Finance, Inc., as Lender.(.

Notice of Extension to Floor Plan Loan Agreemergaiited on September 15, 2011, by and among MarireMe. and its
subsidiaries, as Borrowers, and CGI Finance, bxLender

Floor Plan Credit Loan Note executed on Octob&070, by MarineMax, Inc. and its subsidiaries, asr@vers, payable
CGl Finance, Inc., as Lender.(1

Pledge and Security Agreement executed on Octgl#910, by and among MarineMax, Inc. and its subsik, as
Borrowers, and CGI Finance, Inc., as Lender.

MarineMayx, Inc. 2011 Sto-Based Compensation Plan(’

Form Stock Option Agreement for 2011 St-Based Compensation Plan(:
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Eﬂﬁﬁr Exhibit
10.29(c) Form Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement for 2@&tact-Based Compensation Plan(l
21 List of Subsidiarie:
23.1 Consent of Ernst & Young LL
31.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuantRule 13a-14(a) and Rule 15d-14(a), promulgatettuthe Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amend
31.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuantRule 13-14(a) and Rule 1!-14(a), promulgated under the Securi
Exchange Act of 1934, as amend
32.1 Certification pursuant to U.S.C. Section 1350, égapded pursuant to Section 906 of the Sark-Oxley Act of 2002
32.2 Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 13%0adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarl-Oxley Act of 2002
101.INS* XBRL Instance Documer
101.SCH’ XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Docum
101.CAL* XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Docuntr
101.LAB* XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Docum
101.PRE* XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Doent
101.DEF* XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Documh
t Certain information in this exhibit has been ondittend filed separately with the Securities and BExge Commission. Confidenti

*

1)
)
®)
(4)
®)
(6)
()
)
9)
(10)
(11)
(12)
(13)

treatment has been requested with respect to titeedrportions

Pursuant to Rule 406T of Regulatio-T, these interactive data files are deemed nat Blepart of a registration statement or prospe
for purposes of Sections 11 or 12 of the Securfigtsof 1933, as amended, are deemed not filegdioposes of Section 18 of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, drehwise are not subject to liability under thosetisas.

Incorporated by reference to Registration Stateraeritorm 1+-K for the year ended September 30, 2001, as fiteBecember 20, 200
Incorporated by reference to Regist’s Form K as filed February 19, 201

Incorporated by reference to Regist’s Form -K as filed on June 16, 201

Incorporated by reference to Regist’s Form K as filed on June 13, 200

Incorporated by reference to Regist’s Form 1i-Q for the quarterly period ended December 31, 286filed on February 14, 20C
Incorporated by reference to Registration Stateroeritorm -1 (Registration 33-47873) as filed on March 12, 19¢

Incorporated by reference to Regist’s Form 1+Q/A for the quarterly period ended March 31, 208 filed on September 23, 20(
Incorporated by reference to Regist’s Form -K as filed on December 9, 20(

Incorporated by reference to Regist’s Form 1-Q for the quarterly period ended June 30, 201(]exson August 9, 201(
Incorporated by reference to Regist’s Form 1+-Q for the quarterly period ended December 31, 28%0iled on February 8, 201
Incorporated by reference to Regist’s Form 1-Q for the quarterly period ended June 30, 201fijexbon August 5, 2011
Incorporated by reference to Regist’s Form K as filed on March 6, 200°

Incorporated by reference to Regist’s Form -8 (File No. 33-141657) as filed March 29, 20C
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(14) Incorporated by reference to Regist’s Form 1-K for the year ended September 30, 2010, as fiteBecember 2, 201!
(15) Incorporated by reference to Regist’s Form K as filed on January 25, 201

(c) Financial Statements Schedule
(1) See Item 15(a) above.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f{the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regigthas duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theredatp authorized.

MARINEMAX, INC.

/s/ William H. McGill Jr.
William H. McGill Jr.
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Offi

Date: December 8, 2011

In accordance with the Securities Exchange Acto®41 the following persons on behalf of the registrand in the capacities and on the
date indicated have signed this report below.

Signature Capacity Date
/s/  William H. McGill Jr. Chairman of the Board, President, and December 8, 2011
William H. McGill Jr. Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer
/s/  Michael H. McLamb Executive Vice President, Chief Financial December 8, 2011
Michael H. McLamb Officer, Secretary, and Director

(Principal Accounting and
Financial Officer)

/s/  Hilliard M. Eure Il Director December 8, 201
Hilliard M. Eure I
/s/ John B. Furma Director December 8, 201

John B. Furmai

/s/ Robert S. Kar Director December 8, 201
Robert S. Kan

/sl Russell J. Knitte Director December 8, 201
Russell J. Knitte

/sl Joseph A. Watte Director December 8, 201
Joseph A. Watter

/s/ Dean S. Woodm:e Director December 8, 201
Dean S. Woodma
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Report of Independent Registered Certified Public Acounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
MarineMax, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balgineets of MarineMax, Inc. and subsidiaries &eptember 30, 2011 and 2010,
and the related consolidated statements of opemstiockholders’ equity and cash flows for eacthefthree years in the period ended
September 30, 2011. These financial statementhanmesponsibility of the Comparsymanagement. Our responsibility is to expresspaman
on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting OversighamliqUnited States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet émdbtain reasonable assurance about whethdindoecial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on alasis, evidence supporting the amounts and disis in the financial statements. An a
also includes assessing the accounting principged and significant estimates made by managenentelhas evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referre@love present fairly, in all material respedts,¢onsolidated financial position of
MarineMax, Inc. and subsidiaries at September 8Q12and 2010, and the consolidated results of tparations and their cash flows for each
of the three years in the period ended Septemhe2®, in conformity with U.S. generally accep&ettounting principles.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@snited States), MarineMax,
Inc. and subsidiaries’ internal control over fineheeporting as of September 30, 2011, based iterier established in Internal Control —
Integrated Framework issued by the Committee ohSpong Organizations of the Treadway Commissiah@ur report dated December 8,
2011 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

/sl Ernst & Young LLP

Tampa, Florida
December 8, 2011
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MARINEMAX, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(Amounts in thousands except share and per shéag da

September 3C

September 3C
2010 2011
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivale $ 16,53¢ $ 19,38¢
Accounts receivable, n 22,77¢ 16,34
Inventories, ne 188,72: 219,63.
Prepaid expenses and other current a: 4,99¢ 4,58¢
Total current asse 233,03! 259,95:
Property and equipment, r 102,17: 102,10°
Other lon¢-term asset 1,55¢ 1,071
Total asset $ 336,76( $ 363,12
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS ' EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Accounts payabl $ 7,007 $ 8,64C
Customer deposit 5,412 9,08t
Accrued expense 24,72¢ 25,67¢
Shor-term borrowings 93,84 118,82¢
Total current liabilities 130,98: 162,23:
Long-term liabilities 3,74¢ 5,89¢
Total liabilities 134,73( 168,12¢
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY:
Preferred stock, $.001 par value, 1,000,000 sharg®rized, none issued or outstandin
September 30, 2010 and 2C — —
Common stock, $.001 par value; 40,000,000 shartemared, 22,938,938 and 23,303,100 sh
issued and 22,148,038 and 22,512,200 shares aditsgeat September 30, 2010 and 2011,
respectively 23 23
Additional paic-in capital 206,54¢ 211,04
Retained earnings (accumulated defi 11,26¢ (254)
Treasury stock, at cost, 790,900 shares held de®dyer 30, 2010 and 20. (15,810 (15,810
Total stockholder equity 202,03( 195,00(
Total liabilities and stockholde’ equity $ 336,76( $ 363,12

See accompanying notes to consolidated finanassients.
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MARINEMAX, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(Amounts in thousands except share and per shéag da

For the Year Ended September 3C

2009 2010 2011
Revenue $ 588,58! $ 450,34( $ 480,89
Cost of sale: 499,92! 339,53 361,40(

Gross profit 88,66( 110,80° 119,49:
Selling, general, and administrative exper 159,99¢ 123,97: 127,89¢
Loss from operation (71,339 (13,169 (8,402)
Interest expens 14,06¢ 3,92¢ 3,48¢
Loss before income tax bene (85,409) (27,09) (11,890
Income tax benef 8,63( 19,58¢ 367
Net (loss) incomi $ (76,779 $ 2,497 $ (11,52)
Basic net (loss) income per common st $ 4.11 $ 0.11 $ (0.52)
Diluted net (loss) income per common sh $ 4.11 $ 0.11 $ (0.52)
Weighted average number of common shares usedriputing net (loss
income per common shal
Basic 18,685,42 21,998,74 22,375,27
Diluted 18,685,42 22,597,95 22,375,27

See accompanying notes to consolidated finanassients.
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MARINEMAX, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
(Amounts in thousands except share data)

BALANCE, September 30, 20(

Net loss

Shares issued pursuant to employee stock purchhens

Shares issued upon vesting of equity awards, neatx
withholding

Shares issued upon exercise of stock opt

Issuance of common sto

Stock-based compensatic

BALANCE, September 30, 20(

Net income

Shares issued pursuant to employee stock purchhes

Shares issued upon vesting of equity awards, nigixc
withholding

Shares issued upon exercise of stock opt

Stoclk-based compensatic

Tax benefits of options exercis

BALANCE, September 30, 201

Net loss

Shares issued pursuant to employee stock purchhens

Shares issued upon vesting of equity awards, nigixof
withholding

Shares issued upon exercise of stock opt

Stoclk-based compensatic

BALANCE, September 30, 201

Retained

Common Stock Additional Earnings Total
Paid-in (Accumulated Treasury Stockholders’

Shares Amount Capital Deficit) Stock Equity
19,215,38 $ 19 $178,83( $ 85,54« $(15,810 $ 248,58:
— — — (76,777) — (76,77%)
198,29¢ — 63C — — 63C
45,40 — 74 — — 74
20,55« — 62 — — 62
2,990,001 3 19,61 — — 19,61«
27,01 — 5,56¢ — — 5,56¢
22,496,65 22 204,77: 8,772 (15,810 197,75t
— — — 2,491 — 2,49i
172,37: — 4832 — — 48:
61,62« — 177 — — (177
185,83« 1 922 — — 92:
22,45( — 52¢ — — 52¢
— — 19 — — 19
22,938,93 23 206,54¢ 11,26¢ (15,810 202,03(
— — — (11,529 — (11,529
81,61¢ — 48¢ — 48¢
70,38¢ — (197) — — (191)
195,79. — 94¢& — — 94¢
16,36¢ — 3,24¢ — — 3,24¢
23,303,10 $ 23 $211,04. $ (259 $(15,810 $ 195,00(

See accompanying notes to consolidated finanassients.
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MARINEMAX, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(Amounts in thousands)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net (loss) incomt
Adjustments to reconcile net (loss) income to @eahcprovided by (used in) operating activitl
Depreciation and amortizatic
Deferred income tax provisic
(Gain) loss on sale of property and equipn
Stoclk-based compensation expense,
Loss on extinguishment and modification of debt shdr-term borrowings
Tax benefits from options exercis
Excess tax benefits from st-based compensatic
(Increase) decrease—
Accounts receivable, n
Income tax receivabl
Inventories, ne
Prepaid expenses and other as
Increase (decrease)—
Accounts payabl
Customer deposil
Accrued expenses and Ic-term liabilities
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activi
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of property and equipm
Net cash used to acquire inventory and equipmeattnfsines
Proceeds from sale of property and equipn
Net cash used in investing activiti
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Net (repayments) borrowings on sl-term borrowings
Excess tax benefits from st-based compensatic
Debt modification cost
Net proceeds from issuance of common s
Net proceeds from issuance of common stock undentive compensation and emplo
purchase plan
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activi
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENS:
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, beginning of peric
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, end of perio

Supplemental Disclosures of Cash Flow Informat
Cash paid for
Interest
Income taxe:

See accompanying notes to consolidated financigstents.
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For the Year Ended September 3C

2009

2010

2011

$ (76,779 $ 2497  $(11,52)
10,96¢ 7,357 6,61¢
1,51% — —
(64) 357 21
5,56¢ 52¢ 3,24¢
492 1,027 —
(6,566) 12,72: 6,42¢
(3,239) 9,98: —
262,69 17,21( (28,66()
1,36: 1,53¢ 77¢
11,36¢ (8,845) 1,64(
(1,629) 53C 3,67:
3,40¢ (4,687) 3,10z
209,10 40,21¢ (14,68()
(2,10) (4,15¢) (6,585)
— — (2,25¢)

24C 2,16¢ 151
(1,867) (1,999 (8,697)
(230,000 (48,156 24,98«
(2,379) (284) (10)
19,61« — —
76€ 1,22¢ 1,24¢
(211,999 (47,19 26,21¢
(4,756) (8,969) 2,84
30,26« 25,50¢ 16,53¢
$ 2550¢ $16,53¢  $19,38¢
14,49: 4,46¢ 3,261
31 31
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MARINEMAX, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. COMPANY BACKGROUND AND BASIS OF PRESENTATION:

We are the largest recreational boat retailer énhited States. We engage primarily in the retaié, brokerage, and service of new and
used boats, motors, trailers, marine parts andsaocies and offer slip and storage accommodationsrtain locations. In addition, we arrange
related boat financing, insurance, and extendedcgecontracts. We recently implemented programniadcease substantially our sale over the
Internet of used boats and a wide range of bogénts, accessories, supplies, and products; theasahrious offsite locations of used boats,
boating parts, and accessories, as well as theaffé&l products; and the charter of power andirsgiyachts. None of these programs has had
a material effect on our financial statements. ASeptember 30, 2011, we operated through 54 fetations in 19 states, consisting of
Alabama, Arizona, California, Colorado, Connectjdtlbrida, Georgia, Kansas, Maryland, Minnesotasdduri, New Jersey, New York, North
Carolina, Ohio, Oklahoma, Rhode Island, Tennessee Texas.

We are the natios’largest retailer of Sea Ray, Boston Whaler, BayliMeridian, Cabo, and Hatteras recreationaldhaadl yachts, all ¢
which are manufactured by Brunswick Corporationr(iBswick”). Sales of new Brunswick boats accouritedapproximately 48% of our
revenue in fiscal 2011. Brunswick is the world’sglest manufacturer of marine products and mariiggnes. We believe we represented in
excess of 7% of all Brunswick marine sales, inctgdhpproximately 41% of its Sea Ray boat saleshgwur 2011 fiscal year.

We have dealership agreements with Sea Ray, B¥gtmier, Bayliner, Cabo, Hatteras, Meridian, and ddey Marine, all subsidiaries
divisions of Brunswick. We also have dealer agregseith Azimut Yachts. These agreements allowoysurchase, stock, sell, and service
these manufacturers’ boats and products. Theseragres also allow us to use these manufacturensésatrade symbols, and intellectual
properties in our operations.

We are a party to a multi-year dealer agreemettit Bitinswick covering Sea Ray products that appaistas the exclusive dealer of Sea
Ray boats in our geographic markets. We are thkigive dealer for Boston Whaler and Bayliner thdoagmulti-year dealer agreement for
many of our geographic markets. We are a partynwblli-year dealer agreement with Hatteras Yadts gives us the exclusive right to sell
Hatteras Yachts throughout the states of Floridal¢eling the Florida panhandle), New Jersey, NewkYand Texas. We are also the exclu
dealer for Cabo Yachts throughout the states aiddpNew Jersey, and New York through a multi-yéealer agreement. In addition, we are
the exclusive dealer for Italy-based Azimut-Ben@ttoup’s product line, Azimut Yachts, for the Na#st United States from Maryland to
Maine and for the state of Florida through a mydtar dealer agreement. We believe non-Brunswickdsaffer a migration for our existing
customer base or fill a void in our product offgignand accordingly, do not compete with the bissigeenerated from our other prominent
brands.

As is typical in the industry, we deal with manutaers, other than Sea Ray, Boston Whaler, Baylidatteras, Cabo, and Azimut
Yachts, under renewable annual dealer agreemextts,of which gives us the right to sell various esknd models of boats within a given
geographic region. Any change or termination ogéhagreements, or the agreements discussed aboaayfreason, or changes in
competitive, regulatory, or marketing practices]uning rebate or incentive programs, could advgraiect our results of operations.
Although there are a limited number of manufacti@rthe type of boats and products that we s@lbelieve that adequate alternative sources
would be available to replace any manufacturerrdtieen Sea Ray as a product source. These altegrsturces may not be available at the
time of any interruption, and alternative produtisy not be available at comparable terms, whichdcaffect operating results adversely.

General economic conditions and consumer spenditigrps can negatively impact our operating resultdavorable local, regional,
national, or global economic developments or uadeties regarding future economic prospects coedllice consumer spending in the markets
we serve and adversely affect our business. Ecanooniditions in areas in which we operate dealpsshgarticularly Florida in which we
generated 45%,
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MARINEMAX, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)

54%, and 50% of our revenue during fiscal 2009,02@hd 2011, respectively, can have a major impaciur operations. Local influences,
such as corporate downsizing, military base clasimglement weather, and environmental conditisash as the BP oil spill in the Gulf of
Mexico, also could adversely affect our operationsertain markets.

In an economic downturn, consumer discretionaryndjpey levels generally decline, at times resuliindisproportionately large
reductions in the sale of luxury goods. Consumendjmg on luxury goods also may decline as a resudtwer consumer confidence levels,
even if prevailing economic conditions are favoealithough we have expanded our operations dyp@gds of stagnant or modestly
declining industry trends, the cyclical natureoé tecreational boating industry or the lack ofustdy growth may adversely affect our
business, financial condition, and results of opiena. Any period of adverse economic conditionter consumer confidence has a negative
effect on our business.

Lower consumer spending resulting from a downtarthe housing market and other economic factorsmsaly affected our business in
fiscal 2007 and continued weakness in consumerdspgmesulting from substantial weakness in thariirial markets and deteriorating
economic conditions had a very substantial negatifext on our business in fiscal 2008, 2009, 2@h@, 2011. These conditions caused us to
defer our acquisition program, delay new store o) reduce our inventory purchases, engage eniavy reduction efforts, close a number
of our retail locations, reduce our headcount, ameénd and replace our credit facility. Acquisiti@msl new store openings remain important
strategies to our company, and we plan to resumgrowth through these strategies when more noemahomic conditions return. However,
we cannot predict the length or severity of thesaworable economic or financial conditions or éx¢éent to which they will continue to
adversely affect our operating results nor can keelipt the effectiveness of the measures we h&ente address this environment or whether
additional measures will be necessary.

In order to provide comparability between periodsspnted, certain amounts have been reclassifiedthie previously reported
consolidated financial statements to conform tocitresolidated financial statement presentatiomefcurrent period. The consolidated
financial statements include our accounts and ¢hewnts of our subsidiaries, all of which are wiallvned. All significant intercompany
transactions and accounts have been eliminated.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:
Cash and Cash Equivalents

We consider all highly liquid investments with amginal maturity of three months or less to be ceghivalents.

Vendor Consideration Received

We account for consideration received from our wead accordance with FASB Accounting Standarddif@Zmtion 605-50, “Revenue
Recognition, Customer Payments and Incentives” CAB5-50"). ASC 605-50 requires us to classifyies assistance received from
manufacturers as a reduction of inventory costratated cost of sales as opposed to netting thstasse against our interest expense incurred
with our lenders. Pursuant to ASC 605-50, amouwstsived by us under our co-op assistance prognamsdur manufacturers are netted
against related advertising expenses.

Inventories

Inventory costs consist of the amount paid to aeguiventory, net of vendor consideration and pasehdiscounts, the cost of equipment
added, reconditioning costs, and transportatiotsae$ating to acquiring
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MARINEMAX, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)

inventory for sale. We state new boat, motor, aaiter inventories at the lower of cost, determineda specific-identification basis, or market.
We state used boat, motor, and trailer inventomesduding trade-ins, at the lower of cost, detereai on a specific-identification basis, or
market. We state parts and accessories at the lwivoeist, determined on an average cost basisadket We utilize our historical experience,
the aging of the inventories, and our consideradiocurrent market trends as the basis for deténgia lower of cost or market valuation
allowance. As of September 30, 2010 and 2011,awel of cost or market valuation allowance was $iilBon and $3.4 million, respectivel

If events occur and market conditions change, ogusie fair value to fall below carrying value, tbaver of cost or market valuation allowal
could increase.

Property and Equipment

We record property and equipment at cost, net ofimclated depreciation, and depreciate propertyegogment over their estimated
useful lives using the straight-line method. Weitzdige and amortize leasehold improvements oveildlser of the life of the lease or the
estimated useful life of the asset. Useful livasgorposes of computing depreciation are as follows

XYears
Buildings and improvements 5-40
Machinery and equipme! 3-10
Furniture and fixture 5-10
Vehicles 3-5

We remove the cost of property and equipment sofétared and the related accumulated deprecidtam the accounts at the time of
disposition and include any resulting gain or liosthe consolidated statements of operations. Vegehmaintenance, repairs, and minor
replacements to operations as incurred, and weadiapiand amortize major replacements and impravesiover their useful lives.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

FASB Accounting Standards Codification 360-10-42xdperty, Plant, and Equipment, Impairment or Désppof Long-Lived
Assets” (“ASC 360-10-40"), requires that long-livasisets, such as property and equipment and pectir@angibles subject to amortization,
be reviewed for impairment whenever events or chaiig circumstances indicate that the carrying arhofian asset may not be recoverable.
Recoverability of the asset is measured by compaudé its carrying amount to undiscounted futureaash flows the asset is expected to
generate. If such assets are considered to beredpaihe impairment to be recognized is measur¢kdeaamount by which the carrying amount
of the asset exceeds its fair market value. Estisnat expected future cash flows represent ourdstghate based on currently available
information and reasonable and supportable assangtAny impairment recognized in accordance wiBCA360-10-40 is permanent and may
not be restored. As of September 30, 2011, we badegognized any impairment of long-lived assetsdnnection with ASC 360-10-40 based
on our reviews.

Customer Deposits

Customer deposits primarily include amounts reakivem customers toward the purchase of boats. &fegnize these deposits as
revenue upon delivery to or acceptance by of ttetee boats to customers.

Insurance

We retain varying levels of risk relating to theumance policies we maintain, most significantlyrkess’ compensation insurance and
employee medical benefits. We are responsiblen®ctaims and losses incurred
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)

under these programs, limited by per occurrenceictdiles and paid claims or losses up to pre-détesthmaximum exposure limits. Our
third-party insurance carriers pay any losses alioeg@re-determined exposure limits. We estimatdiahility for incurred but not reported

losses using our historical loss experience, adgiuent, and industry information.

Revenue Recognition

We recognize revenue from boat, motor, and traides and parts and service operations at thethienkoat, motor, trailer, or part is
delivered to or accepted by the customer or theeis completed. We recognize deferred revenum fservice operations and slip and sto
services on a straight-line basis over the terth@fcontract or when service is completed. We neigegcommissions earned from a brokerage
sale at the time the related brokerage transactases. We recognize commissions earned by uddoing notes with financial institutions in
connection with customer boat financing when wegaize the related boat sales. We recognize matkétes earned on credit life, accident,
disability, and hull insurance products sold bydkarty insurance companies at the later of custanceptance of the insurance product as
evidenced by contract execution or when the related sale is recognized. Pursuant to negotiatezbatents with financial and insurance
institutions, we are charged back for a portiothefse fees should the customer terminate or dedatthe related finance or insurance contract
before it is outstanding for a stipulated minimuemnipd of time. We base the chargeback allowancé&hlvas not material to the consolidated
financial statements taken as a whole as of SemeBt) 2010 or 2011, on our experience with repaymer defaults on the related finance or
insurance contracts.

We also recognize commissions earned on extendedntya service contracts sold on behalf of thirdip&surance companies at the
later of customer acceptance of the service canteams as evidenced by contract execution or neitiog of the related boat sale. We are
charged back for a portion of these commissionsilshibe customer terminate or default on the sergmntract prior to its scheduled maturity.
We determine the chargeback allowance, which wasnaterial to the consolidated financial statemégiten as a whole as of September 30,
2010 or 2011, based upon our experience with textioins or defaults on the service contracts.

The following table sets forth percentages of @wenue generated by certain products and senfaresach of last three fiscal years.

2009 2010 2011
New boat sale 60.7% 54.4% 60.6%
Used boat sale 22.5% 24.(% 19.(%
Maintenance, repair, and storage serv 7.€% 9.8% 8.9%
Finance and insurance produ 2.7% 2.7% 2. 7%
Parts and accessori 5.C% 6.4% 6.2%
Brokerage service 1.2% 2.7% 2.6%

Total Revenut 100.(% 100.(% 100.(%

Stock-Based Compensation

We account for our share-based compensation ptdliosving the provisions of FASB Accounting Standafodification 718,
“Compensation — Stock Compensation” (“ASC 718”)aktordance with ASC 718, we use the Black-Scha&sation model for valuing all
stockbased compensation and shares purchased undemfiieyiee Stock Purchase Plan. We measure compeméaticestricted stock awar
and restricted stock units at fair value on thengdate based on the number of shares expectesbt@nd the quoted market price of our
common stock. For restricted stock units with madanditions, we utilize a Monte Carlo simulationteedded
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in a lattice model to determine the fair value. leognize compensation cost for all awards in egsjinet of estimated forfeitures, on a
straight-line basis over the requisite servicequefor each separately vesting portion of the award

Advertising and Promotional Costs

We expense advertising and promotional costs asred and include them in selling, general, andiathtnative expenses in the
accompanying consolidated statements of operatRunsuant to ASC 605-50, we net amounts receivagshynder our co-op assistance
programs from our manufacturers against the relatiertising expenses. Total advertising and pramat expenses approximated $9.4
million, $8.5 million, and $11.2 million, net ofle¢ed co-op assistance of approximately $526,0884$00, and $364,000, for the fiscal years
ended September 30, 2009, 2010, and 2011, resekyctiv

Income Taxes

We account for income taxes in accordance with FA8Bounting Standards Codification 740, “Income @six(“ASC 740"). Under
ASC 740, we recognize deferred tax assets anditiebifor the future tax consequences attributableemporary differences between the
financial statement carrying amounts of existingeds and liabilities and their respective tax basfs measure deferred tax assets and liab
using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxabbme in the years in which we expect those teary differences to be recovered or
settled. We record valuation allowances to redusedeferred tax assets to the amount expected tedlieed by considering all available
positive and negative evidence.

Pursuant to ASC 740, we must consider all postivé negative evidence regarding the realizatiadeédrred tax assets, including past
operating results and future sources of taxablenre Under the provisions of ASC 740-10, we deteemithat our net deferred tax asset
needed to be fully reserved given recent earningsradustry trends.

The Worker, Homeownership, and Business Assistactef 2009 was signed into law in November 200BisTact allowed us to
carryback our 2009 net operating loss, which hadlaation allowance recorded against the entiretarhand which we were not able to
carryback under the prior tax law. The additiorergback generated a tax refund of $19.2 millioine Tax refund was recorded as income tax
benefit during our quarter ended December 31, 20@9period in which this act was enacted. We fdemharryback claim with the Internal
Revenue Service, and we received a $19.2 milliemekin the quarter ended March 31, 2010.

Concentrations of Credit Risk

Financial instruments, which potentially subjectasoncentrations of credit risk, consist prindipaf cash and cash equivalents and
accounts receivable. Concentrations of creditwigh respect to our cash and cash equivalentsraied primarily to amounts held with
financial institutions. Concentrations of credgkriarising from our receivables are limited prifyatd amounts due from manufacturers and
financial institutions.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The carrying amount of our financial instrumentpragimates fair value due either to length to matwor existence of interest rates that
approximate prevailing market rates unless otherdisclosed in these consolidated financial stattsne

Use of Estimates and Assumptions

The preparation of consolidated financial stateméntonformity with accounting principles geneyalkcepted in the United States
requires us to make estimates and assumptionaffieat the reported amounts of
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assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingesets and liabilities at the date of the conat#id financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the neggrériods. Significant estimates made by us imtttompanying consolidated financial
statements relate to valuation allowances, valnaifdong-lived assets, and valuation of accrua&gual results could differ materially from
those estimates.

3. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE:

Trade receivables consist primarily of receivalitem financial institutions, which provide fundirigr customer boat financing and
amounts due from financial institutions earned framanging financing with our customers. We norgnadllect these receivables within
30 days of the sale. Trade receivables also incndeunts due from customers on the sale of boatts, service, and storage. Amounts due
from manufacturers represent receivables for varinanufacturer programs and parts and service penfrmed pursuant to the
manufacturers’ warranties.

The allowance for uncollectible receivables, whigds not material to the consolidated financialestents as of September 30, 2010 or
2011, was based on our consideration of customangat practices, past transaction history with @ustrs, and economic conditions. When
an account becomes uncollectable, we expenseaibad debt and we credit payments subsequentliveec® the bad debt expense account.
We review the allowance for uncollectible receiesbivhen an event or other change in circumstamsedts in a change in the estimate of the
ultimate collectability of a specific account.

Accounts receivable, net consisted of the followdth@eptember 30,

2010 2011
(Amounts in thousands)
Trade receivable $10,41¢ $10,69:
Amounts due from manufacture 12,021 5,392
Other receivable 33€ 25€
$22,77¢ $16,34¢
4. INVENTORIES:
Inventories, net consisted of the following at ®ember 30,
__ 2010 __ 2011
(Amounts in thousands)
New boats, motors, and traile $166,28: $189,23:
Used boats, motors, and trail 16,737 24,09¢
Parts, accessories, and ot 5,70 6,304
$188,72: $219,63:
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5. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT:
Property and equipment consisted of the followih§eptember 30,

2010 2011

(Amounts in thousands)
Land $ 43,32¢ $ 43,04¢
Buildings and improvemen 78,48: 79,70¢
Machinery and equipme! 26,53¢ 25,97¢
Furniture and fixture 4,68( 4,08:
Vehicles 5,16¢ 5,241
158,19: 158,05°
Less— Accumulated depreciation and amortizat (56,02) (55,950
$102,17: $102,10°

Depreciation and amortization expense on propertlyesjuipment totaled approximately $10.4 millio,8million, and $6.5 million for
the fiscal years ended September 30, 2009, 20H02@11, respectively.

During fiscal 2011, we reclassified approximate®y/Ssmillion from prepaid expenses and other curassets to property and equipment
related to a store previously classified as avilédr sale within the consolidated balance shagtwe plan to lease the facility. In accordance
with FASB Accounting Standards Codification 360rdperty, Plant, and Equipment”, we reduced theytegramount by approximately
$90,000 for the depreciation that would have beeognized had the store been continuously cladsifseheld and used.

6. OTHER LONG -TERM ASSETS:

During February 2006, we became party to a joimtwe with Brunswick that acquired certain reahéstnd assets of Great American
Marina for an aggregate purchase price of approbeéin&11.0 million, of which we contributed approately $4.0 million and Brunswick
contributed approximately $7.0 million. The ternighk® agreement specify that we operate and maitihai service business and that
Brunswick operate and maintain the marina busir@ssultaneously with the closing, the acquiredtgriecame Gulfport Marina, LLC
(“Gulfport™). We account for our investment in Gpidfrt in accordance with FASB Accounting Standarddification 323, “Investment —
Equity Method and Joint Venture”. Accordingly, wejast the carrying amount of our investment in @ait to recognize our share of earnings
or losses, based on the service business we operate

7. SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS:

In June 2011, we entered into an amendment tormantory Financing Agreement (the “Credit Faciljtydriginally entered into in June
2010 with GE Commercial Distribution Finance Comp&iGECDF"), as amended in December 2010. The June 2011 amehdmemg othe
things, modified the amount of borrowing availailinterest rate, and maturity date of the Créditility. The amended Credit Facility
provides a floor plan financing commitment up t&8Inillion, up from the previous limit of $100 mdh, subject to borrowing base
availability resulting from the amount and agingoaf inventory. The amended Credit Facility matunedune 2014, subject to extension for
two one-year periods, with the approval of GECDF.

The amended Credit Facility has certain finanaslemants as specified in the agreement. The cot@irartude provisions that our
leverage ratio must not exceed 2.75 to 1.0 andatlvaturrent ratio must be greater than 1.2 to AtGBeptember 30, 2011, we were in
compliance with all of the covenants under the afedrCredit Facility. The interest rate for amouwnitstanding under the amended Credit
Facility is 383 basis points above the one-monthdam Inter-Bank Offering Rate (“LIBOR”). There ia anused line fee of ten basis points on
the unused portion of the amended Credit Facility.
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Advances under the amended Credit Facility arébeid by the acquisition of eligible new and usegentory or are re-advances against
eligible new and used inventory that have beeriglgrpaid-off. Advances on new inventory matur@8l, days from the original invoice date.
Advances on used inventory mature 361 days frond#te we acquire the used inventory. Each advansehiject to a curtailment schedule,
which requires that we pay down the balance of eaefance on a periodic basis starting after sixtimorThe curtailment schedule varies bi
on the type and value of the inventory. The cotkdtéor the amended Credit Facility is all of owrponal property with certain limited
exceptions. None of our real estate has been plefdgeollateral for the amended Credit Facility.

In September 2011, we entered into an extensiautfir August 31, 2012 to our Inventory Financing&ament (the “CGI Facility”),
originally entered into in October 2010 with CGh&nce, Inc. The CGI Facility provides a floor pfarancing commitment of $30 million and
is designed to provide financing for our Azimutéméory needs. The CGI Facility has an approximateyear term, which is typical in the
industry for similar floor plan facilities; howevezach advance under the CGI Facility can remaistanding for 18 months. The interest rate
for amounts outstanding under the CGI Facility38 ®asis points above the one-month LIBOR.

Advances under the CGI Facility are initiated by #rquisition of eligible new and used inventoryar re-advances against eligible new
and used inventory that has been partially paidAdfzances on new inventory mature 550 days froerattivance date. Advances on used
inventory mature 366 days from the advance dateh Bdvance is subject to a curtailment scheduleghwiequires that we pay down the
balance of each advance on a periodic basis,rgatter six months for used inventory and one yeanew inventory. The curtailment
schedule varies based on the type of inventory.

The collateral for the CGI Facility is our entirgifut inventory financed by the CGI Facility witkrtain limited exceptions. None of ¢
real estate has been pledged as collateral fa€@leFacility. We must maintain compliance with eémtfinancial covenants as specified in the
CGl Facility. The covenants include provisions tbat leverage ratio must not exceed 2.75 to 1.0tladour current ratio must be greater than
1.2 to 1.0. At September 30, 2011, we were in caanpk with all of the covenants under the CGI KgciThe CGI Facility contemplates that
other lenders may be added by us to finance otiveniory not financed under the CGI Facility, ieded.

The amended Credit Facility and CGI Facility replaar prior $180 million credit facility that praled for a line of credit with asset-
based borrowing availability. The interest ratedorounts outstanding under the prior credit faciies 490 basis points above the one-month
LIBOR.

As of September 30, 2010 and 2011, our indebtedassxciated with financing our inventory and wogkaapital needs totaled
approximately $93.8 million and $118.8 million, pestively. At September 30, 2010 and 2011, thedsterate on the outstanding short-term
borrowings was 4.0% and 4.0%, respectively. At Seter 30, 2011, our additional available borrowingder our amended Credit Facility
and CGl Facility were approximately $53.2 millioaded upon the outstanding borrowing base avaitabili

As is common in our industry, we receive interestistance directly from boat manufacturers, incigddrunswick. The interest
assistance programs vary by manufacturer, but gépénclude periods of free financing or reducaterest rate programs. The interest
assistance may be paid directly to us or our leddpending on the arrangements the manufacturezdtallished. We classify interest
assistance received from manufacturers as a reduatiinventory cost and related cost of salespp®sed to netting the assistance against our
interest expense incurred with our lenders.

The availability and costs of borrowed funds caveasely affect our ability to obtain adequate bogéntory and the holding costs of tl
inventory as well as the ability and willingnessoofr customers to finance boat purchases. As aeSdger 30, 2011, we had no lotegm debt
However, we rely on our amended Credit Facility &gl Facility to purchase our inventory of boatheTaging of our inventory limits our
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borrowing capacity as defined curtailments redieealowable advance rate as our inventory agesa€oess to funds under our amended
Credit Facility and CGlI Facility also depends uploa ability of our lenders to meet their fundingrouitments, particularly if they experience
shortages of capital or experience excessive vaurhborrowing requests from others during a sheriod of time. A continuation of
depressed economic conditions, weak consumer gpgertdrmoil in the credit markets, and lender diffties could interfere with our ability to
utilize our amended Credit Facility and CGI Fagilid fund our operations. Any inability to utilizeir amended Credit Facility or CGI Facility
could require us to seek other sources of fundingpay amounts outstanding under the credit aggetmor replace or supplement our credit
agreements, which may not be possible at all oeundmmercially reasonable terms.

Similarly, decreases in the availability of crealitd increases in the cost of credit adversely affecability of our customers to purchase
boats from us and thereby adversely affect ouitahd sell our products and impact the profitaiildf our finance and insurance activities.
Tight credit conditions, during fiscal 2009, 20a0d 2011, adversely affected the ability of custente finance boat purchases, which had a
negative effect on our operating results.

8. INCOME TAXES:

The components of our benefit from income taxesisted of the following for the fiscal years end@sptember 30,

2009 2010 2011
(Amounts in thousands)

Current benefit

Federa $ (10,009 $ (19,249 $ (235)
State (139 (344 (132)
Total current benef (10,149 (19,58¢) (367)
Deferred benefi
Federa 1,38( — —
State 138 — —
Total deferred benef 1,518 — —
Total income tax benet $ (8,630 $ (19,589 $ (367)
Below is a reconciliation of the statutory feddredome tax rate to our effective tax rate for tisedl years ended September 30,
2009 2010 2011
Federal tax provisio (35.0% (35.0% (35.0%
State taxes, net of federal effi (4.0% (8.9% (6.99%
Stock based compensati 0.4% 0.5% 0.7%
Valuation allowanct 29.5% (71.0% 39.5%
Other (1.0% (0.9% (1.5%
Effective tax rate (10.1)% (114.0% (3.)%
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Deferred income taxes reflect the impact of tempodéferences between the amount of assets abiities recognized for financial
reporting purposes and such amounts recognizeéddome tax purposes. The tax effects of these teanpdlifferences representing the
components of deferred tax assets (liabilitie§egtember 30 were as follows:

2010 2011
(Amounts in thousands)
Current deferred tax asse

Inventories $ 2,69( $ 1,94t
Accrued expense 3,49¢ 2,32(
Current deferred tax asst 6,18¢ 4,26
Valuation Allowance (6,186 (4,26%)
Net current deferred tax ass $ — $ —
Long-term deferred tax asse
Depreciation and amortizatic $ 19,14: $ 15,50¢
Stock based compensati 4,712 4,52¢
FIN 48 deferred tax ass 547 503
Tax loss carryforward 17,13¢ 25,87:
Other 10€ 10€
Long-term deferred tax asse 41,64¢ 46,51
Valuation allowanct (41,649 (46,519
Net lon¢-term deferred tax asse $ — $ =

Pursuant to ASC 740, we must consider all poskivé negative evidence regarding the realizatiadefdrred tax assets, including past
operating results and future sources of taxablenre Under the provisions of ASC 740, we determthed the entire net deferred tax asset
(“DTA”) needed to be reserved given recent earnengs industry trends. The total valuation allowaat8eptember 30, 2010 and 2011 was
$47.8 million and $50.8 million, respectively.

We have adopted the provisions of FIN 48, now A49Q. Under ASC 740, the impact of an uncertain @sitpn taken or expected to be
taken on an income tax return must be recognizékiinancial statements at the largest amountishaore-likely-than-not to be sustained
upon audit by the relevant taxing authority. An emain income tax position will not be recognizedhe financial statements unless it is more
likely than not of being sustained. As of Septen®r2010 and 2011, we had approximately $1.7 onilaind $1.6 million, respectively, of
gross unrecognized tax benefits, of which approxémgesl.2 million and $1.1 million, respectively recognized, would impact the effective
tax rate before considering a change in valuatilmwance.

The reconciliation of the total amount recordedunrecognized tax benefits at the beginning andoétide fiscal years ended
September 30, 2010 and 2011 is as follows:

2010 2011
(Amounts in thousands)
Unrecognized tax benefits at the beginning of thar $ 1,89/ $ 1,73¢

Increases in tax positions for prior ye
Decreases in tax positions for prior ye

60

(57)
Lapse of statute of limitatior (159 (159
Unrecognized tax benefits at September $ 1,73¢
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Consistent with our prior practices, we recognigeriest and penalties related to uncertain taxipasias a component of income tax
expense. As of September 30, 2010 and 2011, intenelspenalties represented approximately $6630005658,000, respectively, of the gi
unrecognized tax benefits.

We are subject to tax by both federal and stat@geaxuthorities. Until the respective statutesimithtions expire, we are subject to
income tax audits in the jurisdictions in which agerate. We are no longer subject to U.S. fedaraékaminations for fiscal years prior to
2009, and we are not subject to audits prior td20@8 fiscal year for the majority of the statdgdictions.

It is reasonably possible that a change to thé amt@unt of unrecognized tax benefits could ocouhe next 12 months based on
examinations by tax authorities, the expiratiostatutes of limitations, or potential settlemerfteutstanding positions. However, we do not
expect the change to be significant to the ové@hnce of unrecognized tax benefits.

9. STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY:

In November 2005, our Board of Directors approvethare repurchase plan allowing our company torofyaise up to 1,000,000 shares
of our common stock. Under the plan, we may bukizaenmon stock from time to time in the open maxkein privately negotiated blocks,
dependent upon various factors, including price aradlability of the shares, and general marketdagmns. Through September 30, 2011, we
had purchased an aggregate of 790,900 shares ofaorstock under the plan for an aggregate purghidse of approximately $15.8 million.

In September 2009, we completed a public offeriihg,90,000 shares of common stock at a priced@tiblic of $7.00 per share for
total gross proceeds of approximately $20.9 millidhe net proceeds of the offering were used taaedur shorterm borrowings and genei
corporate purposes.

10. STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION:

In accordance with ASC 718, we use the Black-Schedduation model for valuing all stock-based congadion and shares purchased
under the Employee Stock Purchase Plan. We measamgensation for restricted stock awards and o#stristock units at fair value on the
grant date based on the number of shares expectest and the quoted market price of our commackstor restricted stock units with
market conditions, we utilize a Monte Carlo simigiatembedded in a lattice model to determine tirevidue. We recognize compensation
for all awards in earnings, net of estimated fauiis, on a straighine basis over the requisite service period faheseparately vesting porti
of the award.

Cash received from option exercises under all shased compensation arrangements for the fiscas yraled September 30, 2009,
2010, and 2011 was approximately $766,000, $1.Romjland $1.4 million, respectively. Tax benefigglized for tax deductions from option
exercises for the fiscal year ended September@I) #as approximately $19,000. There were no tawefits realized for tax deductions from
option exercises for the fiscal years ended Seped®, 2009 and 2011. We currently expect to sasishre-based awards with registered
shares available to be issued.

11. THE INCENTIVE STOCK PLANS:

During January 2011, our stockholders approvedpgsal to authorize our 2011 Stock-Based Compeams&iian (“2011 Plan”), which
replaced our 2007 Incentive Compensation Plan (720@&n”). Our 2011 Plan provides for the granttotk options, stock appreciation rights,
restricted stock, stock units, bonus stock, divitlequivalents, other stock related awards, andpagnce awards (collectively “awards”), that
may be settled in cash, stock, or other property. ZD11 Plan is designed to attract, motivatejmetand reward our executives, employees,
officers, directors, and independent contractorpimyiding such persons with annual
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and long-term performance incentives to expend thaximum efforts in the creation of stockholdeluea The total number of shares of our
common stock that may be subject to awards un@e2@i 1 Plan is equal to 1,000,000 shares, playi)shares available for issuance and not
subject to an award under the 2007 Plan, which208s456 shares at the time of approval of the Za#, (ii) the number of shares with
respect to which awards granted under the 2011a&Mdrthe 2007 Plan terminate without the issuahtieeoshares or where the shares are
forfeited or repurchased; (iii) with respect to agdsagranted under the 2011 Plan and the 2007 tlamumber of shares that are not issued
result of the award being settled for cash or etis® not issued in connection with the exercispayment of the award; and (iv) the numbe
shares that are surrendered or withheld in payiethie exercise price of any award or any tax wittlhng requirements in connection with
any award granted under the 2011 Plan and the PRO¥ The 2011 Plan terminates in January 2021aamdds may be granted at any time
during the life of the 2011 Plan. The date on wlaalards vest are determined by the Board of Dirsaiothe Plan Administrator. The exerc
prices of options are determined by the Board oé&ors or the Plan Administrator and are at legsial to the fair market value of shares of
common stock on the date of grant. The term ofomgtunder the 2011 Plan may not exceed ten yelesofitions granted have varying ves
periods. To date, we have not settled or been umaepbligation to settle any awards in cash.

The following table summarizes option activity fr@&eptember 30, 2010 through September 30, 2011:

Weighted
Aggregate Weighted Average
Shares Intrinsic Average Remaining
Available Options Value Exercise Contractual
for Grant Outstanding (in thousands Price Life

Balance at September 30, 2010 640,95: 2,101,88 $ 3,71: $10.27 6.8
Options authorize 1,000,001 — —
Options grante! (458,35() 458,35( $ 7.6C
Options cancelled/forfeited/expirt 104,41¢ (104,419 $ 10.62
Restricted stock awards issL (62,399 — —
Restricted stock awards forfeit 277,33« — —
Options exercise — (195,79) $ 4.84

Balance at September 30, 2( 1,501,96: 2,260,02. $ 2,664 $ 10.1¢ 6.5

Exercisable at September 30, 2( 1,775,56 $ 252 $ 10.7¢ 5.9

The weighted-average grant date fair value of oytigranted during the fiscal years ended SepteBthet009, 2010, and 2011 was
$1.75, $5.41, and $5.15, respectively. The totainsic value of options exercised during the flsezars ended September 30, 2009, 2010, and
2011 was approximately $54,000, $969,000, and $D66 respectively.

As of September 30, 2010 and 2011, there was appataly $1.1 million and $1.0 million, respectivetf unrecognized compensation
costs related to non-vested options that are eggdotbe recognized over a weighted average pefi@dl years and 3.5 years, respectively.
The total fair value of options vested during tisedl years ended September 30, 2009, 2010, arid\284 approximately $1.2 million,
$2.4 million, and $4.1 million, respectively.

We continued using the Blackeholes model to estimate the fair value of optigrasited during fiscal 2011. The expected termptioos
granted is derived from the output of the optioicipg model and represents the period of time dipdibns granted are expected to be
outstanding. Volatility is based on the historiealatility of our common stock. The risk-free rde periods within the contractual term of the
options is based on the U.S. Treasury yield cumeffect at the time of grant.
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The following are the weighted-average assumptitsasi for the fiscal years ended September 30:

2009 2010 2011
Dividend yield 0.C% 0.C% 0.C%
Risk-free interest rat 2.2% 2.3% 1.3%
Volatility 63.4% 85.8% 94.%
Expected life 6.0 year 5.0 year 4.4 year

12. EMPLOYEE STOCK PURCHASE PLAN:

During February 2008, our stockholders approved@®8 Employee Stock Purchase Plan (“Stock Purchis®). The Stock Purchase
Plan provides for up to 500,000 shares of commaockstb be available for purchase by our regularleyges who have completed at least one
year of continuous service. In addition there wE2g37 shares of common stock available under 898 Employee Stock Purchase P!
which have been made available for issuance ungeBtock Purchase Plan. The Stock Purchase Plaidpsofor implementation of up to 10
annual offerings beginning on the first day of (&ostarting in 2008, with each offering termington September 30 of the following year.
Each annual offering may be divided into two sienth offerings. For each offering, the purchaseegpper share will be the lower of (i) 85%
the closing price of the common stock on the fiesg of the offering or (ii) 85% of the closing piof the common stock on the last day of the
offering. The purchase price is paid through peci@éyroll deductions not to exceed 10% of theipigi@nt’s earnings during each offering
period. However, no participant may purchase mioae $25,000 worth of common stock annually.

We continued using the Black-Scholes model to edtinthe fair value of options granted to purch&sges issued pursuant to the Stock
Purchase Plan. The expected term of options grasi@detived from the output of the option pricingael and represents the period of time
options granted are expected to be outstandingtNt) is based on the historical volatility of ocommon stock. The risk-free rate for periods
within the contractual term of the options is basedhe U.S. Treasury yield curve in effect attilve of grant.

The following are the weighted-average assumptimsesl for the fiscal years ended September 30:

2009 2010 2011
Dividend yield 0.C% 0.C% 0.C%
Risk-free interest rat 0.5% 0.2% 0.2%
Volatility 160.4% 65.4% 48.%
Expected life six month: six month: six month:

As of September 30, 2011, we had issued 436,82&slod common stock under our Stock Purchase Plan.

13. RESTRICTED STOCK AWARDS:

We have granted non-vested (restricted) stock amardestricted stock units (collectively, “resteid stock awards”) to certain key
employees pursuant to the 2007 Plan. The restrittark awards have varying vesting periods, buegsly become fully vested at either the
end of year four or the end of year five, dependinghe specific award. Certain awards grantedsoaf 2008 require certain levels of
performance by us after the grant before they areegl. Such performance metrics were required tchieved by September 2011, and the
awards were forfeited. Certain awards grantedsicafi2010 and 2011 require a minimum level of parnce of our stock price compared to
an index before they are earned. Such performarteas must be achieved by September 2012 or 2018 awards will be forfeited. The
stock underlying the vested restricted stock umitishe delivered upon vesting. During fiscal 203 reversed approximately $3.9 million of
stock compensation expense, resulting from theopmdnce criteria of certain awards no longer begiradpable.
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We accounted for the restricted stock awards gdamséeng the measurement and recognition provisid#sSC 718. Accordingly, the fair
value of the restricted stock awards is measureiti@grant date and recognized in earnings overeitpgisite service period for each separately
vesting portion of the award.

The following table summarizes restricted stock @aectivity from September 30, 2010 through Septen3, 2011:

Weighted

Average

Grant Date

Shares Fair Value

Non-vested balance at September 30, 2010 434,16 $ 18.31
Changes during the perit

Awards grantes 62,39: $ 7.5¢

Awards vester (189,82) $ 22.6:

Awards forfeitec (84,789 $ 14.9]

Non-vested balance at September 30, 2 221,94t $ 12.8¢

As of September 30, 2011, we had approximately #84bof total unrecognized compensation cost relaienon-vested restricted stock
awards. We expect to recognize that cost over ghtail-average period of 1.7 years.

14. NET INCOME/LOSS PER SHARE:

The following is a reconciliation of the sharesdigethe denominator for calculating basic andtdidinet income/loss per share for the
fiscal years ended September 30:

2009 2010 2011
Weighted average common shares outstanding ussdaulating basic income

(loss) per shar 18,685,42 21,998,74 22,375,27

Effect of dilutive options — 599,21( —
Weighted average common and common equivalent shaesl in calculatin

diluted income (loss) per she 18,685,42 22,597,95 22,375,27

Options to purchase approximately 764,000, 979a40@D807,000 shares of common stock were outstardiSgptember 30, 2009, 2010,
and 2011, respectively, but were not included enabmputation of income (loss) per share becawgseftions’ exercise prices were greater
than the average market price of our common siaa#l therefore, their effect would be anti-dilutivecordingly, there is no dilutive effect of
shares used in the denominator for calculatingchesil diluted income (loss) per share. For thesyeaded September 30, 2009 and 2011, no
options were included in the computation of basid diluted loss per share because we reportedlasgeand the effect of their inclusion
would be anti-dilutive.

15. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES:

Lease Commitments

We lease certain land, buildings, machinery, eqeiptnand vehicles related to our dealerships undercancelable third-party operating
leases. Certain of our leases include optionsefioewal periods and provisions for escalation. Rexenses, including month-to-month
rentals, were approximately $9.2 million, $6.7 ioill, and $6.1 million for the fiscal years endegt®mber 30, 2009, 2010, and 2011,
respectively.
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Future minimum lease payments under non-cancetgideating leases at September 30, 2011, werelas/$ol

(Amounts in thousands

2012 $ 5,78
2013 4.52¢
2014 3,44z
2015 2,79¢
2016 1,77¢
Thereaftel 2,131
Total $ 20,45(

Other Commitments and Contingencies

We are party to various legal actions arising mdhdinary course of business. While it is not ifdlaso determine the actual outcome of
these actions as of September 30, 2011, we doatlievb that these matters will have a material eslveffect on our consolidated financial
condition, results of operations, or cash flows.

During fiscal 2009, 2010, and 2011, we incurredsassociated with store closings and lease tetioitsaof approximately $6.2 million,
$1.2 million, and $750,000, respectively. Thesaspsimarily related to the future minimum opergtirase payments of the closed locations.
The store closings were a key component in ourtetdobetter match our fixed costs with the declmeetail business caused by the soft
economic conditions. The store closing costs haantincluded in selling, general, and administeaéixpenses in the consolidated statements
of operations during fiscal 2009, 2010, and 2011.

In connection with our workers’ compensation inswepolicies, we maintain a letter of credit in #mount of $1.7 million with our
policy holder. The letter of credit is collateraizby a certificate of deposit held by the bank tbsued the letter of credit. The certificate of
deposit is classified as cash and cash equivaletiie® accompanying consolidated balance sheeatt@sptember 30, 2011.

We are subject to federal and state environmeatallations, including rules relating to air and evgiollution and the storage and
disposal of gasoline, oil, other chemicals and eadte believe that we are in compliance with s@agulations.
16. EMPLOYEE 401(k) PROFIT SHARING PLANS:

Employees are eligible to participate in our 40 Kkdfit Sharing Plan (the “Plan”) following thei®Qlay introductory period starting
either April 1 or October 1, provided that they afeyears of age. Under the Plan, we match 25%uuicipants’ contributions, up to a
maximum of 5% of each participant’s compensatioe. 8ntributed, under the Plan, or pursuant to pres/similar plans, approximately
$167,000, $150,000, and $283,000 for the fiscatsyeaded September 30, 2009, 2010, and 2011, taspgc
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17. QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (UNAUDITED):

The following table sets forth certain unaudite@uderly financial data for each of our last eighagers. The information has been

derived from unaudited financial statements thabei@ve reflect all adjustments, consisting orflyjormal recurring adjustments, necessary
for the fair presentation of such quarterly finah@nformation.

December 31 September 3C December 31 September 3C
March 31, June 30, March 31, June 30,
2009 2010 2010 2010 2010 2011 2011 2011
(Amounts in thousands except share and per share g

Revenue $ 100,44¢ $ 110,11¢ $ 115,38: $ 124,39: $ 92,19( $ 115,75¢ $ 153,17: $ 119,77
Cost of sale: 78,47¢ 85,91( 80,82¢ 94,31¢ 68,60¢ 88,96 114,08t 89,74:
Gross profil 21,97! 24,20¢ 34,55« 30,07¢ 23,58. 26,79¢ 39,08: 30,03«
Selling, general, and administrative

expense 29,62¢ 29,63: 33,34( 31,37 27,44 30,44¢ 35,224 34,78¢
Income (loss) from operatiol (7,65¢) (5,425) 1,21¢ (1,29¢) (3,859) (3,65)) 3,85¢ (4,757)
Interest expens 1,462 1,05¢ 70z 702 842 83€ 837 972
Income (loss) before income tax

benefit (9,120 (6,489 512 (1,999 (4,702) (4,487) 3,022 (5,72%)
Income tax benef (19,279 (14¢6) — (169) — — (339) (34)
Net income (loss $ 10,15 $ (6,33%) $ 517 $ (1,830 $ (4,702) $ (4,487) $ 3,35¢ $ (5,68¢9)
Net income (loss) per shai

Diluted $ 0.4 $ (0.29) $ 0.0Z $ (0.08) $ (0.2]) $ (0.20) $ 0.1F $ (0.25)
Weighted average number of shai

Diluted 22,344,68 21,982,63 22,793,21 22,139,15 22,239,78 22,329,15 23,103,28 22,492,15
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Exhibit 10.26(a

CGlI Finance, Inc.
1407 Fleet Street,®2 floor
Baltimore, Maryland 21231

September 14, 2011
VIA FEDERAL EXPRESS

MARINEMAX, Inc.

18167 US Highway 19 North

Suite 300

Clearwater, FL 33764

Attention: Michael McLamb, Chief Financial Officer

Re: Notice of Extension of CGI Finance, Inc. Fl@dan Loan Agreement dated October 7, 2010 (thistéision”)
Dear Mike:

We refer to that certain Floor Plan Loan Agreenuied October 7, 2010 by and among MARINEMAX, IN&ZDelaware corporation,
MARINEMAX EAST, INC., a Delaware corporation, MARBMAX SERVICES, INC., a Delaware corporation, MARINEAX
NORTHEAST, LLC, a Delaware limited liability compamBOATING GEAR CENTER, LLC, a Delaware limited idity company, U<
LIQUIDATORS, LLC, a Delaware limited liability congmy, and NEWCOAST FINANCIAL SERVICES, LLC, a Delargdimited liability
company (each a “ Borrowérand collectively the “ Borrowery, and CGIl FINANCE, INC., a Delaware corporatidndether with its
successors and assigns, “ Lentdthe “ Agreement). Capitalized terms used but not defined in taitension shall have the meanings
assigned to them in the Agreement.

In accordance with Section 2.04(b) of the Agreenhemder is pleased to hereby notify Borrowers eféltension of the Termination
Date of the Floor Plan Credit. Hereafter the Teation Date of the Floor Plan Credit extended torBeers under the Agreement shall be
August 31, 2012unless that date is further extended by Lendesisdle and absolute discretion in accordance Séittion 2.04(b) of the
Agreement.

This Extension is the firsiccasion of a grant by Lender of a request by Beers for an extension of the Termination Date effioor
Plan Credit.

By countersignature below, Borrowers (1) acknowtettte receipt and sufficiency of this Extension),gftirm and restate the
representations and warranties specified at ArGadé the Agreement, and (3) acknowledge that, gixas expressly modified and superseded
by this Extension, the terms and provisions ofAeeement and the other Credit Documents



MarineMax, Inc.

Extension of CGI Finance, Inc. Floor Plan Loan Agnent dated October 7, 2010
September 14, 2011

Page 2

ratified and confirmed and shall continue in fatde and effect. Borrowers and Lender agree tleaftireement and the other Credit
Documents, as hereby extended, shall continue tedad, valid, binding and enforceable in accor@awith their respective terms.

Yours truly

Herve Bonnet

President and Chief Executive Officer
Acknowledged and agreed, this®t5 day of Septemb&t:2

MarineMax, Inc.

MarineMax East, Inc.
MarineMax Services, Inc.
MarineMax Northeast LLC

US Liquidators, LLC

Newcoast Financial Services, LL

By:
Print Name: Michael H. McLam
Its: EVP
Being duly authorize:

Boating Gear Center, LLC

By: MarineMax East, Inc.
its sole membe

By:

Print Name: Michael H. McLam
Its: EVP
Being duly authorize:




Name

MarineMax East, Inc.(1)
MarineMax Services, Inc.(
MarineMax Northeast, LLC(Z
Boating Gear Center, LLC(:

US Liquidators, LLC(1

Newcoast Financial Services, LLC(
My Web Services, LLC(1
MarineMax Charter Services, LLC(
MarineMax Vacations, LTD(2

(1) Wholly owned subsidiary of MarineMax, In
(2) Wholly owned subsidiary of MarineMax East, i

LIST OF SUBSIDIARIES

Exhibit 21

State or Jurisdiction of
Incorporation or Organization

Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
British Virgin Islands



Exhibit 23.1

Consent of Independent Registered Certified Publi&.ccounting Firm
We consent to the incorporation by reference ifoHewing Registration Statements:

1) Registration Statement (Form S-3 No. 333-153@@8jaining to the 2008 shelf registration of Mahfax, Inc. and the related
Prospectus,

2) Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-141@®rjaining to the 2007 Incentive Compensation BfadarineMax, Inc.,
3) Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-833&2daining to the 1998 Incentive Stock Plan of MeaNlax, Inc.,

4) Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-633@rjaining to the 1998 Incentive Stock Plan andl®@8 Employee Stock
Purchase Plan of MarineMax, Inc.,

5) Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-1563&8jaining to the 2008 Employee Stock Purchase #fidMarineMax, Inc.,
and

6) Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-177@&aining to the 2011 Stock-Based Compensatian &8 MarineMax, Inc.;

of our reports dated December 8, 2011, with resjoettte consolidated financial statements of Maviag, Inc. and the effectiveness of inter
control over financial reporting of MarineMax, Inmcluded in this Annual Report (Form 10-K) of M&Max Inc. for the year ended
September 30, 2011.

/sl Ernst & Young LLP

Tampa, Florida
December 8, 2011



Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION

[, William H. McGill Jr., certify that:
1. | have reviewed this report on Form 10-K of Mailax, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiorny untrue statement of a material fact or amnéitate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circunt&s under which such statements were made, nigtadisg with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememtd,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operes, and cash flows of the registrant as of, amdthe periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer andre responsible for establishing and maintainirsgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))}%nd internal control over financial reportirag @efined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15
() and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedaresused such disclosure controls and procedoites designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhgubsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly duritg fperiod in which this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financiglaring, or caused such internal control over foiahreporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting principles;

c¢) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registeadisclosure controls and procedures and presénta report our conclusions ab
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls andgualures as of the end of the period covered Byréipiort based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the teg’s internal control over financial reportirgat occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fodiikbal quarter in the case of an annual repog) tias materially affected, or is reasonably
likely to materially affect, the registrant’s intel control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer anddve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatimternal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theiteemmmittee of the registrant’s board of directfwspersons performing the equivalent
functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weagses in the design or operation of internal cortvel financial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig’s ability to record, process, summarize, sepbrt financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invalveanagement or other employees who have a signiffole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

/sIWiLLiam H. M cG ILL , JR.
William H. McGill Jr.

Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer

Date: December 8, 2011



Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION

I, Michael H. McLamb, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this report on Form 10-K of Mailax, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiorny untrue statement of a material fact or amnéitate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circunt&s under which such statements were made, nigtadisg with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememtd,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operes, and cash flows of the registrant as of, amdthe periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer andrh responsible for establishing and maintainingldgire controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))}%(nd internal control over financial reportirag @efined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15
() and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedaresused such disclosure controls and procedoites designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhgubsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly duritg fperiod in which this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financiglaring, or caused such internal control over foiahreporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting principles;

c¢) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registeadisclosure controls and procedures and presénta report our conclusions ab
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls andgualures as of the end of the period covered Byréipiort based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the teg’s internal control over financial reportirgat occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fodiikbal quarter in the case of an annual repog) tias materially affected, or is reasonably
likely to materially affect, the registrant’s intel control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer anddve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatimternal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theiteemmmittee of the registrant’s board of directfwspersons performing the equivalent
functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weagses in the design or operation of internal cortvel financial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig’s ability to record, process, summarize, sepbrt financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invalveanagement or other employees who have a signiffole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

/s MicHAEL H. M cL AmB
Michael H. McLamk

Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)

Date: December 8, 2011



Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACTS OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report on Form 10fMarineMax, Inc. (the “Company”) for the year eddgeptember 30, 2011, as filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission ortéte hereof (the “Report”), I, William H. McGill JiChief Executive Officer of the
Company, certify, to my best knowledge and bepefsuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursadh906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requiremeotsSection 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExgeAct of 1934 (15 U.S.C.
78m(a) or 780(d)); and

(2) The information contained in the Report faphesents, in all material respects, the finanaaldition and results of operations
of the Company.

/sI WiLLiav H. M cGILL JR.
William H. McGill Jr.
Chief Executive Office

Date: December 8, 2011



Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACTS OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report on Form 10fMarineMax, Inc. (the “Company”) for the year eddgeptember 30, 2011, as filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission ord#te hereof (the “Report”), I, Michael H. McLambhi€f Financial Officer of the
Company, certify, to my best knowledge and bepefsuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursadh906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requiremeotsSection 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExgeAct of 1934 (15 U.S.C.
78m(a) or 780(d)); and

(2) The information contained in the Report faphesents, in all material respects, the finanaaldition and results of operations
of the Company.

/s MicHAEL H. M cL AmB
Michael H. McLamb
Chief Financial Office

Date: December 8, 20:



